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2021

62,390,911.51 42.70
7,419,484 .30 5.08
6,135,823.45 4.20
6,108,062.82 4.18
5,199,230.30 3.56
4,890,726.50 3.35
4,604,858.46 3.15
2,913,410.75 1.99
2,183,849.46 1.49
2,039,548.08 1.40
1,992,726.45 1.36
1,783,138.40 1.22
1,681,904.51 1.15
1,494,818.01 1.02
1,428,784.55 0.98
1,390,800.61 0.95
1,284,021.48 0.88
1,221,168.71 0.84
1,199,809.38 0.82
1,189,168.77 0.81
1,135,159.56 0.78
1,129,840.00 0.77
939,303.37 0.64
886,572.35 0.61
851,252.90 0.58
736,992.33 0.50
574,137.08 0.39
567,937.24 0.39
557,907.63 0.38
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556,875.00 0.38
507,187.50 0.35
484,437.50 0.33
469,134.27 0.32
454,187.50 0.31
394,117.50 0.27
349,500.00 0.24
347,899.90 0.24
347,839.41 0.24
331,020.00 0.23
287,431.20 0.20
278,720.00 0.19
271,952.50 0.19
267,392.17 0.18
263,045.00 0.18
258,377.50 0.18
131,800,465.91 90.21
5,173,691.97 3.54
2,188,512.78 1.50
870,082.65 0.60
3,058,595.43 2.09
1,561,066.83 1.07
311,445.09 0.21
4,203,177.32 2.88
(14$é%gg%442-55) 100.00
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2021
/7
) |« ) ()
TEVA PHARMACEU 3.1500 | 2026710/ | 5,090,000.00 | 0.96 | 4,864,520.47 | 0.96 | 4,890,726.50 | 3.35
3.15 10/26
PETROBRAS GLOB 5.7500 | 2029/ 7 | 2,590,000.00 | 1.00| 2,599,987.02 | 1.13| 2,923,232.40 | 2.00
5.75 2/29
KRAFT HEINZ FO 3.8750 | 2027/ /15| 2,520,000.00 | 1.01 | 2,536,996.51 | 1.11 | 2,790,276.88 | 1.91
3.875 5/27
;OSDJ%OR CRED 2.9000 | 2028/ 716 2,550,000.00 | 0.99 | 2,533,807.71 | 1.00 | 2,555,140.70 | 1.75
ZUSEELSEP OF 4.2500 | 2026/ /14| 2,550,000.00 | 0.91 | 2,308,335.68 | 0.97 | 2,464,114.90 | 1.69
;‘ﬁg’é PLC 5.5 5.5000 | 2026/ /15| 1,680,000.00 | 1.39 | 2,337,553.92 | 1.36 | 2,288,652.93 | 1.57
LM WA European
Loan Fund - LM 17,372.00 [111.84 | 1,942,798.61 |125.98 | 2,188,512.78 | 1.50
Class EUR
Accumulating
UNITED AIRLINE
PRSI 4.6250 | 2020/ /15| 2,115,000.00 | 1.03 | 2,179,894.77 | 1.03 | 2,176,315.88 | 1.49
icg g%gmes LLe 4.5000 2032/ 7/ | 2,030,000.00 | 1.01| 2,052,537.70 | 1.05| 2,123,887.50 | 1.45
10 | BBVA BANCOMER 5.1250 | 2033/ /18| 1,710,000.00 | 0.91 | 1,559,385.47 | 1.03 | 1,766,934.36 | 1.21
5.125 1/33
11 | PETROLEOS WEXI 6.6250 | 2035/ /15| 1,820,000.00 | 0.78 | 1,421,761.65 | 0.97 | 1,763,099.96 | 1.21
6.625 6/35
12 | MERCADOLIBRE 1 3.1250 | 2031/ /14| 1,605,000.00 | 0.99 | 1,596,252.98 | 0.98 | 1,568,422.05 | 1.07
3.125 1/31
13| DISH NETHORK 3.3750 | 2026/ /15| 1,520,000.00 | 0.95 | 1,438,188.72 | 1.03 | 1,561,066.83 | 1.07
3.375 8/26
14 EgEORP 3.9 3.9000 | 2027710/ | 1,440,000.00 | 0.95| 1,361,691.31 | 1.08 | 1,560,208.98 | 1.07
15 ZOTE/gSTOR CRED 4.0000 |2030/11/13| 1,420,000.00 | 1.01| 1,428,656.22 | 1.06 | 1,501,847.68 | 1.03
16 BE;’QSA'R LINES 7.0000 | 2025/ 7 | 1,230,000.00 | 1.00| 1,224,506.08 | 1.18| 1,447,108.95 | 0.99
17| JB POINDEXTER 7.1250 | 2026/ /15| 1,353,000.00 | 1.03 | 1,387,469.06 | 1.05| 1,425,935.83 | 0.98
7.125 4/26
18 éng%%’QTTRO F 3.7500 | 2026/ /15| 1,150,000.00 | 1.24 | 1,422,273.90 | 1.22| 1,406,199.36 | 0.96
19 icg gg;gmes LLe 4.5000 [2030/ /15| 1,297,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,258,380.99 | 1.05 | 1,362,697.86 | 0.93
20 ZRQESE’% DE GA 6.7500 | 2025/ 7 | 1,420,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,377,744.88 | 0.94 | 1,336,040.20 | 0.91
21 ;’%;SCROW LD 5 5.0000 | 2028/ /15| 1,310,000.00 | 0.98 | 1,287,923.95 | 0.99 | 1,300,106.34 | 0.89
22 | DELTA AIR LINE 3.6250 | 2022/ /15| 1,280,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,245,685.62 | 1.01 | 1,295,237.08 | 0.89
3.625 3/22
23 ZO!'T}%\N REPUBL 4.5000 [ 2030/ /30| 1,250,000.00 | 1.02| 1,273,403.79 | 1.03 | 1,285,718.75 | 0.88
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) |C7 7)) )
24 | JMITED VEHICAN 2.6500 | 2031/ /24| 1,250,000.00 | 0.96 | 1,203,226.19 | 0.98 | 1,229,240.63 | 0.84
25 SPIRIT LOVALTY 8 8.0000 | 2025/ /20| 1,086,000.00 | 1.05 [ 1,138,185.95 | 1.12 | 1,219,035.00 | 0.83
26 | J0OLLI78 BC UL/ 3.5000 | 2029/ /15| 1,210,000.00 | 1.00 [ 1,210,001.67 | 1.00 | 1,204,572.46 | 0.82
27 | JRAINE SOVT 7.3750 [ 2032/ /25| 1,150,000.00 | 1.00 | 1,150,000.00 | 1.04 | 1,109,809.38 | 0.82
28 | ATRCAP 1RELAN 4.6250 | 2027710715 | 1,060,000.00 | 1.00 | 1,064,466.50 | 1.12 | 1,189,168.77 | 0.81
29[ 513 FIR LEASE O 6.5000 | 2024/ /15| 1,129,512.00 | 0.71| 803,846.02 | 1.01| 1,135,159.56 | 0.78
30 | PARRGUAY 2.79 2.7390 | 2033/ /29| 1,160,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,127,025.03 | 0.97 | 1,129,840.00 | 0.77
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2021
2021
2021
2012 318,924,429.99 34,919 8.99 984
2013 403,325,905.90 44,160 7.99 875
2014 261,783,217.39 28,663 6.49 711
2015 117,533,637.50 12,869 3.92 429
2016 85,645,607.10 9,377 3.09 338
2017 87,426,829.79 9,572 3.96 434
2018 77,901,344.79 8,529 3.74 409
2019 60,762,139.45 6,653 3.11 341
10
2020 38,133,577.58 4,175 2.03 222
11

2021 37,317,516.60 4,086 2.00 219
2020 41,057,920.52 4,495 2.14 234
38,813,250.46 4,250 2.02 221
10 37,377,376.91 4,092 1.96 215
11 41,204,057.20 4,511 2.16 236
12 42,347,653.26 4,637 2.27 249
2021 39,659,354.62 4,342 2.12 232
38,400,213.35 4,204 2.06 226
37,317,516.60 4,086 2.00 219
38,498,600.65 4,215 2.09 229
39,975,593.55 4,377 2.17 238
40,439,461.59 4,428 2.27 249
39,049,242 .07 4,276 2.19 240
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2012 264,715,190.71 28,984 9.52 1,042

2013 175,305,475.69 19,194 9.20 1,007

2014 74,256,153.53 8,130 7.99 875

2015 54,146,652.95 5,929 5.84 639

2016 41,589,849.10 4,554 5.11 559

2017 33,348,364.89 3,651 5.43 595

2018 35,283,254.87 3,863 4.92 539

2019 28,697,314.48 3,142 4.62 506
10

2020 20,359,625.06 2,229 3.54 388
11

2021 23,689,835.20 2,594 4.48 491

2020 24,930,207.13 2,730 4.49 492

23,701,524.12 2,595 4.33 474

10 23,733,431.80 2,599 4.37 478

11 25,194,804.98 2,759 4.68 512

12 25,440,073.91 2,785 4.75 520

2021 25,545,613.96 2,797 4.71 516

24,584,549.29 2,692 4.62 506

23,689,835.20 2,594 4.48 491

23,791,379.24 2,605 4.54 497

23,989,267.40 2,627 4.59 503

24,118,464.81 2,641 4.53 496

23,522,154.23 2,575 4.54 497
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2012 36,615,697.70 4,009 10.05 1,100

2013 71,583,867.69 7,838 10.55 1,155

2014 90,885,645.24 9,951 10.37 1,135

2015 100,154,244 83 10,966 9.24 1,012

2016 80,275,269.89 8,789 7.90 865

2017 71,877,177.61 7,870 8.35 914

2018 46,263,397.95 5,065 7.83 857

2019 33,164,634.90 3,631 7.48 819
10

2020 26,106,855.30 2,858 6.39 700
11

2021 30,874,489.34 3,380 7.02 769

2020 29,426,937.40 3,222 7.13 781

29,757,280.14 3,258 6.98 764

10 29,801,992.50 3,263 6.93 759

11 31,157,875.07 3,411 7.17 785

12 31,661,754.33 3,467 7.23 792

2021 32,236,328.06 3,530 7.15 783

32,356,677.20 3,543 7.10 777

30,874,489.34 3,380 7.02 769

30,601,598.58 3,351 7.06 773

30,616,719.29 3,352 7.04 771

31,207,759.41 3,417 7.06 773

30,511,760.75 3,341 7.02 769
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2012 5,168,047.17 789 10.06 1,537

2013 2,469,249.26 377 10.44 1,595

2014 2,233,895.42 341 10.26 1,567

2015 2,801,781.61 428 9.15 1,398

2016 1,593,587.84 243 7.79 1,190

2017 2,807,992.08 429 8.19 1,251

2018 3,358,308.87 513 7.55 1,153

2019 1,284,241.84 196 7.06 1,078
10

2020 1,827,007.89 279 6.04 923
11

2021 934,115.25 143 6.80 1,039

2020 1,497,128.04 229 6.80 1,039

1,467,973.80 224 6.67 1,019

10 1,460,607.76 223 6.63 1,013

11 1,404,845.13 215 6.88 1,051

12 967,712.10 148 6.95 1,062

2021 960,975.64 147 6.90 1,054

956,732.94 146 6.86 1,048

934,115.25 143 6.80 1,039

629,239.84 96 6.85 1,046

613,907.00 94 6.85 1,046

608,789.20 93 6.89 1,053

608,135.55 93 6.87 1,049
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2012 3.529,753,838 9,967

2013 7,471,538,004 10,544

p014 5.826,345,309 10,330

2015 8,582,166, 655 9,169

2016 6,750,721,735 7,776

2017 6,717,770,631 8,061

s018 3,270,576,807 7.371

2019 2,035,134,083 6,827

10 1,227,942,648 5,842
2020 7 ] 7 7

11 1,183,014,340 6,569
2021 7 ’ 7 7

2020 1,351,767,640 6,571

1.273,344.200 6,448

10 1.249,432.007 6.414

11 1,257,131,040 6,651

12 1,240,052,996 6,717

2021 1,223,226.171 6,661

1,217,093, 673 6,625

1.183,014.340 6,569

1.202,102.714 6,619

1,214,959,268 6,618

1,211,361,128 6,650

1,212,957.644 6,633
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2012 3,919,488.02 429 9.51 1,041

2013 34,904,429.46 3,822 9.67 1,059

2014 21,303,805.03 2,333 8.61 943

2015 32,060,682.97 3,510 4.81 527

2016 26,896,449.12 2,945 3.76 412

2017 62,923,858.66 6,890 4.96 543

2018 38,909,270.53 4,260 4.80 526

2019 23,759,667.35 2,601 4.06 445
10

2020 13,378,547.72 1,465 2.91 319
11

2021 13,813,780.93 1,512 3.20 350

2020 15,440,144.09 1,691 3.37 369

14,267,544 42 1,562 3.15 345

10 13,525,360.11 1,481 3.04 333

11 14,516,848.48 1,589 3.26 357

12 14,764,884.20 1,617 3.37 369

2021 14,623,734.68 1,601 3.28 359

14,449,371.92 1,582 3.29 360

13,813,780.93 1,512 3.20 350

13,839,357.60 1,515 3.24 355

14,028,092.51 1,536 3.30 361

13,723,437.88 1,503 3.32 364

13,411,850.06 1,468 3.29 360
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2012 17,169,989.94 1,880 9.08 994

2013 23,414,998.54 2,564 9.19 1,006

2014 16,607,832.15 1,818 7.48 819

2015 5,943,175.49 651 5.46 598

2016 4,455,616.89 488 4.51 494

2017 8,560,308.84 937 3.91 428

2018 49,616,522.31 5,433 3.62 396

2019 31,130,142.62 3,408 2.65 290
10

2020 20,571,479.54 2,252 2.15 235
11

2021 15,638,266.87 1,712 2.02 221

2020 20,024,929.58 2,193 2.22 243

18,593,203.76 2,036 2.09 229

10 16,176,222.77 1,771 1.90 208

11 17,892,674.41 1,959 2.12 232

12 18,693,003.13 2,047 2.29 251

2021 18,488,646.67 2,024 2.30 252

17,785,386.96 1,947 2.25 246

15,638,266.87 1,712 2.02 221

15,817,951.99 1,732 2.04 223

15,364,062.61 1,682 1.98 217

15,410,579.13 1,687 1.98 217

16,024,975.33 1,755 2.05 224
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2012 1,947,028.74 213 8.65 947

2013 2.136,192.87 234 7.44 814

p014 474,215.45 52 6.10 668

2015 806,657.49 88 4.58 501

2016 542.650.49 59 3.24 355

2017 650,626.98 71 3.88 425

2018 1,256,946.96 138 4.37 478

2019 1,120,824.54 123 3.57 391

10 731,877.69 80 2.49 273
2020 877. '

11

- 627.948.68 69 3.34 366

2020 557.395.50 61 3.00 328

530.560.93 58 2.92 320

10 541.150.14 59 2.98 326

11 459.269.86 50 3.24 355

12 591.903.29 65 3.47 380

2021 607.765.96 67 3.34 366

618.189.00 68 3.29 360

627.948.68 69 3.34 366

643.910.84 71 3.43 376

678.332.22 74 3.61 395

674.581.71 74 3.50 383

656.953.96 72 3.41 373
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2014 25,684,631.66 2,812 10.24 1,121

2015 20,168,131.42 2,208 7.61 833

2016 7,797,564 .86 854 5.78 633

2017 14,153,716.71 1,550 5.60 613

2018 17,344,361.70 1,899 5.64 618

2019 14,376,001.48 1,574 5.25 575
10

2020 7,687,032.62 842 3.83 419
11

2021 9,185,622.29 1,006 4.98 545

2020 9,049,859.39 991 4.67 511

8,570,830.43 938 4.53 496

10 8,717,656.68 954 4.67 511

11 9,349,835.98 1,024 5.12 561

12 9,575,669.26 1,048 5.24 574

2021 9,593,699.02 1,050 5.12 561

9,291,702.86 1,017 4.92 539

9,185,622.29 1,006 4.98 545

9,388,980.11 1,028 5.09 557

9,496,332.80 1,040 5.15 564

9,554,952.50 1,046 5.18 567

9,333,764.65 1,022 5.18 567
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2014 2,064,126.13 167 10.24 828

2015 1,171,409.50 95 9.91 801

2016 4,736,159.67 383 8.37 677

2017 5,257,893.85 425 8.71 704

2018 3,824,743.75 309 7.99 646

2019 3,242,430.09 262 7.41 599
10

2020 2,418,673.89 196 6.27 507
11

2021 2,389,307.36 193 6.95 562

2020 2,385,154.10 193 7.03 568

2,338,006.96 189 6.88 556

10 2,324,380.58 188 6.83 552

11 2,408,725.43 195 7.07 572

12 2,433,240.05 197 7.14 577

2021 2,417,442.75 195 7.07 572

2,406,810.70 195 7.02 568

2,389,307.36 193 6.95 562

2,413,341.27 195 7.00 566

2,262,022.45 183 6.99 565

2,275,290.47 184 7.02 568

2,303,026.97 186 6.99 565
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1.56 171 1.20 131
1.56 171 1.20 131
1.47 161 1.20 131
1.20 131 1.20 131
0.58 64 0.70 77
0.36 39 0.60 66
0.36 39 0.60 66
0.34 37 0.58 64
10 0.24 26 10 0.48 53
11 0.24 26 11 0.48 53
2020 0.02 2020 0.04
0.02 0.04
10 0.02 10 0.04
11 0.02 11 0.04
12 0.02 12 0.04
2021 0.02 2021 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04

2021 8.38 2021 8.70
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0.72 79 0.72 110
0.72 79 0.72 110
0.72 79 0.72 110
0.72 79 0.72 110
0.72 79 0.72 110
0.72 79 0.72 110
0.72 79 0.72 110
0.70 77 0.66 101
10 0.60 66 10 0.36 55
11 0.60 66 11 0.36 55
2020 0.05 2020 0.03
0.05 0.03
10 0.05 10 0.03
11 0.05 11 0.03
12 0.05 12 0.03
2021 0.05 2021 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03

2021 7.32 2021 6.72
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720 0.56 61
720 0.96 105
720 0.96 105
720 0.96 105
720 0.67 73
720 0.48 53
720 0.48 53
660 0.48 53
10 360 10 0.48 53
11 360 11 0.48 53
2020 30 2020 0.04
30 0.04
10 30 10 0.04
11 30 11 0.04
12 30 12 0.04
2021 30 2021 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04

2021 6,720 2021 6.67
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0.77 84 0.63 69
1.32 145 1.08 118
1.26 138 1.02 112
1.08 118 0.84 92
0.63 69 0.50 55
0.48 53 0.36 39
0.48 53 0.36 39
0.46 50 0.36 39
10 0.36 39 10 0.36 39
11 0.36 39 11 0.36 39
2020 0.03 2020 0.03
0.03 0.03
10 0.03 10 0.03
11 0.03 11 0.03
12 0.03 12 0.03
2021 0.03 2021 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03

2021 7.32 2021 5.99
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0.45 49 0.40 32
1.08 118 0.32 26
0.69 76 0.96 78
0.60 66 0.96 78
0.60 66 0.96 78
0.58 64 0.88 71
10 0.48 53 10 0.48 39
11 0.48 53 11 0.48 39
2020 0.04 2020 0.04
0.04 0.04
10 0.04 10 0.04
11 0.04 11 0.04
12 0.04 12 0.04
2021 0.04 2021 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04

2021 5.12 2021 5.60
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2021%4F 30 2021%48 0.04
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BERYEIER
202138 0.03
021E4H 003
2021558 003
202168 003
2021%78 003
HT 1SR .36
BERE 672

BHETFIUNS RIS
202138 0.03
202148 003
2021558 003
2021F6H 03
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BEREE €595
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2011 2012 31 1.68
2012 2013 31 6.23
2013 2014 31 0.38
2014 2015 31 21.11
2015 2016 31 6.38
2016 2017 31 39.81
2017 2018 31 3.54
2018 2019 31 775
2019 - 2000 31 27.01
020 oo 31 10.34
2011 2012 31 2-39
2012 2013 31 9.24
2013 2014 31 0.11
2014 2015 31 11.89
2015 2016 31 0.51
2016 2017 31 18-00
2017 2018 31 1.66
2018 2019 31 5-69
2019 2000 31 12.99
w20 oo 31 40.11
2011 2012 31 471
2012 2013 31 12.14
2013 2014 31 5.12
2014 2015 31 3.95
2015 2016 31 6.71
2016 2017 31 14.81
2017 2018 31 2-40
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2018 2019 31 4.41
010 2000 31 6.55
1 19.25
2020 2021 31
2011 2012 31 4-86
2012 2013 31 10.93
2013 2014 31 5.17
2014 2015 31 3.80
2015 2016 31 6.99
2016 2017 31 14.38
2017 2018 31 0.98
2018 2019 31 2-25
019 2000 31 9.35
1 18.54
2020 2021 31
2011 2012 31 4.52
2012 2013 31 13.01
2013 2014 31 4-80
2014 2015 31 4.21
2015 2016 31 /.34
2016 2017 31 12.92
2017 2018 31 0.37
2018 2019 31 1.57
019 2000 31 9.15
1 18.61
2020 2021 31
2011 11 2012 31 0.70
2012 2013 31 11.78
2013 2014 31 1.03
2014 2015 31 32.98
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2015 2016 31 7-90
2016 2017 31 44.68
2017 2018 31 6.45
2018 2019 31 5.42
019 2000 31 1650
00 oom 31 26.46
2011 11 2012 31 1.50
2012 2013 31 15.75
2013 2014 31 4-90
2014 2015 31 12.57
2015 2016 31 5-86
2016 2017 31 2-66
2017 2018 31 4-86
2018 2019 31 14.09
010 2000 31 5.28
1 10.70
2020 2021 31
2011 11 2012 31 7-20
2012 2013 31 1.50
2013 2014 31 4.30
2014 2015 31 11.15
2015 2016 31 18.34
2016 2017 31 30.86
2017 2018 31 21.91
2018 2019 31 10.07
010 200 31 20.17
00 oo 31 48.59
2013 27 2014 31 6.90
2014 2015 31 15.14
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2015 2016 31 14.98
2016 2017 31 7-27
2017 2018 31 11.43
2018 2019 31 3.37
019 2000 31 17-90
00 oom 31 42.56
2013 27 2014 31 6.40
2014 2015 31 0.10
2015 2016 31 5-85
2016 2017 31 15.53
2017 2018 31 2-16
2018 2019 31 3.75
010 2000 31 8.91
1 18.50
2020 2021 31
100x
10.00
10.00 10.00

10.00
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32,345,858 9,775,971 35,458,404

32,345,858 9,775,971 35,458,404

31,319,297 16,063,199 50,714,502

31,319,297 16,063,199 50,714,502

16,690,152 27,097,896 40,306,758

16,690,152 27,097,896 40,306,758

8,112,457 18,404,095 30,015,120

8,112,457 18,404,095 30,015,120

4,797,008 7,206,117 27,704,277

4,797,008 7,206,117 27,704,277

1,263,489 6,896,524 22,071,242

1,263,489 6,896,524 22,071,242

2,467,571 3,696,913 20,841,900

2,467,571 3,696,913 20,841,900

1,610,704 2,925,782 19,526,822

1,610,704 2,925,782 19,526,822

10 2,588,887 3,296,354 18,819,355
2,588,887 3,296,354 18,819,355

11 960,488 1,200,718 18,579,125
960,488 1,200,718 18,579,125

22,390,140 9,816,052 27,794,083

22,390,140 9,816,052 27,794,083

4,277,418 13,031,557 19,039,944

4,277,418 13,031,557 19,039,944

1,825,697 11,569,540 9,296,101

1,825,697 11,569,540 9,296,101

2,657,514 2,680,068 9,273,547

2,657,514 2,680,068 9,273,547

1,130,217 2,265,433 8,138,331

1,130,217 2,265,433 8,138,331

547,230 2,565,597 6,119,964

547,230 2,565,597 6,119,964

2,833,587 1,787,223 7,166,328

2,833,587 1,787,223 7,166,328

459,478 1,360,969 6,264,837

459,478 1,360,969 6,264,837

10 166,298 671,985 5,759,150
166,298 671,985 5,759,150

11 163,683 636,344 5,286,489
163,683 636,344 5,286,489
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3,685,969 2,534,697 3,642,453
3,685,969 2,534,697 3,642,453
6,733,018 3,514,293 6,861,178
6,733,018 3,514,293 6,861,178
6,133,209 4,233,635 8,760,752
6,133,209 4,233,635 8,760,752
7,630,294 5,552,523 10,838,523
7,630,294 5,552,523 10,838,523
5,085,815 5,759,342 10,164,996
5,085,815 5,759,342 10,164,996
1,518,677 3,080,619 8,603,054
1,518,677 3,080,619 8,603,054
665,002 3,361,051 5,907,005
665,002 3,361,051 5,907,005
194,574 1,667,146 4,434,433
194,574 1,667,146 4,434,433
10 96,405 442,234 4,088,604
96,405 442,234 4,088,604
11 614,368 304,034 4,398,938
614,368 304,034 4,398,938
559,486 232,826 513,692
559,486 232,826 513,692
156,218 433,450 236,460
156,218 433,450 236,460
40,555 59,279 217,736
40,555 59,279 217,736
206,179 117,757 306,158
206,179 117,757 306,158
5,182 106,785 204,555
5,182 106,785 204,555
261,657 123,152 343,060
261,657 123,152 343,060
474,032 372,133 444,959
474,032 372,133 444,959
1,675 264,823 181,811
1,675 264,823 181,811
10 145,731 25,209 302,333
145,731 25,209 302,333
11 14,316 179,239 137,410
14,316 179,239 137,410
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321,930 167,660 354,143
321,930 167,660 354,143
593,480 236,941 710,682
593,480 236,941 710,682
314,961 461,595 564,049
314,961 461,595 564,049
745,772 373,856 935,965
745,772 373,856 935,965
287,467 355,320 868,112
287,467 355,320 868,112
184,299 219,082 833,329
184,299 219,082 833,329
52,848 442,495 443,682
52,848 442,495 443,682
20,017 165,599 298,100
20,017 165,599 298,100
10 10,078 97,980 210,198
10,078 97,980 210,198
11 13,514 43,609 180,103
13,514 43,609 180,103
426,920 14,811 412,109
426,920 14,811 412,109
3,570,981 260,438 3,722,652
3,570,981 260,438 3,722,652
1,664,875 2,914,157 2,473,370
1,664,875 2,914,157 2,473,370
6,187,869 1,996,723 6,664,516
6,187,869 1,996,723 6,664,516
4,665,568 4,223,444 7,154,700
4,665,568 4,223,444 7,154,700
9,133,723 3,598,999 12,689,424
9,133,723 3,598,999 12,689,424
2,361,878 6,951,855 8,099,447
2,361,878 6,951,855 8,099,447
1,331,760 3,638,412 5,792,795
1,331,760 3,638,412 5,792,795
10 659,361 1,849,095 4,603,061
659,361 1,849,095 4,603,061
11 450,019 740,800 4,312,280
450,019 740,800 4,312,280
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2,305,998 414,988 1,891,010
2,305,998 414,988 1,891,010
1,986,605 1,347,398 2,530,217
1,986,605 1,347,398 2,530,217
1,317,911 1,628,716 2,219,412
1,317,911 1,628,716 2,219,412
130,676 1,262,091 1,087,997
130,676 1,262,091 1,087,997
551,906 651,922 987,981
551,906 651,922 987,981
1,362,293 160,564 2,189,710
1,362,293 160,564 2,189,710
13,648,610 2,118,426 13,719,894
13,648,610 2,118,426 13,719,894
2,671,334 4,730,071 11,661,157
2,671,334 4,730,071 11,661,157
10 1,206,859 3,336,596 9,531,420
1,206,859 3,336,596 9,531,420
11 207,547 1,983,770 7,755,197
207,547 1,983,770 7,755,197
243,988 18,920 225,068
243,988 18,920 225,068
198,256 147,711 275,613
198,256 147,711 275,613
30,700 228,563 77,750
30,700 228,563 77,750
125,024 26,766 176,008
125,024 26,766 176,008
2,056 10,494 167,570
2,056 10,494 167,570
0 0 167,570
0 0 167,570
141,683 21,685 287,568
141,683 21,685 287,568
26,592 0 314,160
26,592 0 314,160
10 14,030 34,571 293,619
14,030 34,571 293,619
11 52,807 158,619 187,807
52,807 158,619 187,807
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2,556,246 47,296 2,508,950
2,556,246 47,296 2,508,950
1,224,767 1,083,941 2,649,776
1,224,767 1,083,941 2,649,776
144,163 1,443,747 1,350,192
144,163 1,443,747 1,350,192
1,765,409 588,624 2,526,977
1,765,409 588,624 2,526,977
2,572,857 2,023,423 3,076,411
2,572,857 2,023,423 3,076,411
558,499 896,368 2,738,542
558,499 896,368 2,738,542
10 617,271 1,348,773 2,007,040
617,271 1,348,773 2,007,040
11 95,962 258,470 1,844,532
95,962 258,470 1,844,532
434,018 232,493 201,524
434,018 232,493 201,524
118,715 201,524 118,175
118,715 201,524 118,175
497,582 50,137 565,619
497,582 50,137 565,619
293,741 255,907 603,454
293,741 255,907 603,454
243,445 367,919 478,980
243,445 367,919 478,980
55,162 96,623 437,519
55,162 96,623 437,519
10 5,952 57,679 385,792
5,952 57,679 385,792
11 42,181 84,332 343,641
42,181 84,332 343,641
2011 11 2012
31 2013 27 2014 31
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2021 31
2021 31
135,357,327 140,526,673 15,386,265
1,942,799 2,145,246 234,883
4,353,215 476,634
1,228,344 1,230,845 134,765
2,302,877 252,142
3,035,020 332,304
1,775,876 194,441
743,081 81,360
5,236 573
312,199 34,183
156,430,268 17,127,550
5,010,709 548,623
4,939,891 540,869
135,264 14,810
612,759 67,091
536,192 58,708
334,743 36,651
11,569,558 1,266,751
144,860,710 15,860,799

138/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

37,215,300 18,579,125 2.003 219
10,705,990 180,103 59.444 6,509
1,288,833 137,410 9.380 1,027
30,875,281 4,398,938 7.019 769
23,688,468 5,286,489 4.481 491
13,814,138 4,312,280 3.203 351
15,639,017 7,755,197 2.017 221
627,965 187,807 3.344 366
9,185,854 1,844,532 4.980 545
1,819,864 343,641 5.296 580
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2021 31

5,954 7,550,434 826,697
50,271 122,536 13,416
7,672,970 840,113
1,224,663 134,088
1,071,580 117,327
132,461 14,503
131,564 14,405
121,818 13,338
76,541 8,380
12,308 1,348
9,499 1,040
85,480 9,359
2,865,914 313,789
4,807,056 526,325
(3,817,296) (417,956)
124,435 13,624
(9,109,400) (997,388)
(12,802,261) (1,401,720)
26,507,728 2,902,331
(8,164) (894)
202,447 22,166
10,926,770 1,196,372
37,628,781 4,119,975
24,826,520 2,718,256
29,633,576 3,244,580
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2021 31

4,807,056 526,325
(12,802,261) (1,401,720)
37,628,781 4,119,975
29,633,576 3,244,580
(4,511,783) (493,995)

(662,574) (72,545)
(99,453) (10,889)

(2,552,547) (279,478)
(2,641,000) (289,163)
(2,158,978) (236,387)
(3,139,799) (343,777)

(73,817) (8,082)
(913,836) (100,056)
(124,161) (13,594)

(16,877,948) (1,847,967)

(9,857,398) (1,079,287)

2,898,230 317,327
141,962,480 15,543,472
144,860,710 15,860,799
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134,986,838 134,986,838
307,704 307,704
2,499,131 2,499,131
2,733,000 2,733,000
743,081 743,081
2,145,246
3,040,704 138,229,050 143,415,000
5,010,709 5,010,709
2021 31
2021 31
2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
1,942,799 202,447 2,145,246

149/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31
2021 31
39,512 0.52
0.70
0.01 15,000
30
0.02 15 0.0125 45 0.0050
45,000

10,000
8,400
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0.80
0.05
31
2021 31
960,488 816,102 14,316 118,703 614,368 4,363,980
(1,200,718) (2,661,164) (179,239)  (1,572,914) (304,034)  (2,130,790)
(240, 230) (1,845,062)  (164,923)  (1,454,211) 310,334 2,233,190
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163,683 730,526 450,019 1,507,993 207,547 452,790 52,807 174,470
(636,344)  (2,848,149) (740,800)  (2,492,252)  (1,983,770)  (4,329,792) (158,619) (459,258)
(472,661)  (2,117,623) (290,781) (984,259)  (1,776,223)  (3,877,002) (105,812) (284,788)

95,962 464,784 42,181 189,068 2,614,885 10,851,372
(258,470)  (1,183,696) (84,332) (408,548)  (5,589,935) (20,708,770)
(162,508) (718,912) (42,151) (219,480)  (2,975,050)  (9,857,398)
10
2021 31
2.025 54.103 7.491 6.383 3.534
a 0.067 1.935 0.289 0.216 0.137
0.151 6.801 2.067 1.020 1.290
0.218 8.736 2.356 1.236 1.427
(0.240) (3.395) (0.467) (0.600) (0.480)
2.003 59.444 9.380 7.019 4.481
@ 10.77 16.15 31.45 19.36 40.38
1.88 1.88 1.85 1.88 1.85
3.17 3.17 3.36 3.09 3.09
2021 31
2.905 2.150 2.492 3.827 3.836
a 0.104 0.071 0.092 0.142 0.150
0.672 0.152 1.116 1.491 1.655
0.776 0.223 1.208 1.633 1.805
(0.478) (0.356) (0.356) (0.480) (0.345)
3.203 2.017 3.344 4.980 5.296
@ 26.71 10.37 48.48 42.67 47.05
1.86 1.88 1.86 1.85 1.85
3.16 3.22 3.11 3.03 3.03
Qa
Q@
11
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31
a
743,081
a
5,010,709
31
(9,109, 400)
10,926,770
31
2020 2021

(135,320,673)
245,432,944
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2021 31
743,081 5,010,709
743,081 5,010,709
(6]
Citibank, N.A. @ 90,881 (28,367) 62,514
Goldman Sachs International(® 20,992 (20,992)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @ 598,374 (598,374)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 11,106 (11,106)
UBS AG® 21,728 (21,728)
743,081 (680,567) 62,514
¢
@
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(€]

Citibank, N.A.® 28,367 (28,367)

Goldman Sachs International® 620,239 (20,992) 599,247

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.® 2,780,442 (598,374) 2,182,068

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 906,696 (11,106) 895,590

UBS AG®™ 674,965 (21,728) 653,237
5,010,709 (680,567) 4,330,142

¢

(“
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2021 31
- 93.2%
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
$ 375,000 Angolan Government International Bond 144A 8.250% 2028 5 9 374,382 360,390
374,382 360,390
- 2.9%
- 0.4%
630,000 Pampa Energia SA 144A 7.500 2027 1 24 626,355 513,930
- 0.6%
330,000 YPF SA 144A 8.500 2025 7 28 312,211 233,888
852,780  YPF SA 144A 4.000 2026 2 12 719,049 696,554
1,031,260 930,442
- 0.9%
1,420,000 Transportadora de Gas del Sur SA 144A 6.750 2025 5 2 1,374,559 1,235,637
- 0.4%
660,000 Provincia de Buenos Aire 9.125 2024 3 16 683,899 248,944
560,000 Provincia de Cordoba 144A 3.000 2027 6 1 332,596 327,600
1,016,495 576,544
- 0.6%
166,198 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 1.000 2029 7 9 95,744 60,051
750,589 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 0.125 2030 7 9 407,721 251,412
1,901,310 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 0.125 2035 7 9 929,000 566,970
1,432,465 878,433
5,481,134 4,134,986
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
710,000 Silversea Cruise Finance Ltd. 144A 7.250 2025 2 1 733,686 734,678
733,686 734,678
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
370,000 Bahrain Government International Bond 144A 6.000 2044 9 19 346,691 346,696
346,691 346,696
- 2.5%
- 2.5%
480,000 NCL Corp. Ltd. 144A 12.250 2024 5 15 476,065 581,040
480,000 NCL Corp. Ltd. 144A 10.250 2026 2 1 480,000 562,596
480,000 Viking Cruises Ltd. 144A 7.000 2029 2 15 480,000 494,442
750,000 Viking Ocean Cruises Ship VII Ltd. 144A 5.625 2029 2 15 760,583 758,395
1,310,000 VOC Escrow Ltd. 144A 5.000 2028 2 15 1,286,979 1,296,406
3,483,627 3,692,879
3,483,627 3,692,879
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>k

- 1.0%
- 1.0%
1,370,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 4.250% 2025 1 7 1,369,900 1,469,121
1,369,900 1,469,121
- 3.4%
- 0.8%
600,000 GFL Environmental Inc. 144A 3.750 2025 8 1 600,000 608,927
480,000 GFL Environmental Inc. 144A 5.125 2026 12 15 480,000 505,167
1,080,000 1,114,094
- - 0.2%
280,000 ATS Automation Tooling Systems Inc. 144A 4.125 2028 12 15 281,167 278,579
- 0.4%
530,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd. 144A 6.875 2027 10 15 530,000 567,691
- 0.3%
290,000 MEG Energy Corp. 144A 7.125 2027 2 1 304,088 303,309
200,000 MEG Energy Corp. 144A 5.875 2029 2 1 200,000 200,445
504,088 503,754
- 0.1%
160,000 Cascades Inc./Cascades USA Inc. 144A 5.375 2028 1 15 160,000 168,129
- 0.7%
400,000 Bausch Health Cos Inc. 144A 5.750 2027 8 15 424,087 430,671
590,000 Bausch Health Cos Inc. 144A 5.000 2028 1 30 590,000 601,501
1,014,087 1,032,172
- 0.8%
1,210,000 1011778 BC ULC/New Red Finance Inc. 144A 3.500 2029 2 15 1,210,095 1,176,727
- 0.1%
130,000 Open Text Corp. 144A 3.875 2028 2 15 130,000 131,023
4,909,437 4,972,169
- 4.4%
- 1.7%
450,000 :xz:::QM?:ZQdngzﬂ;efig?'12;2"6”3’ Ltd./ 5.750 2026 1 20 461,906 476,973
1,810,000 fzz\it Loyalty Cayman Ltd./Spirit IP Cayman Ltd- g 55 505 9 20 1,871,981 2,045,300
2,333,887 2,522,273
- 0.7%
1,129,512 Global Aircraft Leasing Co. Ltd. PIK 144A 6.500 2024 9 15 779,288 1,083,202
- 2.0%
540,000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd. 144A 5.375 2029 12 4 540,000 573,637
640,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd. 144A 4.750 2027 2 1 639,808 649,792
740,000 Wynn Macau Ltd. 144A 5.625 2028 8 26 752,525 772,743
770,000 Wynn Macau Ltd. 144A 5.125 2029 12 15 746,142 790,617
2,678,475 2,786,789
5,791,650 6,392,264
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
250,000 Costa Rica Government International Bond 144A 7.000 2044 4 4 242,754 241,276
242,754 241,276
-1.3%
- 1.3%
1,250,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 4.500 2030 1 30 1,274,167 1,260,516
620,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 6.850 2045 1 27 631,575 688,027
1,905,742 1,948,543
1,905,742 1,948,543
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- 0.2%
- 0.2%
$ 650,000 Ecuador Government International Bond 144A 0.500% 2035 7 31 298,278 300,625
298,278 300,625
- 0.9%
- 0.9%
510,000 Egypt Government International Bond 144A MTN 7.600 2029 3 1 510,000 543,645
680,000 Egypt Government International Bond MTN 6.125 2022 1 31 686,046 699,412
1,196,046 1,243,057
1,196,046 1,243,057
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
400,000 EI Salvador Government International Bond 144A 6.375 2027 1 18 400,000 396,500
400,000 396,500
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
670,000 Altice France SA/France 144A 7.375 2026 5 1 668,962 696,800
668,962 696,800
- 0.8%
- - 0.4%
EUR 490,000 Vertical Midco GmbH 4.375 2027 7 15 550,344 606,189
- 0.4%
590,000 Cheplapharm Arzneimittel GmbH 144A 5.500 2028 1 15 593,077 612,385
1,143,421 1,218,574
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
680,000 Ghana Government International Bond 144A 10.750 2030 10 14 740,869 848,900
740,869 848,900
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
350,000 Guatemala Government Bond 144A 4.375 2027 6 5 348,830 375,002
348,830 375,002
-1.2%
- 0.2%
350,000 Cikarang Listrindo Tbk PT 144A 4.950 2026 9 14 345,802 358,909
- 1.0%
950,000 Indonesia Government International Bond 1.850 2031 3 12 945,416 912,076
400,000 Indonesia Government International Bond MTN 3.750 2022 4 25 404,584 413,253
1,350,000 1,325,329
1,695,802 1,684,238
- 1.8%
- 0.8%
1,060,000 23:2‘{“:0:]?:322 Capital DAC/AerCap Global 4.625 2027 10 15 1,064,693 1,163,589
- 0.3%
400,000 Virgin Media Vendor Financing Notes IV DAC 144A 5.000 2028 7 15 400,288 407,655
- 0.7%
980,000 ?:2?g24zickaging Finance PLC/Ardagh Holdings USA 6.000 2025 2 15 939,572 1,009,996
2,404,553 2,581,240
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
720,000 UniCredit SpA 144A MTN 7.296 2034 4 2 720,000 851,108
720,000 851,108

161/345




EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

>k

- 0.4%
- 0.4%
$ 205,014  lvory Coast Government International Bond 5.750% 2032 12 31 193,412 205,393
330,000 lIvory Coast Government International Bond 144A 6.125 2033 6 15 326,514 337,203
519,926 542,596
519,926 542,596
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
400,000 Jamaica Government International Bond 6.750 2028 4 28 414,035 469,406
414,035 469,406
- 0.6%
- 0.2%
310,000 Adient Global Holdings Ltd. 144A 4.875 2026 8 15 258,558 320,392
- 0.4%
EUR 470,000 LHC3 PLC PIK 4.125 2024 8 15 548,302 561,782
806,860 882,174
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
250,000 Jordan Government International Bond 144A 6.125 2026 1 29 269,315 267,798
269,315 267,798
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
300,000 Kenya Government International Bond 144A 7.250 2028 2 28 325,046 315,843
325,046 315,843
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
310,000 Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd. 144A 5.500 2028 4 1 310,000 311,779
310,000 311,779
- 2.2%
- 0.4%
510,000 Ultrapar International SA 144A 5.250 2026 10 6 504,007 546,241
- 0.5%
680,000 ARD Finance SA PIK 144A 6.500 2027 6 30 680,000 713,723
- 0.6%
GBP 340,000 Cidron Aida Finco Sarl 6.250 2028 4 1 466,548 474,962
370,000 Eziz Luxembourg Finance Co. 1 Sarl/Endo US Inc. 6.125 2029 4 1 370,390 373,781
836,938 848,743
- 0.7%
440,000 Altice France Holding SA 144A 10.500 2027 5 15 452,338 495,361
EUR 468,000 Crystal Almond SARL 4.250 2024 10 15 513,328 562,817
965,666 1,058,178
2,986,611 3,166,885
- 3.5%
- 1.2%
1,710,000 BBVA Bancomer SA/Texas 144A ~ 5.125 2033 1 18 1,556,385 1,768,606
- 0.3%
200,000 Cemex SAB de CV 5.700 2025 1 11 196,383 204,545
230,000 Cemex SAB de CV 144A 7.375 2027 6 5 230,000 260,475
426,383 465,020
- 2.0%
1,820,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.625 2035 6 15 1,417,154 1,727,357
1,200,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.625 2038 6 15 1,021,077 1,089,357
2,438,231 2,816,714
4,420,999 5,050,340
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- 8.1%
- 0.5%
$ 620,000 NatWest Markets NV 7.750% 2023 5 15 641,168 698,182
- 0.4%
500,000 Braskem Netherlands Finance BV 144A 4.500 2028 1 10 490,894 514,841
- 0.4%
530,000 Sensata Technologies BV 144A 4.000 2029 4 15 533,975 540,778
- 0.2%
320,000 UPC Holding BV 144A 5.500 2028 1 15 321,444 330,623
- 2.1%
210,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 5.999 2028 1 27 195,463 230,924
2,590,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 5.750 2029 2 1 2,600,836 2,828,594
2,796,299 3,059,518
- 4.2%
EUR 1,180,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands Il BV 1.125 2024 10 15 1,239,785 1,318,329
5,090,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 BV 3.150 2026 10 1 4,851,607 4,873,674
6,091,392 6,192,003
- 0.3%
EUR 380,000 Maxeda DIY Holding BV 5.875 2026 10 1 449,483 463,009
11,324,655 11,798,954
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
300,000 Nigeria Government International Bond 144A 7.875 2032 2 16 311,471 309,951
530,000 Nigeria Government International Bond MTN 6.500 2027 11 28 532,290 547,564
843,761 857,515
843,761 857,515
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
700,000 Oman Government International Bond 144A 5.625 2028 1 17 556,889 724,532
556,889 724,532
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
190,000 Carnival Corp. 144A 7.625 2026 3 1 191,564 204,253
540,000 Carnival Corp. 144A 5.750 2027 3 1 540,000 554,361
731,564 758,614
731,564 758,614
- 0.7%
- 0.7%
750,000 Paraguay Government International Bond 144A 5.000 2026 4 15 767,927 847,359
200,000 Paraguay Government International Bond 144A 2.739 2033 1 29 200,000 192,000
967,927 1,039,359
967,927 1,039,359
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
240,000 Peruvian Government International Bond 2.783 2031 1 23 240,004 240,250
240,004 240,250
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
280,000 Senegal Government International Bond 144A 6.250 2033 5 23 280,280 279,550
280,280 279,550
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
300,000 Republic of South Africa Government 4.875 2026 4 14 300,699 314,942

International Bond
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Republic of South Africa Government

$ 510,000 International Bond 5.650% 2047 9 27 484,365 469,212
785,064 784,154
785,064 784,154
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
EUR 590,000 Tendam Brands SAU ~ 5.250 2024 9 15 705,679 657,455
705,679 657,455
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
570,000 UBS Group AG 144A "Q 7.000 - 570,000 624,959
570,000 624,959
- 3.0%
- 0.7%
700,000 TC Ziraat Bankasi AS 144A MTN 5.125 2022 5 3 691,421 699,007
390,000 TC Ziraat Bankasi AS 144A MTN 5.125 2023 9 29 360,988 383,741
1,052,409 1,082,748
- 1.6%
2,550,000 Turkey Government International Bond 4.250 2026 4 14 2,294,189 2,313,778
- 0.7%
930,000 Turk Telekomunikasyon AS 144A 6.875 2025 2 28 926,081 990,627
4,272,679 4,387,153
- 0.8%
- 0.8%
1,150,000 Ukraine Government International Bond 7.375 2032 9 25 1,150,000 1,156,587
1,150,000 1,156,587
- 4.T%
- 1.4%
293,000 Barclays Bank PLC 7.625 2022 11 21 301,456 322,091
770,000 Natwest Group PLC "Q 8.625 — 752,798 790,545
GBP 560,000 Santander UK Group Holdings PLC Q 7.375 — 775,779 811,074
1,830,033 1,923,710
- 0.6%
GBP 764,000 Marston®s Issuer PLC ~ 2.634 2035 7 16 850,439 813,403
- 1.0%
EUR 1,150,000 INEOS Quattro Finance 1 PLC 3.750 2026 7 15 1,423,643 1,375,985
EUR 120,000  INEOS Quattro Finance 1 PLC 144A 3.750 2026 7 15 145,806 143,581
1,569,449 1,519,566
- 0.5%
770,000 International Game Technology PLC 144A 4.125 2026 4 15 770,000 788,825
- 0.7%
GBP 820,000 Saga PLC 3.375 2024 5 12 1,045,623 1,074,777
- 0.5%
620,000 Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC 144A 5.500 2029 5 15 620,000 657,975
6,685,544 6,778,256
- 41.1%
- 4.3%
220,000 ﬁ?gfiziz/\“'"”es Inc./AAdvantage Loyalty IP 5.500 2026 4 20 221,687 229,350
190,000 ﬂgfiijzAA"“”es Inc./Advantage Loyalty 1P 5.750 2020 4 20 190,474 202,502
40,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 3.400 2021 4 19 39,771 39,992
1,280,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 3.625 2022 3 15 1,227,879 1,292,694
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$ 230,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 3.800% 2023 4 19 217,217 235,902
30,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 2.900 2024 10 28 27,188 29,923

240,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 7.375 2026 1 15 239,970 282,717
1,230,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 144A 7.000 2025 5 1 1,224,090 1,416,256

210,000 Delta Air Lines Inc./SkyMiles IP Ltd. 144A 4.750 2028 10 20 210,851 228,244

540,000 |e it fual property Assets Lid. 1448 6.500 2027 6 20 533,835 591,943
1,520,000 United Airlines Holdings Inc. 4.250 2022 10 1 1,412,851 1,546,600

135,000 United Airlines Holdings Inc. 5.000 2024 2 1 115,590 137,025

5,661,403 6,233,148
- 0.5%
710,000 Hanesbrands Inc. 144A 4.875 2026 5 15 717,263 761,663
- 3.7%

330,000 Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 5.125 2025 6 16 330,000 356,270
2,550,000 Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 2.900 2028 2 16 2,533,057 2,449,157
1,070,000 Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 4.000 2030 11 13 1,073,215 1,061,518
1,353,000 JB Poindexter & Co. Inc. 144A 7.125 2026 4 15 1,391,241 1,428,663

5,327,513 5,295,608
- 0.4%

150,000 Adient US LLC 144A 7.000 2026 5 15 150,000 159,848
390,000 American Axle & Manufacturing Inc. 6.500 2027 4 1 370,350 405,860
520,350 565,708

- 0.2%
EUR 210,000 Primo Water Holdings Inc. 3.875 2028 10 31 246,719 251,226

- 0.6%

730,000 Boise Cascade Co. 144A 4.875 2030 7 1 730,000 764,588
80,000 Standard Industries Inc./NJ 144A 5.000 2027 2 15 76,776 83,156
806,776 847,744

- 0.4%
570,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 5.500 2031 3 18 570,000 557,285

- 1.3%

370,000 Carriage Services Inc. 144A 6.625 2026 6 1 372,987 388,500

600,000 E:}Z‘;C:efﬁgftmz”'ces Borrower LLC/Prime 5.750 2026 4 15 604,149 648,220

180,000 United Rentals North America Inc. 5.500 2027 5 15 170,364 191,947

260,000 United Rentals North America Inc. 3.875 2027 11 15 263,049 270,120

290,000 WW International Inc. 144A 8.625 2025 12 1 285,675 302,676

1,696,224 1,801,463
- 0.4%
260,000 Crowdstrike Holdings Inc. 3.000 2029 2 15 260,000 254,131
270,000 Dell International LLC/EMC Corp. 144A 7.125 2024 6 15 266,824 277,884
526,824 532,015
- 0.6%
950,000 H&E Equipment Services Inc. 144A 3.875 2028 12 15 929,801 922,870
- 0.3%
380,000 Navient Corp. 6.750 2026 6 15 380,000 411,978
- 0.4%
560,000 Sensata Technologies Inc. 144A 4.375 2030 2 15 559,518 586,565
- 0.2%
330,000 TopBuild Corp. 144A 3.625 2029 3 15 330,000 325,596
- 0.5%
680,000 grr‘;_RijZ;ts Finance LLC/llynn Resorts Capital 7.750 2025 4 15 680,000 737,138
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- 2.9%
3,020,000 Kraft Heinz Foods Co. 3.875% 2027 5 15 3,040,567 3,303,452
60,000 Kraft Heinz Foods Co. 4.250 2031 3 1 60,000 66,077
400,000 Kraft Heinz Foods Co. 4.375 2046 6 1 398,040 419,095
0,000 SichS Fet Food Inc./Simmons Feed 108 465 2029 31 360,000 362,866
3,858,607 4,151,490
- 0.6%
10,000 Centene Corp. 4.250 2027 12 15 9,928 10,511
40,000 Centene Corp. 4.625 2029 12 15 40,000 43,304
270,000 HCA Inc. 5.375 2026 9 1 290,006 305,020
490,000 Tenet Healthcare Corp. 144A 4.625 2028 6 15 490,480 502,863
830,414 861,698
- 2.5%
1,080,000 Cogent Communications Group Inc. 144A 5.375 2022 3 1 1,080,696 1,108,890

260,000 Match Group Holdings Il LLC 144A 5.000 2027 12 15 253,323 272,774

1,375,000 MercadoLibre Inc. 3.125 2031 1 14 1,375,647 1,309,000
280,000 Netflix Inc. 5.875 2028 11 15 277,432 338,792
600,000 Twitter Inc. 144A 3.875 2027 12 15 599,896 628,657

3,586,994 3,658,113
- 0.4%

220,000 Full House Resorts Inc. 144A 8.250 2028 2 15 221,971 234,302

150,000 Hilton Domestic Operating Co. Inc. 144A 5.750 2028 5 1 150,226 161,775

140,000 Wyndham Hotels & Resorts Inc. 144A 4.375 2028 8 15 140,000 141,799

512,197 537,876
- - 0.6%
850,000 BWX Technologies Inc. 144A 4.125 2028 6 30 850,000 860,592
- - 0.3%
440,000 Clark Equipment Co. 144A 5.875 2025 6 1 446,547 465,707
- 5.6%

1,297,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 4.500 2030 8 15 1,257,375 1,321,582

910,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 4.250 2031 2 1 932,470 911,815

2,180,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 4.500 2032 5 1 2,204,636 2,207,250

300,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 5.375 2028 2 1 284,462 315,461

550,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 6.500 2029 2 1 552,920 607,619

570,000 DISH DBS Corp. 7.750 2026 7 1 514,069 629,297

1,520,000 DISH Network Corp. 3.375 2026 8 15 1,433,407 1,464,842
330,000 Sirius XM Radio Inc. 144A 4.125 2030 7 1 330,000 330,260
490,000 Univision Communications Inc. 144A 9.500 2025 5 1 485,947 539,720

7,995,286 8,327,846

- 0.5%
170,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 3.875 2023 3 15 173,072 176,974
425,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 5.450 2043 3 15 373,733 510,591
546,805 687,565
- 0.3%
400,000 CDW LLC/CDW Finance Corp. 3.250 2029 2 15 400,000 393,328
- 2.8%

270,000 Apache Corp. 5.100 2040 9 1 223,593 264,867
50,000 Chesapeake Energy Corp. 144A 5.500 2026 2 1 50,000 52,045
60,000 Chesapeake Energy Corp. 144A 5.875 2029 2 1 60,000 63,600

210,000 Continental Resources Inc. 4.500 2023 4 15 202,234 217,113

320,000 Continental Resources Inc./0K 144A 5.750 2031 1 15 320,000 360,308

1,440,000 EQT Corp. 3.900 2027 10 1 1,358,186 1,468,829
630,000 Occidental Petroleum Corp. 6.125 2031 1 1 630,000 694,611
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$ 284,000 Range Resources Corp. 5.000% 2023 3 15 269,720 289,048
580,000 Range Resources Corp. 4.875 2025 5 15 521,543 574,190
3,635,276 3,984,611
- 1.4%
1,130,000 Ball Corp. 2.875 2030 8 15 1,123,643 1,088,345
800,000 Pactiv LLC 7.950 2025 12 15 779,988 893,154
1,903,631 1,981,499
- 0.3%
400,000 Bausch Health Americas Inc. 144A 9.250 2026 4 1 426,422 442,699
- 2.9%
390,000 E;g;_RiZiZ Midstream LLC/Blue Racer Finance 7.625 2025 12 15 398,947 420,263
625,000 g;?g,RiZEZ Midstream LLC/Blue Racer Finance 6.625 2026 7 15 616,065 643,220
240,000 Cheniere Energy Inc. 144A 4.625 2028 10 15 240,000 249,641
280,000 Cheniere Energy Partners LP 144A 4.000 2031 3 1 280,000 285,410
170,000 EnLink Midstream LLC 144A 5.625 2028 1 15 170,000 164,367
150,000 EQM Midstream Partners LP 144A 6.000 2025 7 1 150,000 161,234
130,000 EQM Midstream Partners LP 144A 6.500 2027 7 1 130,000 141,302
710,000 lgﬁgﬁeszsﬁf;gﬁiepggtgers LP/Targa Resources 5.875 2026 4 15 715,536 743,977
130,000 ;ZE%ﬁefgsﬁfggﬁiepggﬁgers LP/Targa Resources 6.500 2027 7 15 130,000 141,253
590,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 4.650 J2026 7 1 590,773 622,037
40,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 5.300 2030 2 1 39,964 43,416
520,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 6.500 2050 2 1 375,316 561,891
3,836,601 4,178,011
- 0.7%
210,000 CoreCivic Inc. 4.750 2027 10 15 210,548 187,196
120,000 Diversified Healthcare Trust 4.375 2031 3 1 120,000 117,128
450,000 tgg?i;lC‘;";;;ﬁ:e'cégﬁgfelﬁid'"gs LLLP/Ladder 4.250 2027 2 1 450,000 443,740
240,000 Service Properties Trust 5.500 2027 12 15 240,716 253,139
1,021,264 1,001,203
- 0.9%
210,000 IRB Holding Corp. 144A 7.000 2025 6 15 210,000 226,388
290,000 L Brands Inc. 144A 6.875 2025 7 1 294,419 322,030
240,000 Party City Holdings Inc. 144A 8.750 2026 2 15 242,920 247,151
250,000 PetSmart Inc./PetSmart Finance Corp. 144A 4.750 2028 2 15 250,000 256,203
250,000 PetSmart Inc./PetSmart Finance Corp. 144A 7.750 2029 2 15 250,000 271,650
1,247,339 1,323,422
- 1.0%
700,000 Fair lIsaac Corp. 144A 4.000 2028 6 15 700,000 718,235
390,000 Open Text Holdings Inc. 144A 4.125 2030 2 15 390,000 395,328
380,000 Rackspace Technology Global Inc. 144A 3.500 2028 2 15 380,000 365,594
1,470,000 1,479,157
- 3.6%
494,000 CommScope Technologies LLC 144A 6.000 2025 6 15 457,114 504,003
350,000 Frontier Communications Corp. 144A 5.875 2027 10 15 350,000 371,000
170,000 Frontier Communications Corp. 144A 5.000 2028 5 1 170,000 173,024
700,000 Level 3 Financing Inc. 144A 3.625 2029 1 15 694,870 678,125
620,000 Lumen Technologies Inc. 144A 4.500 2029 1 15 620,000 604,984
490,000 Sprint Capital Corp. 6.875 2028 11 15 483,932 617,587
200,000  Sprint Corp. 7.875 2023 9 15 205,222 228,532
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430,000 Switch Ltd. 144A 3.750% 2028 9 15 430,000 423,152
70,000 T-Mobile USA Inc. 4.000 2022 4 15 70,975 71,707
300,000 T-Mobile USA Inc. 2.625 2029 2 15 300,000 291,312
230,000 T-Mobile USA Inc. 2.875 2031 2 15 230,000 222,295
1,136,000 Verizon Communications Inc. 144A 1.680 2030 10 30 1,137,072 1,053,088
5,149,185 5,238,809
56,668,959 59,403,633
130,091,561 134,986,838
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
290 Targa Resources Corp. PIK 304,500 307,704
304,500 307,704
304,500 307,704
-1.7% "~
- 1.7%
- 0.9%
400,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. Initial Term 4.750 2027 10 20 396,295 420,600
448,500 Jetblue Airways Corp. Term 6.250 2024 6 17 447,255 459,993
440,000 Mileage Plus Holdings LLC Initial Term 6.250 2027 6 21 432,118 468,224
1,275,668 1,348,817
- 0.3%
460,000 -:-2?.;5 US Petrochem LLC 2026 Tranche B Dollar 3.250 2026 1 29 460,193 459,353
- 0.2%
340,000 RCL Term 2.500 2022 4 5 326,472 321,016
- 0.3%
370,000 Petshart LLC Initial Term # 0,000 2028 2 12 366,375 369,945
2,428,708 2,499,131
2,428,708 2,499,131
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- 1.5%
- 1.5%
17,372  Legg Mason US$ Accumulating Share Fund 1,942,799 2,145,246
1,942,799 2,145,246
1,942,799 2,145,246
ETF - 1.9%
- 1.9%
100,000 SPDR Bloomberg Barclays Short Term High Yield 2,532,558 2,733,000
Bond ETF
2,532,558 2,733,000
ETF 2,532,558 2,733,000
- 98.5% 137,300,126 142,671,919
- 1.5% 2,188,791
- 100.0% 144,860,710
144A 1933 144A
ETF
MTN
PIK
2021 31
- 2021 31
Q
# 2021 31
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2021 4 12 UBS AG AUD 161,376  USD 124,000 1,081
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International BRL 5,790,400 USD 1,000,000 (25,391)
Morgan Stanley & Co.
2021 4 12 Intgrnationalyplc BRL 6,149,000  USD 1,100,000 11,106
Morgan Stanley & Co.
2021 4 12 Intgrnationalyplc BRL 7,529,080  USD 1,300,000 (33,285)
2021 5 18 Citibank, N.A. EUR 2,843,918 USD 3,430,952 85,084
2021 5 18 Goldman Sachs International EUR 148,721  USD 180,884 5,914
2021 5 18 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N_A. EUR 4,399,785  USD 5,333,023 156,680
2021 5 18 UBS AG EUR 113,529  USD 136,832 3,264
2021 5 18 Citibank, N.A. GBP 592,884  USD 823,641 5,517
2021 5 18 Citibank, N.A. GBP 2,087,097 USD 2,861,164 (18,837)
2021 4 12 UBS AG GBP 69,730  USD 97,000 790
2021 5 18 UBS AG GBP 1,296,434  USD 1,777,436 (11,523)
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International IDR  7,925,500,000 USD 550,000 4,837
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International IDR 14,573,400,000 USD 1,000,000 (2,446)
2021 4 12 UBS AG JPY 64,881,510 USD 600,000 12,761
2021 4 12 UBS AG JPY 18,816,875  USD 170,000 (311)
2021 4 12 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 17,101,988 USD 810,000 (24,756)
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International RUB 58,981,577  USD 790,000 10,241
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International RUB 29,022,728 USD 380,000 (3,692)
2021 4 12 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N_A. TRY 24,735,233  USD 3,230,000 268,729
2021 4 12 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N_A. TRY 11,279,250 USD 1,350,000 (338)
2021 4 12 UBS AG ZAR 1,021,011 USD 67,000 (2,032)
443,393
2021 4 12 UBS AG AUD 2,448,327  USD 1,934,466 (69,580)
2021 4 12 TOrga” Stanley & Co. BRL 223,031,227  USD 40,368,826 (873,411)
nternational plc
2021 5 18 Citibank, N.A. EUR 260,000 USD 305,610 280
2021 5 18 Citibank, N.A. EUR 280,000 USD 338,950 (9,530)
2021 4 19 Goldman Sachs International EUR 10,736  USD 13,203 (580)
2021 4 12 UBS AG GBP 993,643  USD 1,396,338 (25,354)
2021 5 18 UBS AG GBP 1,150,000 USD 1,590,887 (3,992)
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International IDR 360,625,809,000 USD 25,284,008 (478,001)
2021 4 12 UBS AG JPY 1,208,932,032  USD 11,504,161 (562,173)
2021 4 12 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 205,493,166  USD 9,857,254 172,965
2021 4 12 Goldman Sachs International RUB  1,118,968,854  USD 14,903,330 (110,129)
2021 4 12 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. TRY 144,983,753  USD 20,112,622 (2,755,348)
2021 4 12 UBS AG ZAR 10,278,056  USD 691,082 3,832
(4,711,021)

170/345

(4,267,628)



AUD
BRL
EUR
GBP
IDR
JPY
MXN
RUB
TRY
uSsD
ZAR

171/345

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Mareh 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Aszgels
Investments in securities, at fair value (cost $135,357.327) £ 140,526,673
Affiliated imestments, at fair value (cost 51,942,799 2,145,246
Cash equivalens 4,353,215
Foreign currency, at fair value (cost $1,228 344) 1,230,345
Drue from broker 2302877
Receivable for investments sold 3,035,020
Imterest receivable 1.775 876
Unrealized gain on forwarnd foreign currency contracts 743,081
Dividends receivable 5,236
Orther assets and receivables 312,199
Total assets 156,430,268
Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts 5,010,709
Payable for investments purchased 4,939,891
Redemptions payable 135,264
Accrued distributor fees 612,759
Agcrued management fees 536,192
Accrued expenses 334,743
Total liabilities 11,569,558
Met assels attrnibutable to redeemable unitholders §  144860,710
BRL Class RUE Class
§37,215,300018,579,125 units §  2.003 SI3814.138/4312,280mmits § 3203
JBY Class TEY Class
$10,705,990/180,103 units ~ $ 59.444 §15,639,017/7,755,197 units~ § 2017
GEP Class ZAR Class
£1,288 B33/137,410 units 5§ 9330 S627,965/ 187,807 units F 0000 334
USD Class MXN Class
$30,875,281/4,398,938 mnits~ $ 7.019 $9,185,854/1 844,532 units 3 4.980
IDR Class AUD Class

L]

$23,688,468/5, 286,489 units 4.481 §1,819 864/343,641 units b 3.230

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment Income

Interest (net of foreign tax withholdings $5,954) g 7,550,434
Dividends {net of foreign tax withholdings $50,271) 122,536
Total mvestment incame 1672970
Expenses
Drigtri butor fees 1,224,663
Management fees 1,071,580
Protfessional 132,461
Custody 131,564
Adminigtrative, accounting, and transfer agent 121,818
Agent company fees 76,541
Trustee fees 12,308
Loan servicing 9,499
Other 85,480
Total expenses 2865914
Net irvestment ncome 4. 807,056

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency
translation/transactions and derivative contracts

Net realized gain (loss)
Investments (3,817,296)
Foreigm currency ransactions 124 435
Forward foreign currency contracts { G, 10 2000
Net realized (loss) (12,802,261)
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Investments 26,507,728
Foreign currency translation (B.164)
Affiliated investment companies 202,447
Forward foreign currency contracts 10,926,770
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 37.628,781
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on irvestments, foreign currency
translation/transactions and derivative contracts 24.826,520
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations § 20633576

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations

Met investment incomse g 4,807,056

Net realized (loss) (12,802,261)

MNet change in unrealized gain (loss) 37.628,781
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 29633576

From distributions to unitholders

BRL Class (4,511,783)
IPY Class {662,574
GEP Class (99,453)
USD Class (2,552,547
IDR Class {2.641,000)
RUB Class (2,158,978)
TEY Class (3,139,799
ZAR Class (73817)
MXN Class (913,836)
AUD Class {124,161)

Total distributions (16,877.948)

From participant transactions

Met (decrease ) in net assets resulting from participant transactions {Note 93 (% B5T 398)
Net increase in net assets T 2898230

Nel assels

Beginning of year 141,962 480

End of year £ 144860710

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
17
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

WA High Income Corporate Bond ( Multi-Currency ) Fund (the “Fumd ™y was formed on October 4,
2010 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), a unit trust established by a trust
deed under the Trusts Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and registered imder the Mutual
Funds Law of the Cayvman Islands. The Trust is structured as an umbrella unit tust, which allows it
o create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and Labilities of each sub-trost. As
of March 31, 2021, there were 10 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds. Western Asset
Management Company Limited (*WAMUCL") is the Trust's Manager Western Asset Managememt
Company, LLC ("WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management Company, Western
Asset Management Company Pre. Ltd ("Western Asset Singapore™), Western Asset Management
Company Ll ("Western Asset Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distnbuidora de
Titulos & Valores Mobilidrios Limitada (“Western Asset Brazil”), and Western Asset Management
Company Pty. Ltd. (*Western Asset Melboume™) are the sub-invesiment managers to the Fund
(collectively the “Tivestment Manager™), BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited is
administrator and trustee to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon, a wholly-cwned subsidiary
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian and sub-administrator to the Fund.
The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch) is the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund.
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley PB Secunities Co. Ltd. (Japan) is Agent Compamy and Distributor
to the Fund

The imvestment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide unitholders with a long-term total
refurn consisting of income and capital gaing throngh a diversified portfolio of investments mainly
consisting of global corporate bonds, including high yield bonds and bonds of emenging markets
issiers. The Fund may also invest in securities or asset classes that are outside traditional high
yield or emenging markets benchmarks, such as non-agency mortgage-backed securities, preferred
secunties and subordinated secunues, The Fund offers multiple hedged classes.

At March 31, 2021, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 98% of the Fund's units
ontstanding. The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unitholder.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basiz of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Undted States of America (“US.
CGAAFT), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accomnung. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as eamed and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Finanecial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") A ccounting Standards Codification 946, Financial
Services — Investment Companies.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with US. GAAP, requires management 1o
miake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and hakbilites, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amouns
of increazes and decréases in net assets from operations durng the reporting period. Actmal resulis
conld differ from those estimates,

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency

Cagh equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
mstimtions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair
value,

The Fund considers all highly liquid investments with a matunty of three months or less when
purchazed 1o be cash equivalents. Cash held in banks penodically éxceeds the Fedeml Deposit
Insurance Corporation's ("FDIC") insurance coverage of 230,000, and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit sk related to amounts in excess of the FDIC insurance coverage.

Due to/from Broker

The Fund records restricted cash, if any, on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities within “Due
from Broker” which represents balances required by brokers for collateral on certain derivative
positions. “Due to Broker” may include resmricted cash and cash held with brokers. Due to/from
Broker 15 reported on a net=by-counterparty basis as there 15 a valid nght to offset with each of the
brokers. The Fund contimally monitors the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which
it comducts business.

Seeurity Transactions and Investment [neome

Security transactions are accounted for as of trade date. The cost of securities delivered and the net
giin or loss on securities sold are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Interest income
earned on securities is recorded net of applicable withholding taxes on the accrual basis. Interest
income incliudes aceretion of discounts and amontization of premiums which are recorded using the
effective yield method. To the extent any issuer defaults or a credit event occurs that impacts the
issner, the Fund may halt any additional interest income accruals and consider the realizability of
imterest accrued up to the date of default or credit event. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date net of apphcable withholding txes,

Funetional and Presentation Currency

Items meluded i the Fund's financial statements are measured nsmg the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valueations
of the units are effected and denominated in the US. Dollars (“USD™).
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Foreign Currency Translatien Transactions

Invesmment securities and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inkto USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and
sales of investment securities, income and expense items, and issuance and redemptions of units
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD amountz based upon prevailing exchange
rates on the regpective dates of such tmnsactions.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the résults of operations resulting from flucations in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctnations ansing from changes in market prices
of securities held. Such fluctations are included within the net realized and unrealized gain or loss
an imvestrments on the Statement of Operations.

Net realized foreign exchange gaing or losses arige from sales of foreign currencies, including
exchange gang and loszes on the setlement of forward foreign currency contracts, CUrmency gams or
Insses realized between the trade and settlement dates on securities transactions, and the difference
between the amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes recorded on the Fund's
books and the USD equivalent of the amounts actmally received or paid. Net unrealized foreign
exchange gaing or losses anse from changes in the fair values of assets and Lhabtahities, other than
investments in securities and derivative contracts, on the date of valuation, resulting from changes
in exchange rates.

Certain foreign secunty and currency transactions may wwvolve considerations and risks not typacally
associated with those of USD denominated transactions as a result of, among other factors, the
possibility of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulation of foreign securities markets
and the possibility of political or economic instability.

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements

The Fand intends to conduct its affairs 2o that it will notbe deemed 1o be engaged in trade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “efectively connected” with a ULS.
trade or business carried on by the Fumd. Effectively connected income is subject o US. federal
income tax at the graduated rates applicable to US. domestic corporations. Certain categories of
income that are not “effectively connected” but are derived from ULS, sources, including dividends
and interest income, are subject toa US, tax of tharty percent. However, undeér the portfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended
March 31, 2021, interest earned by the Fund gualifies under the portfolio interest exemption

The Fumd is subject to the authoritative gnidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax pogition is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Income Taxes {Continued)

for all open tax years and has concluded that az of March 31, 2021, there are no uncertain tax
positions that would require financial statemment recogmition or disclosure. The Fund’s policy is to
recognize interest and penalties, iF any, related to uncertain tax positions 45 a component of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Fund did not recognize any intérest of penalties
for uncertain ax pogitions. There are currently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class™ and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers a Bragilian Real (“BRL”) Class, Japanese Yon (“JPY"") Class, British Pound (“"GBP™)
Class, United States Dollar (*USD™) Class, Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR™) Class, Russian Ruble
(“RUB™) Class, Turkish Lira (“TEY"") Clazs, Sowth African Rand (“ZAR™) Class, Mexican Peso
(“MXN") Class, and Australian Dollar (“AUD™) Class (each, except the USD Class, is a “Hedged
Class™)y. The BRL Class, USD Class, IDR Class, RUB Class, TRY Class, ZAR Class and the MXN
Class are demominated in USD, the GBP Class in GBPE, the JPY Class in JPY and the AUD Class in
AUD {each a “Denomination Currency™), in which issnances, redemptions, and valuation of units
are effected and in which units are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant
“Dealing Day”. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open
for business in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman [slandz and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Stock Exchange are open for trading. Issuances and redemptions of Fund units are
made on such days, based upon the closing net asset value. A sales charge of up to 3.5% of the net
asset value may be charged and retained, by the Distributor. For the year ended March 31 2021, the
Distrbutor has waived the sales charge.

TheTrustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund’s units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period
when it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the
Fund's net assets, There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2021

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gaing, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gaing and losses are allocated on a daily basgis 1o
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevam
Class of units any applicable gains, loszes and expenses generated by hedging transactions with
respect to such Classes (eg, all costs assocated with hedgng transactions relating to the JPY
Class of units are borne by the JPY Class of units). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains,
losses and expenses generated by hedging non-USD denominated investments to the functional
CUITENCY,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Redemptions Payable

Redemptions are recognized as liabilities when the amoum requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed and determinable. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the
notice or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. Asa
result, redemptions paid after the end of the year but based upon vear end net asset values, are reflected
az redemptions payable on the Statement of Azsets and Liabilities at March 31, 2021, Redemption
notices received for which the USD and unit amoumnts are not fixed remain in capital until the net
asset value used to determine the redemption and unit amounts are determined,

Distributions to Unitholders

Disnibutions from netinvestment income, net realized or unrealized gaing and'or capital are declared
by the Fund on the fifteenth (15" day of each momh. Distribations are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units. Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

The Fund has made a change in accounting principle and adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™} Accounting Standards Update 2017-08 (“ASU 2017-
8™y, Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Delbt Securities. ASU 2017-08 shortens the
amortization period for certain callable debt securities held at a premium, specifically, requiring the
premium to be amortized to the earliest call date. Prior to ASLT 201 7-08, premiums on callable debt
securities were generally amortized to mamety date. ASU 201 7-08 is intended to more closely align
the amortization period with the expectations incorporated into the market pacing on the underying
security. ASLU 2017-08 does not reguire an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the
discount continues to be amortized to maturity date. Upon evaluation, the Fund has concluded that
the change in accounting principle does not materially impact the financial statement amounts.

i Waluation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the fair value ofits investments each Dealing Day.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authonty to a pricing commattee governed by the
Investment Manager to determine the value of the Fund’s investments each Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies nsed to valne the Fund’s investments.

The Fund uses both the income and market approaches to establish the fair value of its imvestments.
Use of particular techniques and inputs may vary over ime based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evolve,

The Investment Manager considers pricing technigques it deems relevamt and appropriate when
making fair value determinations, When determining the reliability of third party pricing information
for investments owned by the Fund, the Investment Manager, among other things, conducts due
diligence reviews of pricing vendors, monitors the daily change in prices, and reviews transaclions
among market participants. In addition, prices which change from the prior day by greater than a

[
(]
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3 Valuation (Continued)

pre-established threshold will be verified against additional pricing sources, when available, or by
evaluation of verifiable changes to the model inputs that impacted the resulting fair value.

Exchange traded opticns, warrants, and publicly traded US. and non-ULS. equity securities are
generally valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported sale price on, the exchange or
market on which such securities are traded, as of the close of business on the day the securities are
being valued or, lacking any sales, at the last available bid price. Fumres contracis are valued at the
Iazt settlement price at the eénd of each day on the board of trade or exchange upon which they are
traded.

Fixed-income securities, including short-term securities purchased with more than 60 days left to
maturity, are generally valned at prices obtained from one or more pricing vendors. Vendors value
such securities based on one or more inputs described in the following table, The table provides
examples of inputs that are commonly relevant for valwing paricular classes of fixed-income
gecurities, in which the Fund iz authorized to invest. However, these classi fications are not exclusive,
and any of the inputs may be used to value any other class of fixed-income security.

Fixed-lncome class and Derivatives Examples of inputs

All All benchmark vields, transactions, bids, offers,
quotations from dealers and electronic trading
syslems, spreads and other relationships observed

in the markets among comparable securities; and
propoetary pricing models ssch as vield measures
calenlated using factors such as cash flows, financial
or collateral pedommance and other reference data
{eollectively meferred 1o as “standard inputs™).

Corporate bonds and notes Standard inputs and new issee daia.
Bonds and noetes of government and government Standard inputs.
ApENcies

Mot gage-backed and azset-backed obligations Sandand inputs, prepayment information, defanlt
rates, delinqueney and loss assumptions, collateral
characteristics, coedit enhancements and specific
deal information.

Stmctured products {including Interest Onby Standand inputs, plus new izse data, monthly

and Prncipal oty secunties and Collateralizned payment information and collateral pedformance.
Mongage and Collateralized Debt Obligations)

Loanz, loan participations and loan assignments Transactions, bids, offers, and quotations from
dealers,
Student loans Standard inputs including the weighted average life
of the loans.
23
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3 Valuation (Continued)

Fixed-income class and Derivatives Examples of inputs

Swaps and other dervatives Standand inputs and interest rate curves, intenest
rate volatilities, credit spreads and recovery rates on
the underlying reference securities, index spreads.
foreign exchange gpot and forward curves, and

foreign exchange volatilities,

Where the Investment Manager deems it appropriate to do so (such as when vendor prices are
unavailable or not deemed to be representative), fixed income secunties will be valued in good faith
at the mean quoted bid and asked prices that are reasomably and timely available or at prices for
securities of comparable maturity, quality and type.

Short-term securities purchased within 60 days to maturity are valued at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value,

Securities and investments for which representative market quotations are not readily available or
are considered unreliable are fair valued in good faith by the Investment Manager. Various inputs
may be reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a secunty's fair value. These inputs
include, but are not limited to, the type and cost of the secunty, contracmal or legal restnictions
on resale of the security; relevant financial or business developmemts of the issuer, actively traded
similar or related securities; conversion or exchange rights on the security; related corporate actions;
gignificant events oceurrng after the close of trading in the securty; and changes in overall market
conditons. Fair valuations and valuations of imvestments that are mot actively trading imolve
Judgment and may differ materially from valuations that would have been used had greater markes
activity occurred

If third party evaluated vendor pricing is neither available nor deemed to be indicative of fair value,
the Imvestment Manager may elect to obtain indicative market quotations (“broker quotes™) directly
from a broker-dealer. Indicative market quotations are typically received from established market
participants, The Imvestment Manager has requested transparency to view the underlying inputs
which support these market quotations. When transparency o the underlying inputs is recetved from
the broker then the secunty may be considered Level 2 of the far value hierarchy if the inputs are
observable. If the inputs are not transparent or are found to be unobservable, then the securities are
categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

If broker quotations are mot received as of the valuation date, the most recent available broker
quotation(s) may bé nsed However, adjustments are made 1o the most récent broker quotation(s)
based on interpolated changes in the yields of associated benchmark secunties from the date upon
which the broker quotation was received to the valuation date. Typically, benchmark securities are
comprised of certain treasury securities with standard maturities. Specifically, the interpolated
change in the yield 1z calonlated wsing an interpolation factor which measures the duration of the
security being priced versus the duration of the benchmark securities with durations immediately
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March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3 Valuation (Continued)

greater than and less than the security being priced. The interpolated vield change is then applied to
the duration of the security to caleulate the implied change in price.

Over-the-counter financial denvative instruments, such as forward foreign currency comtracts,
options contracts, Swapions conracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors, These contracts
are normally valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending
on the product and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by a pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing
models. The pricing models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
details, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

Cemtrally cleared swaps transacted on a multilateral or wade facility platform, such as a registered
exchange, are valued at the daily setlement price determined by the respective exchange. For
centrally cleared credit de fault swaps, the clearing facility requires its members to provide actionable
price levels across complete term structures. These levels along with external third party prices
are used to produce daily settlement prices. Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are valued using
a pncing model that references the underdying rates including the overmight index swap rate and
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") forward rate to produce the daily settlement price. These
securities are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Investments in a collective ivestment vehacle, mcluding investments in imvestment comparnes, are
valued using the net azset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient.

The vanous inputs that are used in deterrmaming the fair value of the Fund's assets and habihines are
summanzed into the broad levels listed below:

o Level | —gquoted prices in active markets for identical investments

& [evel 2 —ather significan observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.)

®  Level 3 —significant unobservable inpumts, including the Imvestment Managers  own
assumplions in determining the fair value of amwvestments. Level 3 fair value
technigues include (1) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment
and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumphions and default rate assamptions, and (i) the sohctation of valwations
from third parties (typically, broker-dealers) Third-party valuation providers often
utilize proprietary models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment
and the application of vanous assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions and defanlt rate assumptions.
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3 Valuation (Continued)

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
in those securities.

The following is a summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund’s
assets and labilities carried at fair value:

Acssely
Other
Significant Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) iLevel 2) {Level 3) Total
Notes and Debentures 3 — 5 134,98683% & — 5 134,986,538
Preferred Stock 307,704 - - 307,704
Term Loans (Funded) - 2,459 131 - 2,499,131
Exchange Traded Fund 2,733,000 - = 2,733,040}
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracis — 743,081 - 743,081
Imvestments valied using the
practical expedient - — - 2,145,246
Tidtal g 3040704 8 138720050 % — £ 43415000
Liabili ties
COriler
Significant Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Lewvel ) Total
Forward Forcign Curpency
Contracts -3 — 3 5,010,709 & ] 5,010,709
4, Investments in AfTiliated Investment Companies

The following table summanzes the Fund's investments in affiliated imvestment companies (the
“Imvestes Fundis)”) as of March 31, 2021, The Fund did not directly pay any management fee or
performance fee to the Imvestes Fundis) for the vear ended March 31, 2021, The Fund did not receave
any distnbutions from the affiliated investment companies during the year ended March 31, 2021

Change in
Fuir Value Unrealized  Fair Value
At March Redemption  Realized Gauin At Muarch
Iovest ment 31, 2020 Purchases Proceeds Gain (Loss) 31,2021
Thegg Mason US3
AcurnlatingStareFundd_____ — 31842799 =3 — 1 o7 3 2es%e
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4, Ivestments in Affiliated Investment Companies (Continued)

Legg Mason USS Accumulating Share Fund — The inve stment objective of the Fund is to maximize
total remeen through income and capital appreciation. The Fund imvests at all times at least two-
thirds of its Total Asset Value in corporate debt securities and debt secunities issued by supranational
organizations that are denominated in U3, Dollars, Japanese Yen, Euro, Pound Sterling, and a
varety of other currencies, and listed or traded on Regulated Markets. The sub-investment managérs
will only purchase investments that are rated at least investment grade by a nationally recogmzed
statistical rating organization or, if unrated, deemed by the relevant sub-investment manager to be of
comparable quality. Redemption is permitted daily.

5 Loans, Loan Participations and Loan Assignments

The Fund may acquire loans, by acting as a member of the original lending syndicate of the loans
or through an assignment from another lender, and may also purchase loan participations (ie.,
participation imerests in other lenders' portions of loans). The underdying portfolio may also include
loanz, loan participations and other types of loans, melnding brdge loans and debior-in-possession
facilities.

Investments in loans and loan participations may subject the Fund to hiquidity risk. Loans and loan
participations may be transferable among financial institutions, but may not kave the liquidity of
conventional debt securities and are often subject to restrictions on resale, such as the need for the
consent of the lead or agent bank of the loan or the borrower, thereby making them potentially
illigquid.

Certain of the loan participations or assignments acquired by the Fund may involve unfunded
commitments of the lenders or revolving credit facilities under which a borrower may from tme
to time borrow and repay amounts up to the maximum amount of the facility. In such cases, the
Fund would have an obligation to advance its portion of such additional borrowings upon the terms
specified in the loan documentation. Such an obligation may have the effect of requinng the Fund 1o
increase its imvestment in a company at a time when it might not be desirable to do so, including at
a time when the companys financial condition makes it unlikely that such amounts will be repaid.

At March 31, 2021, the Fund did not have any unfinded loan commitments.

6. Payment-In-Kind Securities

The Fund may imvest in payment-in-kind securities (“PIK™). PIKs give the issuer the option at each
interest payment date of making interest payments in either cash or additional debt secunties. Those
additional debt securities usually have the same tenms, including maturity dates, interest rates, and
aggociated nsks az the original bondz. The daily market quotations of the onginal bonds may include
the accrwed interest and require a pro ata adjustment from the mrealized gain or logs on investments
to interest receivable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

P
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. Payment-In-Kind Securities (Continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2021, with respect to in-kind payments from PIK securities, the Fund
received 339,512, or 0.52% of total investment income. This amount is included within interest

mcome on the Statement of Operations.

7 Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign currency contract 1o hedge against foreign currency
exchange rate risk on its non-USD denomimated securities and units or to facilitate setilement of
a foreign currency denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract i an
agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency ata set price with delivery and setdement
at a futnre date. The contract is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the
Fund as an unrealized gain or loss. When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, through
either delivery of the currencies or offset by entering into another forward foreign currency contract,
the Fund recognizes a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the tme it was opened and the value of the contract at the time it iz closed

Forward foreign currency contracts involve elements of market risk inexcess of the amounts reflected
o the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underlying the forward foreign currency contract. Risks may also arise upon
entering into these contracts from the potential inability of the counterparties to meet the terms of
their contrcts.

.3 Charges and Fees

Ivestment Manager Fee
The Irvestment Manager's fee 12 accrued daily and payable quarterly in amrears at an annual rate of
0.70% of the average daily net assets of the Fund

Trusice Fee
The Trustee fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmel rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $15 000 per year

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in armears at an anmal rate of 0.02% on
the first 53 billion or less, 0.0125% on the next 1.5 billion and 0.0050% on the amount over $4.5
billion of the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of 345 000 per vear.

Rezistrar and Transler Agent Fee
The annual Registrar and Transfer Agent fee for the Fund is § 10,000, The annual maintenance fee
for each Class 15 $8,400.

Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee is accrued daily and payable quartedy in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of
the average daily net assetg of the Fund.
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. Charges and Fees (Continued)

Agent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is accmed daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmal rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

%, Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Year Ended March 31, 2021

BRL JPY GRP LISIx
Units Amouni Units Amount Unifs Amount Units Amount
Units isswed W0 ARE & 2032956 13514 & 816,002 14316 & 118,703 G14.368 § 4363 980
Units nedeemed {1 200718 (2,622.207) {43,608  (2.661.164) (179239 (1,572,914} (3003 G 30,7590
Met increase
{decrense) (402300 5 (SRDIS1) (300055 § (1.845.063) (164,523) & (1, 454.011% 310334 § 2 HEL190
1D RUB TRY FAR
Units Amonimt Units Amm oot Units Amount Umits Amount
LUnits Issued 163,633 & T30.526 450,019 § 1,507,993 75T S 452790 52807 % 17 AT
Units redeemnioed (63634 (2848 147) (0800 (A2 (LEBETT0) (4328792 {158,619 (4592 58)
et (decrease) 4TG0 & (217.623) 290,751 §  (9R4.259)  (LTT6.223) & (3877042 {105 312) § (234 783}
ANN ALUD Total
Units Amoumnt Units Am ount Units Amount
Units Tssued 95962 8 46473 42,181 § 159,065 LE14.585 & 1085137
Lnits recleemd (2584T0)  (1,183,696) (54,332) (OB S4E) (5, 580.955) (20,708,770

BNt {decrease) (16L5081 §  (TIROLY) L1510 8 (2194800 (29750500 § (RB5TIE)

10, Finaneial Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Selected Per Unit Data BRL _ JPY  GBF  USD = IDR
et assel value, beginning of year £ 20258 M3 % T491 5§ A383 5 3.5%34
et imeestment income’” (.067 1.935 0.28% 0216 0.137
et realized and unrealized gain (loss) 0.151 f.801 2.067 1.020 1.2%0
Total income from investment operations 0218 8.736 2356 1.236 1.427
Distributions to unitholders (0. 240) (3.395) (0.467) (0500 {0480}
et asset value, end of year § 20035 944 5 G38085 70193 448
Total retum %45 10.77 16,15 3145 19.35 4038
Ratios o Average Net Assels

Expenses % 188 1.5% 185 188 185
et imestment income % 317 N 336 09 304
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10. Finaneial Highlights (Continued)
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Selected Per Unit Data RUB TRY ZAR MXN AUD
et azeet value, beginning of year §F 2905 3 20150 % X492 8 38T 8 33816
et imvestment income!? 0104 0071 0,052 0142 0.150
Net mealized and unrealized gain {loss) 0672 0.152 1.116 1.491 1.655
Total income from investment operations 0.776 0.223 1.208 1.633 1805
Distnbutions to nnitholders {0.478) (0.356) {0,356} (DA% {0345}
Net asset value, end of vear £ 33X 5 2017 5 3344 5 4980 %5 5206
Total redum %5 26.71 10.37 45 48 42 67 4705
Ratios to Average Net Assels

Expenses % 1.86 1.58 1.86 185 1.85
Net investment income %% 316 322 311 303 303

A Net mvestment income per unit has been caloulated based upon average units cutstanding for the vear

o Total return cabeulation is based on the valoe of a sing be il of participation outstanding throughot the pe,
It represents the percentage change in the et asset value per undt between the beginning and end of dee year,
exchuiding distributions o unitholders,

The above ratios are calculated for the participating units as a whole, Anindividual unitholder’s total
return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit ransactions.

11. Derivative [nstruments

The Fund may transact in a vanety of denvative instruments including forwards for rading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange risk, The fair value of thege
derivative instruments is included as a separate ling item within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities by contract type.

The following tables provide information about the fair values and the location of derivatives
not acconnted for as hedging instruments which are included within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities at March 31, 2021 and are grouped by derivative type:

Assel
Derivatives!
Forelgn

Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 743,081
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11. Derivative [nstruments (Continued)
Liahility
Dertvatives”
Foreign
Exchange Risk
Foraard Foreign Currency Contracts b 5,010,709

A Generally, the kcation for asset derivatives i receivables and unrealized gain and for liability derfoatives i payvables
and umrealized (bossh

The following tables provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund's Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2021, The first table provides additional detail aboum
the amounts and sources of gaing or losses realized on derivatives dunng the yvear The second
table provides additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the
Fund’s derivatives during the year The realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivatives are
presented a2 separate ling items on the Statement of Operations

Amrount of
Realized
{ L)
on Derivatives
Recognized
Foreign

Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Coniracts 5 (9.1 08, 400

Change in
Unreatized
Lrain | Loss)
om Dherivatives
Hecognized
Forelgn
Exchange Risk
Forward Forcign Currency Coniracts £ 10,926,770
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11. Derivative Instruments (Continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2020 the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund waz as follows:

Monthly

Average

Values
Forward Currency Contracts to Deliver!® £ (135320.673)
Forward Curreney Contracts to Recepe™ 245432944

A This ameound, comverted o presentational currency where applicable, cormesponds io the representalve averape
payabile valoe at settlement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund,

S This amount, comverted to presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representat ve average
receivable valie al seitlement dase baséd on the monthly activity of the Fand,

1% Offsetting Assets amnd Liabilities

By using dervative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the comnterparty’s credit nsk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by
the value of any collateral received The Fund’s exposure 1o credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inherent in such transactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund minimizes connterparty credit sk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedurnes, executing master neming arrangements,
and managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty
credit sk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to appropriately
reflect the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market
guotes received from counterparties or other market participants since these quotes may not fully
reflect the credit risk of the counterparties to the denvative instruments

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset denvative assets and habilities that
are subject to netting arrangements within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Information is
presented below for all derivative assets and liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master
Netting Agreement (“MNA").

Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities a1 March 31, 2021

Amounts Presented in the Statement
of Assets amd Liabilities

Assels Lintsilities
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 743,081 3 50040, 709
Total denvative azsets and lisbilities inthe Statement of Assets &
Lisbilities subject 1o a MNA 5 T43.081 £ 5000, 700
32
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a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

12. Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Derivative Assets and Collateral Received
Gaross
Amonnis of
Assets Presented
inthe Statement

of Assels and Fimancial Cash Recelved
Liabili ties [ostroment ax Collateral Net Amonnt™
Citibank, N.AS 3 L8815 (28,367) & — 3 62,514
Goldmean Sachs

International® 20,992 {20,562 — —
JPMorgan Chase

Bank, M.A, & 208,374 (50E, 374 - —
Morgan Stanley & Co.

Intemational ple™ 11,106 (11,106} — -
UBS AGH 21,728 {21,728} _— ar
Total 5 43,081 & (680,567 & — 5 62,514
A Wet amount represents the net amount receivable from the counterparty in the event of defanlt
& Orver the Counter.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged
Gross
Amounis of
Liabili ties
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
Liabilities Instrament as Collateral Net Amount®
Citibank, N.A.® 4 28,367 8 (2%.367) & — 5 —
Goldman Sache

Intermational ™ 620,239 {20,992} — 599,247
JPMorgan Chase

Bank, N.A, @ 2,780,442 {598,374} —_ 2,182,058
Morgan Stanley & Co.

Intermational ple' DO, 60 {11,104} i £95 590
UBS AGW 674,965 {21.728) — 653,237
Total b 5010708 % (680.567) 5 — % 4,330,142

ay

@ Orver the Counter,

i
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13 Fund Investment Risks
Lower-Rated Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in lower-rated securities, which are commonty referred to as “junk bonds" or
“ligh yield” bonds. Lower-rated secuntes reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the 1ssuer or in general economic conditions, oran unanticipated fse in inteérest
rates, may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Additionally,
lower-rated securities are generally less liquid than higher-rated securities. The inability or perceived
mabality of issuers o make tmely payments of interest and poncpal and limitatons in hqudity
would likely make the values of securities held by the Fund more volatile and could limit the Fund's
ahility 1o gell its securities at prices approximating the values placed on such securities.

Invesmment in Emerging Market [ssuers

The Fund may invest in emerging market instrnuments which are subject to certain credit and market
risks. The securities and currency markets of emerzing market countries are generally smaller, less
developed, less Lgud and more volatile than the securities and currency markets of the United States
and other developed markets. Disclosure and regulatory standards in many respects are less stringent
than in other developed markets. There also may be a lower level of monitoring and regulation of
securities markets in emerging market countries and the activities of imvestors in such markets and
enforcement of existing regulations may be extremely limited. Political and economic structures in
mary of these countries may be in their infancy and developing rapidly, and such countries may lack
the social, political and economic stability charactenstics of more developed countries.

" in Non-ULS, Secuiti

The Fund invests in secunties of non-U S, issuers which present certain special nsks, including those
resulting from fomre political, legal, and economie developments, which could include changes
in currency exchange mtes of exchange control regnlations, expropriation of assets, confiscatory
taxation, nationalization of assets, imposition of withholding or other taxes, adverse changes in
investment capital or exchange control regulations, political changes, diplomatic developments,
difficulty in obtaining and enforcing judgments against non-US. entities, the possible imposition
of the applicable country’s governmental laws or restrictions, and the reduced availability of public
information concerning issuers. Additionally, issuers of non-US. securities are not generally subject
to uniform accounting, auditng and financial reporting standards or other regulatory practices
and requirements comparable 1o those applicable 10 US. igsuers, In the event of nationalization,
exproprigtion or other confiscation of assets, the Fund could lose 115 entire imestment in a securty.

The costs agzociated with ivestment in debt secunties of non-LLS. issuers, including withhol ding
taxes, brokerage commissions and custodial fees, may be higher than those associated with
investment in debt securities of LS. issuers. In addition, non-US. securities transactions may be
subject to difficulties associated with the settlement of such transactions Nom-LULS. markets have
different ¢learance and settlement procedures which in some markets have at times failed 1o keep
pace with the volume of transactions, thereby crealing substantial delays and setilement failures.
Delays in setlement could result in temporary pericds when assets of the Fund are uninvested and
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13 Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Investment in Mon-ULS. Securities {Continmed )

no remum is eamed thereon Setflement failures conld also adversely affect the Fund's performance.
The mabality of the Fund to make imtended secunty purchases due 1o settlement problems could
cansge it fo miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability 1o dispose of a portfolio security due
to settlement problems could result in logses to the Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the
portfolio security.

Sovereign Debt Risk

The Fumd may ivest in sovereign debt instruments which can involve a high degree of risk. The
governmental entity that controls the repayment of sovergign debt may not be able or walling to repay
the principal and/or interest when due in accordance with the terms of the debt A governmental
entity s willingness or ability to repay principal and interest when due may be affected by, among
other factors, its cash flow simation, the extent of its reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign
exchange on the date a payvment is due, the relatnve size of the debt service burden to the ¢conomy
as 4 whole, the governmental entity s policy toward the International Monetary Fund, the political
constraints to which a governmental entity may be subject, and changes in governments and political
systems,

Non-Publicly Traded and Rule 1444 Secunties Rigk

The Fund may invest in non-publicly traded and Rule 144A securities which may imvolve a high
degree of business and financial risk and may resultin substantial losses. These securities may be less
iquid than publicly traded securities, and the Fund may take longer to liguidate these positions than
would be the case for publicly traded secunties, Although these securities may be resold in privately
negotiated teansactions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid
by the Fund. Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the
disclosure and other investor protection requirements that would be applicable if their securities
were publicly raded. Consequently, these securities may be difficult to value

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intended to limit or reduee investment risk, but can also be
expected tolimit or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insufficient to satisfy the liabilities
associated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of units, such amowmnt of the
liabilitiez that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund
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13 Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes
i interest rtes. As nomingl interest rates nse, the value of certain fixed mcome secunes held by
the Fund 15 likely to decrease. A nominal inferest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be more
sensitive 10 changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than secunties with shorter
durations. Duration 1z used pnmanly as 4 measure of the sensitvity of a fixed income'’s market price
to interest rate (i.e., yield) movements.

Liquidity Risk

The Fumd may invest in assets and derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose
of, including securities whose disposition is restricted by securities laws. The effect of liquidity risk
15 particularly pronounced when Llow trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size,
or legal restrictions (including daily price fluctuation limits or “circuit breakers” or an affiliation
with the issuer of a security) limit or prevent the Fund's ability to initiate a transaction, sell assets,
ar unwind derivative positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed to liguidity risk when it
has an obligation to purchase particular securities {for example, as a result of entering info reverse
repurchase agreements, writing a put, or closing out a short position),

Concentration of Eisk

Tothe extent the Fund concentrates i1 investments in one or more countries, the value of the Fumd's
assets will be especially affected by economic, political and other factors affecting such country or
countries, and may fluctuate more widely than the value of a fund that invests m 4 greater number
of countries.

The Fumd may invest in varions derivatives which may present additional fisks and costs that are
different from and, in certain cazes, greater than the nsks amd costs presented by ivesting directly in

securities and other more traditional investments. Following are additional nsk factors concermng
the use of derivatives:

& Manggement Risk: Dervative prodicts are specialized instruments that reqione investment
techniques and risk analyses differemt from those associated with stocks and bonds. The
suceesstil use of derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only
of the underlying instrument but also of the denvative itself) In panticular, the use and complexity
of dervatives requare the mantenance of adequate controls to monitor the transactions entered
into, and the ability to assess the risk that a dertvative adds to the Fund's pontfolio
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13 Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

Derivative Instruments Bisk { Continued)

& Cowrnterparty Credit Risk. The use of denivatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the connterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
ezpecially dunng unisually adverse market conditions. If the counmterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractal remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its contractiel rights.
Counterparty risk is more propounced if a counterparty’s obligations exceed the amount of
collateral held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upen
defanlt by the counterparty, or the termunation value of the mstrument vanes sigmficanily from
the marked-to-market value of the instrument.

o Documentaton Risk: Many derivative instruments have documentation risk. Because the
contract for each over-the-counter derivative transaction is individually negotiated with a specific
cotnterparty, there exists the risk that the parties may interpret contractual terms differantly.
[F that occurs, the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund 1o
enforce its contractual rights may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the
cotnterparty. The Fund, therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtain payments the
Imvestment Manager believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments
may be delayed or made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litigation

14. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contrcts that contain a vasiety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknewn, as this would invelve future claims that may be made against the Fund
that have not yet occurred Based on experience, management is of the view that the nisk of loss
in connection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote;, however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund.

15 Subsequent Events

As of May 27, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, no subsequem
events or transactions had ocenrred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as
presented
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FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT #% RATE DATE COsT YALUE

NOTES AND DEBENTURES - 93.3%
AMGOLA = (2%

Soverelgm - 0.1%

5 IT5000  Angslin Government [ntarnafional Boad 144 B250% May00.2028 3 IT43E2 % 160,390
TOTAL ANGOLA ITA 38T 600 300
ARGENTINA - 2.9%

Electric- 0.4%

630,000 Pampa Energia B4 1444, 7500 Tam24.2027 626,155 513,930
Ofl & Gas- k%

D000 YPFEA 1444 ES00 Fal-18-2005 132N 213,588

BSLTED  YEFEA 14440 4000 Feb-13-2024 118045 A6, 454

1,031,260 0,442
Pipelines = (%%

LA20,000  Transportadors de Gas dad Sur S 1448 .73 May02-2025 1,374,558 1,235,837
ReglonalStateProvines] - 4%

GE0,000  Provinsia de BuenoaAim F02S Mar- 152024 GEL809 240,944

360,000 Provinsia de Cordoba 14440 3000 Tan-01-2027 133,59 12TE800

1,016,455 576,544
Howeregn - (6%

186,198 Anpéntina Republic Govesnma! [alermilional Bond 1000  Ful-09-202% 95, T 60,051

Tio 589 Amgestizne Repoblic Government [nternational Bond\ 0925 Mul-09-3030 407,12 251412

L9130 Amgexkize Republic Goweenmmest Isbarnational Bond\ 0025 Mal-09-2033 939,000 366,970

1432465 ETEA433
TOTAL ARGENTINA SARLA34 4,154,084
BAHARMAS « 0.5%
Lesure Time - 0.5%

TLo000  Silversss Croiss Financa Lid. 1444 7250 Febd 12025 1688 T34 6TE
TOTAL BAHAMAS Ti3684 T4 678
BAHRAIN - 0.2%

Sovereigm - 1%

30,000 Bahmin Goveremant International Bond 1444, E000  Sep-19-2044 146,651 146,534
TOTAL BAHRAIN 246091 146,604
BERMUDA - 5%

Leisure Time = L53%

480,000 WCL Corp. Lnd, 1444 12,330 May-15-2004 4TE0ES 361,040

AB0000  NCL Corp. Lid, 1d4A 10350 Febd 12026 EE0000 562,506

40000 Viking Crudses Lid 1444, 7.000 Fab-15-2072 40,000 438 44

T50,000  Viking Ocean Croises Ship VIE LEd, 1444 4,625 Feb-135-2029 760,583 138,393

L3000 VOO Escrow Lid, 1444 2000 Feb-15-2028 1235979 1,206,408

1481627 §EM 879
TOTAL BERMUDA JAMLEY] 3691879
BRAFIL - 1.0%
Soverdign - 1.0%

1,370,000 Braglizn Govesnment Inbernational Bond 4230 Fag07-2025 1,365,800 1,469,121
‘TOTAL BRAZIL 1,369,900 148680121
CANADA - 3.4%

Environmenial Control = 0L5%
600,000 GFL Emvircnmentsl Ine, 1444 3,730 Ang1-2025 00,000 Ao

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
3
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FRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT & ¥ RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
CANADA {Conti med
Eavironmental Control {Contimued )
5 4800000 GFL Emvirenmental [ne. 1484 5.125% Dec.15.2006 3 450,000 § 505,167
1080000 1,114,084
Machinery=THversified = 0.F%

280,000 ATS Adtomation Tooling Sysdems Inc. 1444 4,135 Diec-13-2028 281,147 imAst
Mining - 0.4%

330,000 Fud Quanhsm Minecils Lid. 1444 6.B75  Od-15.2027 30,000 7601
O & Gas- 0.3%

200,000 MEG Enargy Corp. 1444 1125 Fabd) 12027 1= 0EE 3,109

200,000 MEG Enargy Corp. 14dA 5375 Feba1-203 200,000 200,445

£, 055 503,754
Packaging & Containers - (1%

160,000  Cuascades Inc/Capcadas USA Enc. 1444, 5375 Tan-153-2078 160,000 168,129
Fharmaceuticals - 0.7

400,000 Baasch Health CosIne, 1444 3750 Aog-15-2007 424,087 430,671

5900000 Esisch Halth CoaInc. T84 S000  Jam 302028 Se 00 01,501

104087 1,032,172
Retakl = 0.5%
1,210,000 1011778 BC ULC/Hew Ead Finance Ine. 1444 3500 Feb-l 52079 L2I00% 1,1/, 727
Software - 0%

130,000 Opan Test Corp. 1444 1875 Fab-15:2028 130,000 131,022
TOTAL CANADA 494357 4,972,169
CAYMAN ISLANDS - 8.4%

Adrlines= 1.7%
Hawaitan Brand Infallechaal Property LtdS

450,000 Hawainnhdiles Loyalky Lid, 1444, 5750 [as-20.2026 461,904 47973
Spart ijrlll::,r Cayman Ltd Spint [F Cayman Lid.

LAT0000 1444 2000 Sep-20-2025 [ R L4540
2331887 25207
Diverdied Financksl Services - 0.7
L129.512  Global Adrersft Leasing Co, Lid. FIE 1444, 6500 Sap-15-2004 TTR255 1,083,202
Lndllu.i- 0%

540,000  Maleo Rezorz Finanes Lid. 1448 3375 Dee-(4-2029 240,000 513,437

Sd0 000 MGM China Holdange Lid. 1dda 4. 750 Feb01.2027 H1AE0E &40, 702

T0000  Wysn hacon Lid, 1444 5823 Awng-I6-I018 FErd =] TR Ml

Tro,000  Wysn Micin Lid, 1444 5125 Dwec 152029 6,142 0617

ZETEATS 2,786,789
TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS 5790450 6,392,264
COSTARICA = 0,1%
Hoverelgn - 0.2%

250,000 Costa Rica Sovernment Intarnatsosal Band Jdd4 1000 Ape.Od. 2084 242754 241,276
TOTAL COSTA RICA p-L i | 141,276
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC- 1.3%

Soversgm - 1.3%
1,250,000 Drominican Repoblic International Bond 1444 4.500 Tam-10-2030 12,147 1,260,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT © ¥ RATE DATE COET VALUE

NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
DOMINICAN REFPUBLIC (Continued)

Soverdgn (Continued)
5 a20,000 Dotdnstan Republic [ntarmitional Band 1444 GBSO Jam27.2045 3 E11L575 3 EER.027
1,908,142 1,548,543
TOTAL DOMINICAN REFUBLIC 1,905, 742 1,948,543
ECTADOHR - 6.2%
Soverelgm - (.1%

630,000  Ecusdos Govemmest Inbarnational Bond 14444 o500 fal-31-203% 2¥EATE 00625
TOTAL ECUADOR 198,278 HHALE
EGYFT = 0L9%

Soveregm - 0.9%
SE0000  Epvpt Government Inbamatsoml Bond 1444 MTH 7600 Mar0l-2023 10,000 S 645
680,000 Egypt Government Inbemational Bond MTN 61253 Ha-31-2012 AR 044 G412
1,156,048 1,243,057
TOTAL EGYPT 1,196,046 1,243 4057
EL SALVADOR - (.3%
Boverelgm « 03%

4000000 Bl Sslvador Goversment Inbemationsl Bond 1444 8375 Jam-18-2027 400,000 196, 500
TOTAL EL SAINADOR LU J9GS00
FRANCE = 0L8%

“Telecommunleations - 0.5%

GT0000  Akies France SATFmnce LddA 7375 May01.2026 HESDEZ £A5.200
TOTAL FRANCE AER 06T L ]
GHERMANY - 08
Maching ry-DHversified - (%

ELUR A0 000 Wertical Midos SmbH 4375 Rul-15-2027 50,344 05 189
Pharmaeeuticals - 0.4%

500,000  Cheplapharm Arcneimittel GobEl fddA, £50) Tam. 152008 21077 £13,1R%
TOTAL GERMANY 1 bi | 1, 218.574
GHAMNA - 06%

Soverdgn - (6%

620,000 Ghiha Govemiment Inlermmtional Bond 1444 10750 Oet-14 2030 TA0E6S S48, 500
TOTAL GHANA T BEY 248,900
GUATEMALA - 0%

Soverdgn - 13%

350,000  Custamela Sovernment Bond 1dd4A 4375  Tun<03-2027 g R0 175,002
TOTAL GUATEMALA 248830 I75002
INDONESIA - 1.2%

Eleatric- 0.2%

3500000  Cikerag Lisrinds Tok PT 1444 4950 Sep-14-2026 145800 158,909
Soverdgn - 1.0%

950,000 Indonesia Government Intemational Bond 1.850 Maz-12-2011 LT LY 212,078

400,000  Indonssis Gowsrnment Intamational Bond MTH 1750 Ape.23-2072 404,584 413,253

1,350,000 1,325,329
TOTAL INDONESIA 1,698,802 1,684,258
TRELAND - 1.89%
Drversd fied Financisl Services - 8%
AsrCip Iraland Capital DACAAsrCap Flobal Aviation
1,080,000 “Trast 4 825 Oct-132007 1,064,651 1,163,585

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOTUNT #4 RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continuwed)
IRELAND {Continued)
Media- 3%
3 400,000 Virgin Madin Vesder Fitiuncing Medas IV DAC 1444 S000%  Tal15.207% 3 400,758 3 407,655

Packaging & Contalmers - 0,7%
Ardagh Packagimng Financs FLO Asdagh Holdings

R0, 000 UEA Ine. 1444 000 Fab.15-2025 FINIT2 1,008,596
TOTAL TRELAND TAna sy 124,240
ITALY - G%
Eanks - (L%

Tan000  UniCredit Spa 1444 MTH 135 Ape-0i-2M4 TH000 251,108
TOTAL ITALY 0000 #5108
IVORY COAST - (4%
Sovergm = (4%

205,004 Bvary Cohst Geveramest [nbarnational Band \ 3,750 Dwes-31-2032 183,402 205,393

330,000  Svory Coag Govérnmest Internationad Bond 1444 6125 hun-15-3031 126,504 17,201

1598 540 598

TOTAL IVORY OOAST 2199304 243 204
JAMAICA - 0.3%
Soverdgn - 1.3%

400,000  Jamnaica Gowernmest International Bosd E. 750 Ape-28-2001 414,033 465,404
TOTAL JAMAICA Al4 038 A4

JERSEY CHANNEL ISLANDS - (6%
Awmto Parts & Equipment - 0.1%

o000 Adient Global Heldingz Lid. 1444 4875 Aug-15-1026 238,458 330,382
Diversified Financial Services « 0.4%

EUR ATo000 LHCI FLCFE 4,135 Aug-15-2024 48302 361,782
TOTAL JERSEY CHANNEL ISLANDS Ao Hed) _RR2174
JORDAN = (.21%%

= 2%
250,000 Fopdan Government International Bond 1444 4125 Fn-2%-2028 285315 T HE
TOTAL JORDAN 169315 267,798
KENYA « i 1%
o
0,000 Fanya Government Inbernations] Bord 1444 1.0 Fe-28-202% 115048 315,843
TOTAL KENYA 235 EIEE 5]

LIBERIA - (. 2%
Ledsure Time - 0,2%

FUG 00 Rq‘dmﬁmu Crmisss Lid, T4A 5500  Ape-01-2078 e fekale ] 31,78
TOTAL LIBERIA F10000 31,779
LUNEMBOUREG - 22%

Ol & Gas- d%

SUO 000 UkraparInternatiosal SA 44 5050 Ocd06.2026 508,007 545,241
Packaging & Contaimers - 05%

AEOO00  ARD: Fronanca SA FIE 1d4dA A500  Rin-30u2027 SE0000 Ny
Pharmaeceutbeals - 6%

GEF 0000 CidronAids Finco Sarl 5250 Ape-01-2028 464548 44982
Endo Luxsmbeang Financa Co. I SarlEndo 1S Ine.

370,004 1444, 125 Apr-01-2r29 170,150 imm

215933 S48, M3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT © ¥ RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEHENTURES (Coatinued)
LUNEMBOURG {Continued)
“Telecommunlcations - 67%

5 440,000  ARioa Francs Holding BA 1444 10S00% May-15.2027 % 452331 § 405 361
EUR 468,000 Crystal Almond SARL 4250 Ocl-15-2024 51338 82817
BESEEE 1,058,178
TOTAL LUXEMBOURG ORI 3066885
MEXICO - 3,5%
Banks- 1.3%
1, 7L0000  BEVA Bapcomer SATour 1448 ~ 5125 Tam-18-2033 1LS5E1ES 1, 768 806
EBuilding Materials = 0%
00,000 Coemex SAB da 0V 2700 Jam-11-2023 186,383 204,343
230,000 Camse SAR da TV 1444 7375 hun-05-2027 230,000 260,475
436,38 465,020
Ol & Gas= 20%
1800000 Petrolecs Maxicancos 6,623 Fan-15-2033 1417054 1,727,357
1,200,000 Petrolecs Maxicanos £.825 Tun-13-2038 103,077 1,088,157
243583211 2E16,714
TOTAL MEXICO 4 1959 550340
NETHERLANDS - 1%
Banks - 5%
000 NatWest Markatz WV 1.750  befay-15-2003 &d1 163 95 182
Chemicals - 4%
500,000  Brascem Metherlands Finanos BV 1dd4.4, 4500 Tam-10-202E L VLR 514,541
Electronics - (1.4%
530,000  Senzats Technologie BY 1444, 4000 Ape-13-2029 131978 80,772
Medla = 0 2%
3an000  UPC Holding BV 1444 3500 Jam-15-2028 120,444 140,623
Ofl & Gas- L1%
200,000 Petrcbmg Global Finance BV 5999  Jam.27-2028 195463 20,924
L390,000 Petrobraz Global Fmance BY 5730 Feb01-2029 LE00.838 528,584
2,796,259 3,059,518
Pharmaeeutical s - 4.1%
ELUR L 1B0 000  Tea Pharmacedical Fizanes Notherlazsds [T BV 1125 Oed-15-2024 1,238,785 1,318,329
5,000,000 T Pharmacecs] Fimasos Netbeclasde IT BV 3050 Out01 2026 4251807 45T 6T
&051,352 6,192,001
Betafl - 0.3%

BEUR 380,000  Maxeds DIY Heldisg BV SETS  Oct00-2028 445,453 453,009
TOTAL NETHERLANDS M1 EnAsEE 11, 708.954
NIGERLA - (L6
Soverclgm = (6%

300,000 Migera Fovernment Intarnatiosal Bood 1444, 7875 Feb-16-2032 1147 Wm a5
530,000 Migeria Government Jeternatiosal Boad BTN 6500 Mow-T8.2027 532,290 547,564
243,761 £57,515

TOTAL NIGERLA #4761 BTEE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT o3 RATE DATE COET VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Costlnued)
CINLAN = D.5%,
Soverelgm - 0.5%
i 00,000 Oman Government Internationa] Bond 1444 5625% Haa-17-3028 % 556889 1§ 724,512
TOTAL OMAN SS4.AE0 T24S52
PANANA - (5%
Lefisure Time - (0.5%
180,000  Carnival Cormp. 1ddA 1625 Mar01-2026 151, 564 204,253
40,000  Curnival Corp. 1444 2780 Mar-01-2037 340,000 54,351
731,564 TR AT
TOTAL PAMAMA Ti S TEE614

PARAGUAY - 0, 7%
Soverdgn - L7

Ta0000  Paragany Govesmment International Bond 1444, 5000 Apr-15-2026 18827 247,359
200,000 Parsgaay Govesnment [ebernatioaa] Bond 1444 2739 Jam-29-2033 200,000 192,000
967927 1,039,159
TOTAL PARAGTUAY PE7,927 1,039,359
PERT - 2%
Aoverelgn - 2%

240,000 Peanavian Govesnment International Bond 2.783 Taa23.2031 240,004 20,250
TOTAL PERU 140,004 40,250
SENEGAL - 0.2%

Soverdgn - hI%

HW0000  Senegal Government Interpaticaal Boad 1444 6250 ay-23-2083 280,280 TS0
TOTAL SENEGAL 180,280 1SS0
SOUTHAFRICA - 05%

Su'rﬂ\d.gl - (5%
Foapublis of South Afrcs Gowrnment Internstzanal

A 000 Eond 4573 Apr. 142026 100,639 114,042
Republec of South Africa Government Intematonal

30000 Bond 5630 Bep-TT.2047 484,263 469,212

TES064 B4, 134
TOTAL SOUTH AFRICA RN TH4,154
SPALN - 0.5%
Retadl - 0.5%

ELIE, 500,000  Tendam Brande SALS ~ 5350 Sep15-2024 15679 5T 455
TOTAL SPAIN TEL6TR 657455
EWTTEZERLAND - 0.4%

Banks - 04T

70,000 UBS GrospAG 1448 ~L2 1.000 — ST0,000 £24 953
TOTAL SWTTEZERLAND ST0000 624,959
TURKEY - 3.0%

Banks- 0.T%
Too,000  TC Zirsst Bankasi A5 1444 MTH 3038 May-03-2002 451,421 5,007
390,000 TC Zirke Bankasi AS 144A MTN 5025 Sep.29.2023 160,982 BN M1
1,052,405 1,082, M8
Soverelgm - 1.6%
2.550,000  Turkey Governmeant Infecnaticaal Road 4. 350 Ape. 142025 2,294,189 2313, 778

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT &% RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Costimued)
TURKEY {Continued}
“Telecommunlcations - 7%
5 4300000 Turk Telekomusikampon AS 1448 BBTS% Fab23.2005 3 ATE0E] 3 o 827
TOTAL TURKEY 4 ITLATY 4 387,153
UKRAINE - (.8%
Sovereign - L5%
L 150000  Uoune Government [aternationd Boed 1375 Sep-15-2032 1,150,000 1,156 587
TOTAL UKRAINE 1,120,000 1156587
UNITED KINGDOM - 47%
Banks- Ld4%
200,000 Barcluys Bank FLC 14825 MNoe 2002 100,454 E¥ iR
TH000  Mawes Group PLC~0 E.6ZF —_ T3, 798 T EE
GEP 560,000  Santandar UK Group Holdings FLC 9] 7375 — T8, 718 211,074
1,230,033 1,923, 10
Beverage - (6%
GEP Thad 000 Bdarfon's [saier FLC ~ 2834 Rul-16-303% Bi0415 B0
Chemicals - 1.0%
EUR 1,150,000 INEOS Quatteo Finance 1 FLC 1750 Rl-15-2026 1,423,643 1,375,585
EUR 120,000 INEOS Cruattro Finsnca 1 PLC 1444 31780 Jul-13-2024 143,804 143,581
1,365,443 1,419,566
Entertalmment = 0.5%%
THO,000  Tnbernstional Game Technology PLC 1444 4115 Apr15-2026 770,000 TRE 414
Lezure Time » 7%
GEF B20,000 SagaFLC 3375 May-12-2024 Lo45523 1,074,777
Media- h5%
S20.000  Vinpn Madys Sscured Finance FLC 1444 5500 Mfay-15-202% G000 E57.975
TOTAL UNITED KINGDOM GRS Sy 6. 7T ER A
UNITED STATES - 41.1%
Alrlines - 4.3%%
Amercan Adrlimes Inc/AAdastage Loyulty IP Lid.
T2, 000 1444 S500  Ape-20-2076 121,687 229,350
Amerinan Airlines Inc/AA dvastags Loyalty IF Lid.
190,000 1444 4780 Ape-20-20 150,474 202,502
A0y Dhedts Aar Linss Ine. 3400  Ape.19-2021 38T a2
1,280,000 Delta Air Lines Ing. 1625 Mar-15-2022 123987 1,252 554
230,000  Dedta Adr Lines Ine. 1800 Ape-19-2003 2217 3302
30,000 Dedta Adr Lines Inc. 2900 Oed-28-2004 1188 20931
240,000 Deslta Adr Lins Ine, 7373 Ias.035-2026 238370 b i
1,230,000 Dwefta Air Lines [ng. 1444 1000 befay01-2025 1 224,0% 1,416,256
210,000  Drelts Adr Lines Ine/ShyddElee IP Lad. 1444 4. 750 Oot-20.2028 210851 244
Milmga Fhis Holings LLC/Misage Plios Inbsllachaal
340,000 Fropety Assets Ltd, 1444 6500 Jan-20-2017 EEER-E-] M
L320,000  United Adelines Holings Tnc. 4. 350 Oef-01-2022 1412851 1,546,600
135,000 Umted Adrknes Holdings Inc. So)  Pabl1-2004 115,550 137025
5661403 6,253,148
Apparel - (L5%
Tio000 Hanehmnds oo, 1444 4 875 May-15-2026 717,263 161,661
Amto Manufacimrers - 3.7%%
330,000 Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 5023 lun-16-202% 130,000 156,270
1,350,000 Ford Motor Cosdit Co, LLC 2900 Feb-16-202% 2,533,047 2,440,157

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT 18 RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEHENTURES (Continued)
UNITED STATES (Continwedj
Awmto Manu facturers (Continwed)

i 1070000 Faed Matar Coaddt Co. LLC 4000 Moe13.2000 3 1073215 3 1,061,518
L353000  IB Peindeda & Co.Tro. 1444 125 Ape-15-2024 1,391,341 1,428 481
3317512 5,205 608
Awmto Farts & Equipment - 0.4%
150,000 Adient U2 LLC 1444 7000 May-15-2026 150,000 159,848
390,000 Ameri:an Axle & Manofschanog Ine. 6500 Apr-01-202T 3T 350 403,860
520,350 365, M08
Beverages - (L21%
EUR 200,000 Primo Water Holdings Inc. 1E7S  Ont-31-2032 246,719 251,726
Eullding Materkals - 0.6%
Tan 000 Bodes Casteds Co 1444 4875  Jal-01-2030 130,000 T4 3EE
20,000 Stasdard Industnes Inc T 1444 5000 FebelS5-2027 TETE 3,156
B0E 16 24T 44
Chemlcals - (hd
ST0000  Sasod Pigaseing LTEA LLC 5500 Mar-18-201] ST0000 557285
Commencial Services - 1.3%
30000 Carriage Sarvices Inc. 1ddA 6625 Tun-0L-2036 ITZ9ET 1ER 500
Frima Ssaurity Servicez Borrosrer LLC/Prama
GO0 000 Fiminos Ing, 1444 5.750  Apr.15-2026 i, 149 48,220
180,000  United Rentuls Haorth America Ing 5300 May-15-207 170,364 191,547
2600000 United Fentals Morth Ameriza Ine 31875 MNow-13-2027 263,049 m, 120
20000 WW International Inc. 14dA E.525 Dwec-0l.2025 2BEETS W &TE
1,606,274 1,801,461
Camputers - L%
260,000 Crowdsinke Holdings Ino. 21000 FebelS5-2003 260,000 254,131
Imyocg Dl Intamational LLCEME Corp. 1444 712 -0 264804 T
SHEEM 552,015
DistributionWholesale = (6%
950,000  HEE Equipment Services [z, 1444 3875 Dae- 130028 180 280
Diversified Financial Services = .3%
380,000  Nevient Corp £.730  Jun-13-2024 320,000 411,978
Elvetronics - 1.4
SA0000  Sensaty Technologres Ine. 1444 4375 Fab. 152000 555518 586,565
Engineering & Construction - 0,2%
330,000 TopBuild Cop. Tdds 1525 Mar15-202% 30,000 135,596

Entertaimment - 9.5%
Wyen Resorts Fimacs LLCWynn Resorts Capdal

AHD, 000 Corp, 1444, 1750 Apr-15-2025 £E0,000 AT 138
Foonil = 2.9%

10200000 Era®t Heinz Foode Co, 3B7S Mhay-15.2027 1,040,567 3,303,452

60,000 Kt Heing Foods Co. 4250 Mar-01-201 0,000 66,077

400,000  Emft Hainz Foode Co, 4,375 Ran-0-2048 %5040 414,095
Simmoes Foods Ind /Simmons Prepared Foods Tne

0,000 Simmeas Pat Pood Ine /fimmeona Pood 1444, 4875 Mar-01-2038 160,000 L0886

1858607 4,151,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT &% RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEHENTURES (Continued)
UNITED STATES (Continsedy
Healt hea re-Serviees - 6%

5 10000 Canbams Corp. A.250%  Dec.15.2027 3 991 1 10,511

A0 000 Cenbene Corp. o 825 Dhac-15-202% 40,008 43,304

270,000 HCA Ine. 5375 Bep-01-2028 290,008 5020

490,000  Tenst Healthcara Corp. 14d 4, 4 825 Jun-15-2028 A 904D 502,861

2304104 561,608
Infermet - 2.5%

LOB0,000  Cogent Communizatione Froup Inc. 1444 5375 Mar01.2022 1,080,696 1,108 290
260,000 Metch Groop Hollimgs 0 LLC 1444 S.000  Dwec-15-2027 2Wan I

L375,000  MercadoLibeaIne. 3025 [am-14-2031 1375647 1,300,000
80,000 MNetflixIno, 3875 Now-13-2002 2TnAR2 138,12
600,000 Tadtbar Inc, 1444 31875 Deec-15-2027 590,856 E2B,657

1585554 3,458,113
Lodging - 4%

230,000 Full House Resorta Ine, 1444 2330 Feap-15-2002E 2I1,%71 234,302
150,000 Hillon Domrslic Cperating Co. In. 1444 5750 May0]-2028 150,224 181,775

140,000 Wysdham Hetale £ Reacota Ine, 1444 4,375 Aung-15-2028 140,000 141,798

512,197 SIT.ETE
Mnchinery=Const rection & hllll:n; = (%G
BS0,000  BWX Technologies Ine, 1444 4,035 un-30-20%8 230,000 260,502
Machi nery-Diversified - 0%
240,000 Clark Equipmant Co. 1444 3878 Jan-01-2038 446,547 465,07
Media - 5.6%
00 Holdings LLOICCO Hebdings Capital Corp.
1, 297,000 14dA 4300 Aog-15-2030 1,230,375 1,300,582
CC0 Hobdings LLO/IOCO Heldings Capital Coep.
L0000 T4dA 4 250 Febdi1-203] PAZATD 211,815
GO0 Holdings LLCIOCO Heldings Capital Corp,

2, 180,000 1444 500 May.01.2033 2204636 2,207,250
Joo000  CREC HoMinge LLC t4aA 3375 Feb01-2033 24462 315,481
550,000 C2C HoMimge LLT 1484 6500 Feb-01-2029 AW LRI
570,000 DISHDES Comp 1750 Fal-00-2026 SH 089 6.7

1,530,000 DISH Neweak Corp, 3375 Aug-15-2026 1,433,407 1,464,842
330,000 Sinas X Fadio Iz, 1444 #0235 Ral-01.3030 330,000 130,260
490,000  Univizeon Comamumications Inc. TddA, 5500 May01-2025 4E5947 539,720

19953084 B 2T 846
Mining - 0.5%
170,000 Freeport-McMoRan [ra, 1875 Mar-13:-201 17,072 196,974
425,000 Fresport.-MeMoRan Ine. 5450 Mar-15-2043 173,733 510,331
546808 ERT 565
OifiesBus ness Equipment - 03%
400,000 COW LLC/CDW Financs Coep 3350 Few135-2009 400,000 I3 ale
Ol & Gas- LE%

270,000 Apachs Corp. 500 Fep-01-2040 213,593 4567
50,000 Chespeake Epergy Corp. 1444, 5500 Feb1-2008 50,000 52,045
60,000 Chempeake Energy Corp. 1444 5875 Feb-01-203 B0,000 3,600

2E0,000  Cestinantal Fesonscas Inc. 4500 Ape-15-2073 202234 217,113

3000 Coatinental Resourcss Ios JORK 1A 3750 Re-15-2031 330,000 360,308

1440000 EQT Corp. 1900 Ocd001-2027 1,158,184 1,468 529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT £¥ RATE DATE COsT YALUE

NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
UNITED STATES (Continsedy

Ol & Ga s (Contlnwed)

i G30,000  Oecidantal Fatrolaum Corp. 6.125% Jasd01.2031 % 630,000 3 &0 611
284,000 Ranges Resoarces Corp. 3000 Mar-13202 265,700 048
580,000 Rangs Resources Corp. 4.875 Mhay-15-2025 321,543 A1180

LE152TE 3,584,611
Packaging & Confalmers - 1.4%
1,130,000  Eall Com. 2875 Aug-15-2030 1,123,643 1,068,345
200,000  Pactv LLC 7.950 Des-15-2025 TT9.982 203,154
1,900,631 1,581,499
Fharmaceuticals - 0.5%
400,000 Bwasch Health Americes Ing. 1444 9230 Apr-01-2026 442 1699
Fipelines - 2.0%
Bhaa Racar Madstreim LLCiBlua Raécer Fimanca
380,000 Corp, 1444, 1625 Dwc-15-20235 158947 40,263
Elga Racar Midstraam LLC B4 Racer Financa
25,000 Corp. 1444, G625 Tul-13-2028 16063 43,200
240,000 Chezdare Enargy Inc. 1444 4,525 Oo-15-202% 240,000 240,641
180000 Chenders Enscgy Farinam LF 1444 o 000 Mfar-(b-2011 280,000 ZRS 410
170,000 Enlink Midetmam LLC 1444 5,823 Tap-15-2028 170,000 164,367
150,000 EQM hidsream Parinort LF B4A £.000  Rsl-00-3025 150,000 161,234
130,000 BEOM Midst ream Fartners LE 14dA 6300 Rul-00-2027 130,000 141,302
“Targs Resoar s Partners LP/Turga Resourcss
THO 000 Parimen: Financa Ceap 5875 Ape.15:2026 Ti551% T3 977
Talga Bescar: e Partnes LP Targa Pasoun e
130, 00 Fartzern Finance Corp 500 Mal-15-2027 130,000 141,253
590,000 Weatern Middreum Operating LF 4650  Jul-01-2026 1 A | 622,037
Al 000 Westaro Midstream Cperating LF 5300 Fabad]-2030 15,964 AN A1
520,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 300 Feb-01-2030 173508 81,80
3,836,601 4,178,011
RETTS- 0.7%
210,000 CoreCivie Ine, 4. 750 Oet-13-2007 210348 187,196
130,000  Diversified Haalhears Trast 4375 Mar-01.303] 120,000 117,128
Ladder Capital Finarco Holdinge LLLF/Ladder
450,000 Capstal Financa Corp. 144A 4.750 Feb-01-2027 430,000 445, M40
0000 Barvica Propartses Triast 5500 Dwec-15-2027 240,716 253,139
1021264 1,001,203
Roetadl = 0.5%%
200,000 [RE Helding Corp, 1444, 700 Fins15-2035 210,000 e
290,000 L Brands Inc, 1444 6373 Rl-01-2035 i Sl b 322,030
240,000 Farty City HeldingsToe. 144 E.T750 Fab.l 52026 2429 47,151
250,000 PebSmast Inc/Potmart Fimance Corp. 1444 4. 750 Feb-15-2022 250,000 256,201
250,000 PetSmmast Inc PetSmant Finanses Cotp. 1444 1730 Feb-15-2009 250,000 7,850
1,247,239 1,303,422
Software « 1.0%
TO0.000  Fair Lzase Corp. 1444 4000  Jun-13-202% T00,000 118,233
390,000 OpeanTexd HotdingsTnc. 1das 4 125 Fabet 52000 190,000 195,128
380,000 Raclopace Teehnobogy Global Ins. 1444 3300 Feb-15-203% 10,000 165,504
1,4 T, 0063 1,479,157

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
12
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT ©# RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Costimued)
UNITED STATES (Continwedj
“Telecommunlcations - 3,6%

5 494,000  CemmScopa Techaaloges LLC 1444 6.000%  Jun-15-2075 % 457104 3 S04 003
350,000 Frostier Communizabicns Corp, 1444 5875 0152027 180,000 17,000
170,000 Frosties Commmnicatione Comp, 1444 3000 May01-2028 1T a0 173024
F00,000  Level 3 Financing Inc. JdA 1625 Jam-15.2029 A% B0 ETE 125
£20,000  LumenTachnologies Inc. 1444 4500 Tan-15.2029 £20,000 g0a, 584
400,000 Bpeim Capatal Corp 6875 Mor-15.2002 453912 617587
200,000 Speint Coap. TE7S Sep-15-2023 20527 TR 532
430,000 SwatchLtd 1444 1750 Sep-15-2028 430,000 423,152
To00)  Thdokale ITEA Ins. 4000 Ape.15.2022 TOATs nm7
3000 TMbila TTEA Ine. 24623 Fab-135-2008 00,000 .31z
230,000 TMobile USA Inc, 2875 Feo-152001 230,000 5
L 136,000  Yerimon Commwmndestions Inc, 144A 1630 Oxd-30-2030 1137072 1,083,082
5,148,158 5,718,209
TOTAL UNITED STATES L SAARA%0  E0EGA33
TOTAL NOTESAND DEERENTURER LR 561 L34 986 858
NUMBER OF
SHARESR

FREFERRED STOCK - 0.1%
UNITED STATES = (0.1%

Fipelines - 6.2%
230 Turga Rescar s Corp. FIR 304,500 307,704
TOTAL UNITED STATES Fid S 307,704
TOTAL PREFERRED STOCK 20 50 307,704
FRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOUNT 88 RATE DATE

TERM LOANS (FUNDELDV = 1.7% =~
UNITED STATES - 1.T%

Alrlines - 0.9%

400,000 Dwelta Ajr Lines Ino. [nits] Tarm 4 T30 OotHR-2027 196, 295 420,600

448,500 Fatblus Adreays Comp, Tarm 6240 Jun-17-2024 447,253 450,591

440000 Mubsags Flae Holdmgs LLC [nstnl Tarm 6&.750 un-2E-2027 432118 6B 224

1,2T5868 1348817

Chemleals - 0.3%
Inace IS Pedracham LLC 2026 Trancha B Dallar

460,000 Tarm 1250 Jan-2%-2028 0,753 459,151
Losdging - 0.2%

0000 RCL Term 2300 Apr-05-2022 1M472 A2,018
Retablers - 0.3%

IT0,000  Pekebdart LLC Initial Tarm i 000 500 Feb12-2008 166,175 169,545
TOTAL UNITED STATES 2AM708 2400131
TOTAL TERM LOANS (FUNDED} 2438708 2AMATL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
13
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

NUMBER OF FAIR
SHARES COET VALUE
INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT COMPANIES - 1.5%
IRELAND - 1.5%
I7,3T2  Legy Misca ST Accomuilating Share Pusd 3 1942793 3 2,145,246
TOTAL TRELAND 1943799 1,145,246

TUTAL INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT
COMPANIES 1,942,799 2,145 146

EXCHANGE TRADED FUND - 1,99
UNITED STATES = 1.9%

100,000 SPDR Bleomberg Barczys Short Teren High Yield Bond ETF 1532333 2,753,000
TOTAL UNITED STATES 1531558 2, 7R304
TOTAL EXCHANGE TRADED FUND 1531558 2,155
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - 98.5%, $ LTINS § 1424671919
OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILTTIES - 1.3% 1,188,791
NET ASSETS= 1060, 0% 5 144.860,T10

fdd A Sacury in mm:lq:t from lnug'u.‘nt:m andér Fude 1444 of the Sscanties Aot of 1931, Theze pecarihies may be meold in renmchions
axatrept from registration, notmally to qualdified instibatices] buyars

Exohanges Tradad Fund

Mndivm Term Nota

Faymant InEind

Bl Bgtate [ovest meemt Trast

Exprezead in tocal currency, az usless indicated,

Denchas a deapaip band , The rete indsabed @ the aurrent coogean g of March 11, 202
Variable Fate Secumity, Retes discloped ara that which ware in offect ot March 31, 20217,
The security i 8 perpatual bosd and has no defipste matanty dale.

Al of a portion of term loan sacuarities that hed sot settled az of Mazch 31, 2021,

o gy

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
14
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Forward Forelgm Carrency Contracts

CONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE UNREALIZED

SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY TO BELIVER FOR GAIN (LOSS)
Apr-13-2021 UBSAG AT 18537 UFED 124000 % 1,081
Apr 122021 Geldman Sechs Interpaticol BRL 5790400 USD 1,000,000 (25,391)
Apr-12-2021 Morgan Stanley & Co. Infernaticnal ple BRL 8,145,000 WUSD 1,100,000 11,108
Apr-13-2021 Motgan Stusley & Co Isternatioasl ple  BRL TSIM0E0  USD 1,300,000 (33,285)
May-18-2021 Ciltbank, N.A. EUE ZE4191E USD XA3{,952 85,084
Miy-18-2021 Goldman Sachs Internaticaal EUR 1487 D 150,884 i34
Meay-18.2021 TPMiorgan Chase Bank, MA. EUR 439% 785 USD 53133023 156,830
Dy -18-2021 UBS AT EUR 11351 UsD 136,832 3,264
Dvbay-18-2021 Citibak, MA. GEP 552884 UBD B23 641 5517
INeay-18-2021 Citibank, M.A FBE LOB709T WUSD ARG (18,837
Apr 12.2021 UBEAG GEP 69,730 USD Lriilil] Pl
Nay-18-2021 UBSAG GRY 1,296,434 USD 1,743 (11,523)
Apt-12-2021 Geddman Ssche Infernatiosal DR TS 500,000  USD 550,000 4,837
Apr 122021 Goldman Ssche Infernatioaal DE 14,573, 400,000 1FED 1,000,000 [, 48]
Apr-13-2021 VBSAG TY 4,581,300 WSD G, 12,761
Apr12-2021 UBSAG IFY 18216875 USD 170,000 (310}
Apr-12-2021 JFhvorgan Chase Bank, NA. BOOT 17,101,582 USD B 10,000 (24,756)
Ape-12-2021 Geldman Sachs International RUE 53981577 UsD TH0,000 10,241
Apr-12-2021 Goldman Sachs Infernatiomal FuUB 29015718 ED 380,000 [3,892)
Apt 123021 IFMorgan Chase Bank, A TET 24,735,233  RED 3,230,000 268,129
Apr-12-2021 T Margan Chase Baxnk, NA. TEY 127250 USD 1330000 (338)
APt 122021 UBSAG ZAR LOZIL0N  UED SL000 (S
443,393

OONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE  UNREALIZED
—BELILEMENTDATE . COUNTERFARTY _______ ___ TORECENVE __ ____FOR ___ _GAIN(LOSS)
Apr- 122021 UBSAG AUD TA4EIIT USD 1834466 3 {8,580
Apr 122207 Morgin Stusley & Co Internaticnal ple BRL 031,277 USD 40369836 (ET3.411)
IvErp-18-2021 Citibanlk, N.A, EUR 280,000 USD 308,610 =0
DEay=18-2021 Cilibank, M.A EUR IEMO0G  1FED 1B 950 [9,5300
Apr- 1932021 Goldman Sache Infernaticaal EUR I0738 D 13,203 (SE0)
Apr-12-2031 VRS AG GBE #93.643  UED 1388338 (24,354)
May-18-2021 UBSAG GEF L 150000 USD 1,590,887 [3,522)
Apr-13-2021 Goldmean Sache International IDE 34025805000 WSD 25784008 [478,000)
Apr-12.2021 UBS AT By LI0B93IZ032 USD 11504161 (562,173}
Apr-12-2021 Thésrgan Chase Bank, HA OO 5453, 166 - 1D AB57, 15 172,265
Apr-11-2021 Gobdman Zache International FUB LIEREEES  USD 14903330 [110,12%)
Apr-13-2021 TEdvargan Chase Bank, NA. TEY 144,583,753 USD 20,11%622 [2,755,348)
Ape-12-2021 VB AG ZAR 10278056  USD 691,082 3,832
(=, 711,028)
“Total Net Unrealized (Loss) on Forward Forelgn Carrency Coptrad § (4267428

Currency Ll.geud

AUD - Augralian Dollas
EEL - Enslian Rel
EUR - Buro

GEF - Brtish Pound
IR - Indonesian Rupizh
FY - Japaness Yn
IO - Defenican Pec
EUB - Russian Fuble
TRY - TarkizhLira

UsSD - UE, Delblar

ZAR « Boath African Rand

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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2020 31
2020 31
146,527,631 125,189,250 13,706,971
4,476,061 490,084
298,332 298,108 32,640
6,028,136 660,021
21,902,862 2,398,144
6,393,118 699,982
1,811,818 198,376
166,099,353 18,186,218
21,587,516 2,363,617
958,134 104,906
518,055 56,722
322,855 35,349
368,946 40,396
381,367 41,756
24,136,873 2,642,746
141,962,480 15,543,472
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38,117,851 18,819,355 2.025 222
11,372,245 210,198 54.103 5,924
2,264,681 302,333 7.491 820
26,099,027 4,088,604 6.383 699
20,352,658 5,759,150 3.534 387
13,373,640 4,603,061 2.905 318
20,489,005 9,531,420 2.150 235
731,582 293,619 2.492 273
7,681,924 2,007,040 3.827 419
1,479,867 385,792 3.836 420
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2020

31

20,638 13,985,182 1,531,238
10,013 18,583 2,035
14,003,765 1,533,272
1,627,963 178,246
1,424,468 155,965
179,762 19,682
118,893 13,018
101,748 11,140
60,680 6,644
20,349 2,228
16,280 1,783
51,504 5,639
3,601,647 304,344
10,402,118 1,138,928
(7,309,607) (800,329)
183,814 20,126
(57.282) (6,272)
(6,040, 290) (661,351)
(13,223,365) (1,447,826)
(15,886,999) (1,739,468)
25,947 2,841
(10,311, 868) (1,129,046)
(26,172,920) (2,865,673)
(39,396, 285) (4,313,499)
(28,994,167) (3,174,571)
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2020

31

211/345

10,402,118 1,138,928
(13,223,365) (1,447,826)
(26,172,920) (2,865,673)
(28,994,167) (3,174,571)
(4,664,139) (510,677)
(828,517) (90,714)
(100,576) (11,012)
(2,570,312) (281,423)
(2,939,605) (321,857)
(2,661,581) (291,417)
(3,989,809) (436,844)
(107,150) (11,732)
(1,112,208) (121,776)
(130, 382) (14,276)
(19,104,279) (2,091,728)
(25,087,632) (2,746,845)
(73,186,078) (8,013,144)

215,148,558 23,556,616

141,962,480 15,543,472
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3.5

2020 31
Tokyo Stock Exchange

2020 31

2020 31
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2017 2017-08
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2017-08
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115,997,232 185,984 116,183,216

7,103,044 7,103,044

1,841,400 1,841,400
61,590 61,590

6,393,118 6,393,118

1,841,400 129,493,394 247,574 131,582,368
21,587,516 21,587,516

2020 31
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2020 31
61,687 0.44
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0.70
0.01 15,000
30
0.02 15 0.0125 45 0.0050
45,000
10,000
8,400
0.80
0.05
2020 31
2020 31
2,588,887 7,662,046 10,078 619,492 145,731 1,291,734 96,405 713,260
(3,296,354)  (9,061,805) (97,980)  (6,099,421) (25,209) (229,736) (442,234)  (3,219,902)
(707,467)  (1,399,759) (87,902)  (5,479,929) 120,522 1,061,998 (345,829)  (2,506,642)
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166,298 771,127 659,361 2,738,684 1,206,859 3,244,167 14,030 48,403
(671,985)  (3,060,895)  (1,849,095)  (6,966,584)  (3,336,596)  (9,097,766) (34,571) (120,492)
(505,687)  (2,289,768)  (1,189,734)  (4,227,900)  (2,129,737)  (5,853,599) (20,541) (72,089)
617,271 3,315,497 5,952 29,260 5,510,872 20,433,670
(1,348,773)  (7,365,810) (57,679) (298,891) (11,160,476) (45,521,302)
(731,502)  (4,050,313) (51,727) (269,631)  (5,649,604) (25,087,632)
10
2020 31
3.109 61.673 9.204 7.479 4.617
a 0.153 3.166 0.456 0.377 0.237
(0.997) (7.426) (1.710) (0.873) (0.840)
(0.844) (4.260) (1.254) (0.496) (0.603)
(0.240) (3.310) (0.459) (0.600) (0.480)
2.025 54.103 7.491 6.383 3.534
@ (27.15) (6.91) (13.62) (6.63) (13.06)
1.78 1.77 1.76 1.76 1.76
5.16 5.09 5.12 5.09 5.09
2020 31
4.062 2.654 3.569 5.252 5.265
a 0.211 0.139 0.178 0.272 0.257
(0.888) (0.283) (0.895) 1.217) (1.359)
0.677) (0.144) 0.717) (0.945) (1.102)
(0.480) (0.360) (0.360) (0.480) (0.327)
2.905 2.150 2.492 3.827 3.836
@ (16.67) (5.43) (20.09) (17.99) (20.93)
1.77 1.76 1.77 1.77 1.77
5.12 5.07 5.11 5.11 5.13
a
Q@
11
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2020 31
a
6,393,118
a
21,587,516
(€5
2020 31
183,814 183,814
(6,040, 290) (6,040, 290)
183,814 (6,040, 290) (5,856,476)
(10,311,868)
2020 31
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a (175,352,949)
@ 329,937,598
(¢
(¢
12
2020 31
6,393,118 21,587,516
6,393,118 21,587,516
(€H)
Citibank, N.A. @ 247,675 (47,365) 200,310
Goldman Sachs International® 2,716,024 (2,716,024)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @ 711,912 (711,912)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 2,001,079 (2,001,079)
UBS AG™® 716,428 (716,428)
6,393,118 (6,192,808) 200,310
(€8
2
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(€]

BNP Paribas® 198 198

Citibank, N.A.® 47,365 (47,365)

Goldman Sachs International® 9,991,582 (2,716,024) 7,275,558

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.(® 2,519,111 (711,912) 1,807,199

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 8,147,572 (2,001,079) 6,146,493

UBS AG@® 881,688 (716,428) 165,260
21,587,516 (6,192,808) 15,394,708

@

(¢4

13
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Staterment of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2020
{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Assels

Irvestments in securities, at value (cost $146,527,631)
Cash equivalents

Foreign currency, at value (cost 5298 332)

Due from broker

Receivable for investments sold

Unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts
Interest recemvable

Total assets

Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts
Fayable for investments purchased
Redemptions payable
Accrued management fees
Aceried distnibutor fees
Acerued expenses
Total liabilities
Met assets attnbutable 1o redesmable umitholders

BRL Class

S38,117,851/18 819 355 units 5 2.025
JPY Class

§11,372,245/210,198 units & 54,103
GBP Class

§2.264,681/302 335 units b3 7.491
LISD Class

§26,009,027/4,088,604 units £ 6,383

IDR Class
£20,352 658/5,759,150 units g 3534

RLUB Class

$13,373 64004,603,06] umis
TRY Class

$20,489 0059 531,420 nnits
ZAR Class

§731.582/293 619 umts
MXN Class
$7.681,924/2,007 040 units

ALD Class
§1,479,867/385,792 units

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.

g

229/345

1,811,818
166,009,353

11,587,516
958,134
518,083
322,855
368,946
381,367

24,136,873
£141 962 450
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Forthe Year Ended March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Investment Income

Interest (net of foreign tax wittholdings $20,638) % 13,985,182
Dividends (net of foreign tax withholdings $10,013) __ 18383
Total investment imcome 14,003,765
Expenses
Distributor fees 1,627,963
Management fees 1,424,468
Custody 179,762
Administrative, accounting, and transfer agent 118,893
Agent company fees 101,748
Professional Bl,680
Trustee fees 20,349
Loan servicing 16,280
Other 51,504
Total expenses 3,601,647
Net imvestment income 10,402,118

Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency
tranglation/tiransactions and derivative contracts

Met realized gain (loss)
Investmenis (7,309 607)
Fumires contracis 183,514
Forgign currency transactions (57,282)
Forward foreign currency contracts (5,040,290)
Net realized (loss) (13,223,365)
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Investmenis (15,886,999)
Foreign currency translation 23,947
Forward foreign currency contracts (10,311,368)
Met change in unrealized gain (loss) (26,172,920)
Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) on imvestments, foreign currency
translation/transactions and defvalive contracts (39,396,285)
Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations (28,994, 167)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statememts.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended March 31, 2020
{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

From sperations

et investment income

Met realized (logs)

Net change in unrealized gain {losg)

Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations

From disiributions to unitholders

BRL Class
JPY Class

GEP Class
USD Class
IDR Class

RUB Clags
TEY Class

ZAR Class
MXN Class
AUD Class

Total distributions

From participant transactions
Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Note 9)

MNet (decrease) in net assets

MNel assels

Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statememts.
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% 10,402,118
(13,223,365)
(26,172.920)

{28,994,167)

(4,664,139)
(828,517)
(100,576)
(2,570,312)
(2,939,605)
(2,661,581)
(3,989,809)

(107,150)
(1,112,208)

(130,382)

(19,104,279)

(25,087,632)
(73,186.078)

215,148,558
$141,962,480
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

1. Ohrganization and Investment Objective

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Mult-Currency ) Fund (the “Fund”) was formed on October 4,
2000 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), & unat trust established by a trust
deedunder the Trusts Law (as amended) ofthe Cayvman Islands and regi stered under the Mutal Funds
Law {2013 revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Trost 1z stroctured az an umbrella it trest, which
allows it 1o create multiple sub-trasts, with the aim of segregating assets and labilities of each sub-trust.
As of March 31, 2020, there were 10 sub-trusts of  Western Asset Offshore Funds, Western Asset
Management Company Limited (“WAMCL") is the Trust's Manager, Western Asset Management Company,
LLC " WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management Company, Western Asset Management
Company Pte. Ld (“"Western Asset Singapore™), Western Asset Management Company Lad, {"Western
Asset Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distribuidora de Titulos ¢ Valores Mobilidnos
Limitada (“Western Asset Brazil"), and Western Asset Management Company Pty. Ltd. (“Western
Asset Melboume™) are the sub-imvestment managers to the Fund {collectively the “Imvestment Manager™).
BMY Mellon Fund Management { Cayman) Limited is administrator and trustee to the Fund The Bank
of New York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is
the custodian and snb-administrator 1o the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch)
is the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Lid
{Japan) is Agent Company and Distributor to the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide wnitholders with a long-term total return
consisting ofincome and capital gains througha diversified portfolio of investments mainly consisting
of global corporate bonds, including high yield bonds and bonds of emerging markets issuers. The
Fund may also imvest in securities or asset classes that are outside traditional high yield or emerging
markets benchmarks, such as non-agency morgage-backed securities, preferred securities and subordinated
securities. The Fund offers multiple hedged classes,

AtMarch 31, 2020, the Fund had one unaffiliated umithoel der who held 98%5 of the Fund's units outstanding,
The Fund may be materially impacted by the achons of this unitholder.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basizs of Acconnting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (1S,
GAAP”), the Fund uses the accrual basis ofaccounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are recorded
a5 earned and incurred, respectively

The Fund is animestment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASBE™) Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial Services
— Irvestment Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with ULS. GAAF, requires management tomake
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of increases and
decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Actual results conld differ from
those estimates.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency
Cazh equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
institmions. Cash equivalems are carried at cost, plug acerued interest, which approximates Fair value.

The Fund considers all haghly Liguid irvestments with a matanty of three months or less when purchased
tobe cash equivalents. Cash held in banks periodically excesds the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s
{“FDIC"yinsurance coverage of $250,000, and as a result, there ig a concentration of credit risk related
o amounts in excess of the FDIC insurmgee coverage.

Due tofTrom Broker

The Fund records resiricted cash, ifamy, on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities within “Due from
Broker” which represents balances required by brokers for collateral on certamn denvative positions,
“Tie to Broker” may include restricted cash and cash held with brokers, Due to'from Broker is reported
on a net-by-counterparty basis as there 15 a valid rght 1o offset with each of the brokers. The Fund
comtinually monitors the creditworthiness of the financial instttons with which it conducts
business

Security Transactions and Investment Income

Security tansactions are accounted for as of trade date. The ¢ost of secunities delivered and the et
gain or loss on secunities sold are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Interest income eamed
onsecuritiesis recorded net of applicabl ¢ withholding vaxes on the acerual basis. Interestincomeincludes
aceretion of discomnts and amortization of premums whach are recorded using the effective yield method,
Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date net of applicable withholding taxes,

Funetional and Presentation Currency

[teme included in the Fund's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economie amvironment i whach it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valuations
of the umis are effected and denominated in the US. Dollars ("USD™),

Foreign Currency Translation/ Transactions

Investment securities and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
mto USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and sales
of imvestment securities, income and expense items, and issuance and redemptions of units denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the
respective dates of such ransactions.

The Fund does notisolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities
held. Such fluctuations are included within the net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments
on the Statement of Operations.

Netrealized foreign exchange gains orlosses anse from sales of foreign currencies, including exchange
gains and losses on the settlement of forward foreign currency contracts, currency gains or losses
realized between the trade and settlement dates on secunties transactions, and the difference between
the amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes recorded on the Fund's books and
the USD equivalent of the amounts actually received or paid. Net unrealized foreign exchange gains
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign Currency Translation Transactions {(Continued)
or logses anse from changesin the fair values of assets and liabilities, other than investments in securities
and derivative contracts, on the date of valuation, resulting from changes in exchange rates.

Certain foreign secunity and currency transacions may involve considertions and risks not typically
associated with those of USD denominated transactions aga result of, among other factors, the possibility
oflower levels of governmental supeniasion and regulation of foragn secunties markets and the possibility
af political or economic instability

Income Taxes

According 1o the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there 15 no income, estate, corporation, capital
gaing or other taxes payable by the Fund. Az a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements,

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs 2o tat it will not be deemed 10 be engaged in trade or business
in the U5, and, therefore, none of its income will be weated as “effectively connected™ with a US,
trade or business carned on by the Fumd. Effectively connected income 15 subject to LS, federal income
tax at the graduated rates applicable o ULS. domestic corporations. Certain categories ofincome that
are not “effectively comnnected”™ but are derived from US, sources, including dividends and interest
income, are subject to a US, tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest exemption,
the tharty percent tax does not apply to portfolio inferest eamed. For the year ended March 31, 2020,
interest earned by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio inferest exemption.

The Fund is subject 1o the authoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uneerfainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax positionis more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2020, there are no imcertain tax positions
that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy is to recognize
interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense,
For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Fund did not recognize any infterest or penalties for uncertain
tax positions.

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class” and, collectively, the *Classes”). The Fund
currenily offers a Brazilian Real ("BRL") Class, Japanese Yen (“JPY™) Class, British Pound ("GBP™)
Class, United States Dollar (' USD™) Class, Indonesian Rupiah (“DR ") Class, Russian Ruble (“RUB™)
Class, Turkish Lira (“TRY™) Class, South A frican Rand (“ZAR") Class, Mexican Peso(" MXN") Class, and
Australian Dollar (CAUD™) Class (each, except the USD Class, isa “Hedged Class™). The BRL Class, USD
Class, IDR Class, RUB Class, TRY Class, ZAR Class and the MXN Class are denominated in USD,
the GBP Class in GBE the JPY Class in JFY and the AUD Clazgs in AUD {each a “Denomination
Currency™ ), in which issuances, redemptions, and valuation of units are effected and in which units
are denominated
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

[zsuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Continued )

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant Dealing
Day. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open for business
in New York, London, Tapan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange, Londoen
Stock Exchange and Tokyo Stock Exchange are open for trmding. [ssuances and redemptions of Fund
imits are made on such days, baged upon the closing net asset valne, A sales charge of up to 3.5% of
the net asset value may be charged and retained, by the Distributor. For the year ended March 31,
2020, the Dustributor has warved the sales charge

The Trustes, inconsaltation with the Investment Manager, may temporarnily suspend the dstermination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the 1ssuance and redemption of the Fund s units, and may postpone
the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, durng any period when it is not
reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the Fund's net
assets. There were no such occurrences dunng the yvear ended March 31, 2020,

Allocation of Income, Expenses, (Gains and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated on a daily basis 1o each
Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply adjustments
1o the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevant Class of units
any applicable gains, losses and expenses generted by hedging transactions withrespectio such Classesie g,
all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JPY Class of units are bome by the JFY
Class ofunits). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging
non-USE denominated investmenis 1o the functional currency.

Redemptions Payable

Redemptions are recognized as liabilities when the amount requested in the redemption notice becomes
fixed. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice or on the last day of a
fizcal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. Az a result, redemptions paid after
the end of the year, but based upon year end net asset values, are reflected as redemptions pavable on
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2020. Redemption notices received for which the
LIS, dotlar and unit amounts are not fixed remainin capital untl the ned asset value used 1o determine
the redemption and unit amounts are determined

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gains and'or capital are declaned
by the Fund on the fifteenth (15™) day of each month. Distnbutions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may he determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reimvest in additional
umnits. Cash distributions with respect 10 a Class are paid in the Class Denomianation Currency.

Recent Aceounting Pronouncement

In March 2017, the FASRE issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU™) No. 2017-08, Premium
Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Secunities, which shortens the ameortization period for certain
cillable debt secunties held at 4 premiwm to the earliest call date. The new and revised disclosures
are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, The Fund
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recent Aceounting Pronouncement (Continued)
has not early adopted the standard, and management is currently evaluatng the implications of ASL
Mo, 200 7-08 and itz impact on the Fund’s financial statements

i Valuation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the fir value of its imvestments each Dealing Day.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authority to a pricing committee governed by the
Irvestment Manager 1o determane the value of the Fund’s investmemts each Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund's investments,

The Fund uges both the income and market approaches 1o establish the fair value of its investments.
LUse of particular techniques and inpuuts may vary over time based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evolve.

The Investment Manager congiders pricing techrigques it deems relevant and appropriate when making
fairvalue determinations. When deterrnining the reliability of third party pricing imformation for imvestments
owned by the Fund, the Irvestment Manager, among other things, conducts due diligence reviews of
pricing vendors, montors the daly change in poces, and reviews transactions among market parcipants,
In addition, prices which change from the prior day by greater than a pre-established threshold will
be verified aganst additional pricing sources, when available, or by evaluation of ver fiable changes
1o the model inputs that impacted the resulting Fair value.

Exchange traded options, warrants, and publicly traded ULS. and non-LL 3. equity securities are generally
valued at the official ¢closing price of, or the last reported sale price on, the exchange or market on
which such securities are traded, as of the close of business on the day the securities are being valued
or, lacking any #ales, at the last available bid price, Futures contracts are valued at the last settlement
price at the end of each day on the board of trade or exchange upon wlich they are traded

Fixed-income securities, including short-lerm securities purchased withmore than 60 days left to maturity,
are generally valued at prices obtained from one or more pricing vendors. Vendors value such securities
based on one or more inputs described in the following table. The table provides examples of inputs
that are commonty relevant for valuing particular classes of fixed-income securities, inwhich the Fund
is authorized to invest. However, these classifications are not exclusive, and any of the inputs may be
used to value any other class of fixed-income security.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

3. Yaluation (Continued)

Fixed-income class and Derivatives Examples of inpuis

All All bepchnmrk vields, tmansschons, bads, offers,
quotations from dealers and clectrome  trading
systems, spreads, and other relationships chserved in
the madeds among comparable secunbes; and
proprgtary pocng models such as vield measunes
calculated using Factors such as cash flows, finaneial
or collateral performence, and other reference data
{eollectively meferred to as “standard inputs").

Corporate bonds and notes Standand inputs and new ssue data

Bonds and notes of government and government | Standand mputs.

Emr:ies

Mongage-backed and asset-backed obligations Standard mputs, prepavment information, default

rates, delinquency and loss assumptions, collateral
characteristics, credit enhancements and specific
deal informmation.

Stmetured products (including Interest Only and | Standard inputs, plus new issme data, monthly
Prncipal Only secuntwes and Collaterabized Morgage | pavment information and collateral performance.
and Collateralized Debt Obligations)

Loans, loan participations and loan assignments Transactions, bids, offers, and quotations from
dealers.

Student loans Standard inputs including the weighted averge life
of the loans.

Swaps and other denvatives Standard inputs and imerest rate curves, inferest rate

velatilities, credit spreads and recovery rates on the
underlying reference securities, index spreads,
foreign exchange spot and forwand curves, and
foreign exchange volatibities,

Where the Investment Manager deems it appropriate todoso (suchas when vendor prices are unavailable
or not deemed 1o be representative), fixed income secunties will be valued in good faith at the mean
quoted bid and asked prices that are reasonably and imely svallable or a1 prices for secunties of comparable
matunty, quahty and type

Short-term secunties purchased within 60 days tomaturty are valued atamonized cost, which approximates
fair value,

Securities and investments for which representative market guotations are not readily available or are
considered imreliable are fair valued in good faith by the Investment Manager. Various inputs may be
reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a security”s fair value. These inputs include,
but are not limated to, the type and cost of the securty; contractual or legal restrictions on resale of
the security, relevant financial or business developments of the 1ssuer, actively traded similar or related
secun fes; conversion or exchange nghts on the secunty; related corporate actions; sagmficant events
occurming after the close of trading in the securty; and changes in overall market conditions. Fair
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

3. Yaluation (Continued)

valuations and valuations of iivestments that are not actively trading imvolve judgment and may differ
materially from valuations that would have been used had greater market activity oceurred.

17 third party evaluated vendor pricing is neither available nor deemed 1o be indicative of fair value,
the Inmvestment Manager may ¢lect o obtain indicative market gquotations (“broker quotes™) directly
from a broker-dealer. Indicatve market quotations are typically recerved from established market participants,
The Irvestiment Manager has requested trmnsparency toview the underying inputs which support these
market quotations, When transparency to the underlying inputs is received from the broker then the
security may be considerad Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy if the inputs are observatde, If the inputs
dre not transparent or are found to be unobservable, then the secuntes are categorized as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

If broker quotations are not received as of the valuaton date, the most recent available broker quaotation(s)
may be used. However, adjestrments are made 10 the mostrecent broker quotationd s ) based onmterpolated
changes inthe yields of associated benchmark securities from the date upon which the broker quotation
wias received 1o the valuation date, Typically, benchmark securities are comprised of certain treasury
securities with standand maturities. Specifically, the imerpolated change in the yield is caleulated using
an mterpolation factor which measures the duration of the security being priced versus the duration
of the benchmark secunities with durations immediately greater than and less than the security being
priced. The interpolated vield change is then applied to the duration of the security to calculate the
implied change in price.

Over-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts, options
contracts, swaplions coniracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset prices,
indices. reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts are normally
valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending on the product
and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial dervative instruments can be estimated by a
pricing service provider using a series of technigues, including simulation pricing models. The pricing
midels use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such asassuer details, indices, spreads,
interest rates, vield curves, and exchange rates.

Centrally cleared swaps transacted on a multilateral or trade facility platform, such as a registered
exchange, are valued at the daily settlement price determuined by the respective exchange. For centrally
cleared credit defaunlt swaps, the clearing facility requiresits members to provide actionable pnce levels
across complete term structures. These levels along with external third party prices are msed 1o produce
datly settlement pnces. Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are valued using a pncng model that
references the underlying rates including the overnight index swap rate and London Interbank O ffered
Rate ("LIBOR"™) forward rate to produce the daily settlement price. These securities are categorized
as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

3. Yaluation (Continued)

The varions inputs that are used in determining the fair valee of the Fund's assets and labilities are
summarnized into the broad levels listed below:

o Level | — guoted prices in active markets for identical nnvestments

® Level 2 — ather significant observable inganz (including quoted prices for gimilar investments,
interest mtes, prepayment specds, credit risk, ete)

® Level 3 — agnificant unobservable mputs, including the Investment Manager's own assumptions
in determining the fair value of imvestments, Level 3 fair value techmigues include (i)
the use of propretary models that require the use of judgment and the application of
various assumptions imcluding, bt not imited to, prepayment assumptions and default
mte assumptions, and (i1) the solicitation of valuations from thard parties (ypacally,
broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary models that
are subjective and also require the use of fudgment and the application oM vanous asammplions
including, but not limited o, prepayment assumptons and default rate assumptions.

The valuation levels are not necessarly anindication of the nsk or hiquidity associated with imvesting
in those securities,

The following 15 & swmmary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets and labilities carmed at fair value:

Asseis
Oither
Significant Significant

Cruoted Observable Unobservable

Prices Inpuis Inpuis
Description {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
MNotes and Debentures 5 — F 115997232 & 185584 35 116,183,216
Term Loans (Funded) — 7,003 044 — 703,044
Exchange Traded Fund 1,841,400 - — 1,841 400
Common Stocks - 61,590 61,590
Forward Foreign Currency

Contracts - 6,393 118 - 6,393 118
Tital £ 1841400 § 1295493g94 b Eﬂg'}al g lllggliiﬁﬁ
Liabilities
Oither
Slgnificant Significant

Quoted Observable Unobservable

Prices Inputs Inputs
Deseription (Level 1) (Leved 2) (Level 3) Tutal
Forward Foreign Currency

Contracts & — § 21587516 § — § 21587516
25
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

4. Loans, Lean Participations and Loan Assignments

The Fund may acquire loans, by acting as a member of the original lending syndicate of the loans or
throngh an aszignment from another lender, and may also purchase loan participations (i.¢., participation
interests in other lenders” portions of loans). The underlying portfolio may also include loans, loan
participations and other types of loans, mcluding bridge loans and debtor-in-possession facilines.

Irvestments in loans and loan participations may subject the Fund 10 liquidity nzk. Loans and loan
participations iy be trans ferable among Mnancaal institutons, but may nothave the hgudity of comentional
debt secunities and are often subject 1o restrictions on resale, such as the need for the consent of the
lead or agent bank of the loan or the borrower, thereby making them potentially illiquid.

Certain of the loan participations or assignments acquired by the Fund may involve unfimded commitments
of the lenders or revolving credit facilities under which a borrower may from time 1o ime borrow and
repay amounts upte the maximum amount of the facility, In such cases, the Fund would have anobliganon
toadvance its portion of such additnonal borrowings upon the terms spea fied in the loan documentation.
Such an obligation may have the effect of requiring the Fund to increase its investment in a company
at a time when it might not be desirable 10 do so, including at a time when the company s financial
condition makes it unlikely that such amounts will be repaid.

At March 31, 2020, the Fund did not have any unfunded loan commitments.

th

Payment-In-Kind Securities

The Fund may imvest in payment-in-kind secunities (“PIK”). PIEKs give the issuer the option at each
interest payment date of making inferest payments in either cash or additional debt securities, Those
additional debt securities usnally have the same terms, including matunty dates, imterest rates, and
associated nsks as the orginal bonds. The daiky market quotations of the onginal bonds may mclude
the acerned interest and require a pro rata adjustment from the unrealized gain or loss on investments
o imterest receivable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

For the year ended March 31, 2020, with respect 1o in-kind payments from PIK securities, the Fund
received 361 687 or 0.44% of total investment income ., This amount is included within intere st income
on the Statement of Operations.

. Forward Foreign Currency Contracis

The Fund meay enter into a forward foreign currency contract 1o hedge against foreign currency exchange
rate risk on its non-USD denominated securities and units or to facilitate settlement of a foreigm currency
denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract 1s an agreement between two
parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price with delivery and setilement at a future date. The contract
is miarked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealized gain or
loss. When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, through either delivery of the currencies or
offset by entering into ancther forward foreign currency contract, the Fund recognizes a realized gain
or loss equal tothe difference between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the value
of the contract at the time it is closed

240/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

[} Forward Foreign Currency Contracts {Continued )

Forward foreign currency contracts imvolve elements of market nsk in excess of the amounts reflected
on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the nisk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underlving the forward foreign currency contract. Risks may also anse wpon
entenng e these contracts from the potential makality of the counterparties to meet the térms of
their contracts.

7. Future Contracts

The Fund may use futures contrcts to manage exposurs o G relevan markets. Buying fulures increases
4 fund’s exposure to the underlying instrument. Selling fumres decreases a fund’s exposure 1o the
imderlyving instrument, or allows the fund o hedge other fund investments. Futures contracts imiolve,
to varying degrees, credit and market nisks.

Futures contracts are valwed based upon their quoted daly selement prices. Upon entering into a
fistumres contract, the Fund is reguined to deposit with its futures broker, anamount of cash, ULS. Govermiment
and Ageney Obligations, or select sovereign debt, in accordance with the imual margin requirements
of the broker, board of trade, or exchange. US, Government and Agency Obligations deposited as
initial margin are included within the Schedule of Investments, and cash is recorded on the Statement
of Assets and Liabilities in Due from Broker, Futures contracts are marked 1o market daily and an
appropriate payable or receivable for the change in value (“vanation margin” ) is recorded within the
Statement of Operations and within “*Due to/from Broker” on the Statement of Assets and Liahilities,
Gains or losses are recognized bt not considered realized until the contracts expire or are closed

The Fund enters into futures contracts only on exchanges or boards of trade where the exchange or
board of trade acts as the counterparty to the transaction. Thus, credit risk on such ransactions is
limited to the failure of the exchange or board of trade. Losses in value may arige from changes in
the value of the undertying instroments or if there is an illiqud secondary market for the contracts,
In addition, there iz the nsk that there may not be an exact correlation between a futures contract and
the underlying instrument.

B Charges and Fees

Imvestment Manager Fee
The Investment Manager’s fee is accrued daily and payable quartery in arrears at an anmual rate of
0.70%% of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Trustee fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $15,000 per year.

Administrafer Fee

The Administrator fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmual rate of 0.02% on
the first 33 billion or less, 0.0125% on the next $1.5 billion and 0.0050% on the amount over $4.5
billion of the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $45 000 per year
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B Charges and Fees (Continued)

Registrar and Transfer Azent Fee
The annual Registrar and Transfer Agent fee for the Fund iz 310,000 The annual maintenance fee for
each Class is 58 400,

Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee is acerued daily and payable quartedy in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of the
average dmly net assets of the Fund

Agent Company Fee
Thee Agent Company fee 15 accred daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmial rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund

9, Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund's wmt activity for the year ended March 31, 2020

Year Emled Mareh 31, 2020
BRI JEFY GRFP &
Units Amaoumnt L7 nits Amount Umits Amoant 1 nits Amonmsi
LFnits ismaad LS8R 8RT § T2 06 10,078 3 615452 145,731 ¥ 1,291,744 96405 § 3,260
Unite redearnad (3,296,354 (9,061,205 (FLEE0)  (&099.421) {25, 209) (228 T ) [#42234] [3,219.90F)
Mt [negesss (dacragm) (107467314 (1,390, 759) (E7.90213 (5472909 120,522 § 1061, 538 (358295 (1506 642)
IR RUE TRY FAR
Units Ammannt Tndts Amomnt Dmits A onnd Tnits Amount
Unita israed 185,058 1 a7 639,361 3 ZTIRES4 1206357 § 244,167 14,030 % 48,401
Unite pedeerned [571,985) [3,080,895) (1,845, 008)  [5866,584) (3,335 596) (057 748) (34,5717 (120,482
el (docrease) {05627 3 (2,280, T6E) !1.18?.]‘!-!!-3- (4,220.000) (2120375 (SB5% 280) (2054115 (TL0B9)
ol AT Todal
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amomml
Unite kemoad 17,271 % 3315497 19042 3 29 260 Aa1087M % 20433670
Unite rad ssened (1,448, 773) (7365810} (51678 (258 501} E11. 160 476 ) {45,521, 302)
Mt (decrmise) (711,500 {4,050,31 1) [51,7271% (2485 £11) [5.649,80478  (25,087.6%2)
28
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1. Finaneial Highlight=s

Yiar Ended March 31, 20240
Selected Per Unit Data BRL JPY GRP 150 1D
Net assel valwe, beginning of year & 3100 & [IKTER1 Q.2 § T.470 & 4.617
Het mvesiment ipoome""! 0153 3164 0456 0377 0y
Fet realized and unrealized pain (bss} {000 T) {7426} {1.710) {573} {54
Total {lossh from mvestmend cperations {544 ) {1.2543 {0406} ALY
Dristribations to unitolders {0,240 (33100 {0450} {0,600} (AR
et asset vahie, end of year ] 2025 5 54,103 § TAH 5 5383 % 3.534
Total retum %6 (27.15) {631} {13.62} {663} (13.08)
Hatios to Averape Nel Assids
Expenses %% 1.78 1.77 1.76 1.76 1.76
Met investment inoome % 516 509 512 soh 5.0
Year Ended March 31, 2020
Sefected Per Unit Data RUE TRY LAR il k] ALUD
et asset value, beginning of year H 4,062 § 2054 § 3569 § 3252 5 5265
Net mvesiment income""! 0zl 0,139 a.178 0.272 0257
Mt realized and unrealized gain {koss) {1 ARE) (0.253) {0,595} {L.217} {1356}
Tetal (kosa} from mvestment operations {&TT) (0 144 {0717y {0545 {11y
Dhistribations to unithokders {8 4841) (K360 (03607 {01,480} (03273
Met asset value, end of year g 2005 5 2150 % 2492 § 3827 2 3856
Total retum % {16.67T) {543) (20,08 {17.9G) (2,03
Ratios to Average MNet Assels
Expenses % .77 1.7% 1.7 1.n 1.7
et investment income % 512 507 511 511 513

S M investrent meome per unit has been caloulated based upon average units sutsanding for the vear,
1 Total retam calcubation i based on the valee of a singhe unit of participation cutstanding throughout the veas, It fepresents the
percentage change in fye net asset valse per umit between the beginning and end of the vear, excluding d istributions to unithokders,

The above ratios are calenlated for the participating units a8 a whole. An individual unitholder’s total
return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.

11. Derivative Instruments

The Fund may transact ina variety of dervative instruments including futures and forwards for trading
purpeses with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange risk. The fair value
of thege derivative instruments i included a5 a separate line item within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities by contract type.
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11. Derivative Instruments {Continmed )

The fllowing tables provide information about the far values and the location of denvatives not accounted
for as hedging instruments which are meluded within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March
31, 2020 and are grouped by derivative type:
Aszet
Derivatives'
Foreign
Exchange Risk

Forward Foreign Currency Contracis 3 6,393,118

Liahility
Derivatives™

Foreign

Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracis 3 21 587,516

U Generally, te location for asset derivatives is rece ivables and unrealized gain and for lability derivatives is pavables
and unrealized (lossi

The follewing tables provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund’s Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2020, The first table provides additional detail about the
amownis and sources of gains or losses realized on derivatives during the year The second tabile provides
additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss)resulting from the Fund's derivatives
duning the year The realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivatives are presented as separate
line items on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of Realized Galn (Lozs)
on Derivatives Recognized

Foreign
Interest Exchange
Rate Risk Rizk Tostal
Fumire Conteacts 3 183214 S — 5 183,814
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts = {6,040,290) (6,040, 290)
Total g 183814 % (6,040,290 § (5,856,476)
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11. Derivative Instruments {Continmed )

Change In
Unrealized
Craln (Loss)

on Derivatives

Regognized

Foreign
Exchange Risk

Forward Foreign Currency Contracis §  (10.311.868)

Druring the year ended March 31, 2020, the volume of derivativies activity for the Fund wag as follows;

Monthly
Average
Values
Forward Currency Contracts to Deli'rer“_’ £ (175,352,949
Forward Currency Contracts to Receive™ 329,937,598

1 This amount, converied to presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representative average payable
vahue at seftbernent date based on the monthly activity of the Fund.

' This smoumt, comverted to presentational currency whene applicabile, comesponds o the represemative averape receivable
valhue at setthement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund.

12 Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

By using derivative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty’s credit risk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractnal provisions offset by the
value of any collateral received The Fund's exposure 1o credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inherent in such transactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund minimizes counterparty credit risk through
creditlimits and approvals, credit monitoring procedures, executing master netting arrangements, and
managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate, The Fund records coumterparty credit
risk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to approprately reflect
the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market quotes received
from counterparties or other market participants since these quotes may not fully reflect the credit
risk of the counterparties to the denivative instruments.
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12 (MTsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset denvative assets and Babilities that are subject
10 netting arrangements within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Informationis presented below
for all denvative azsets and liabilities that are subject 1o an enforceable Master Netting Agreement
(“MNA")L

Oifsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2020

Amounts Presented in the
Staterment of Assets and Liabilities

Asxsels Liabilities
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts $ 6,393,118 % 21.587.516
Total derivative assets and Habilities in the Statement of Assets &
Liabilities sulsject to a MNA .3 6303118 % X1,587.516
Derivative Assets and Collateral Received
Gross
Amounis of
A s
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Received
Liahilities Instrument as Collateral  Net Amount'’
Citihank, B4 £ MIETS % 47385 § — i M0
Goldman Sachs Intemational ™’ 26024 (2, TE,024) = -
TPMorgan Chase Bank, BLA TI1.812 {T11.812) —
Morgan Stanleyv 8 Co,
Intemational ple'™ 2,000,079 (2,001,079} —
UBS AGH TI6A25 {T16425) an .
Total 3 6393115 § (6192808} % — % 200310

St Mgt amount represents the net amount recevabie from e commterparty in the event of defaubt,
= Oiver the Counter.
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12 (MTsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged

Carossy
Amounts of
Liabilities
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
Liabilities Instrument as Collateral Net Amount'*
EMP Paribas'”! £ 195 & = § = % 195
Citibank, B.a.* AT 365 {47365} — —
Goldman Sachs Intemational ™’ 9,991 582 (2,716,024 — T.2T5558
TPMorean Chase Bank, Noa % 2519111 {11,912} - 1,507,150
Morgan Stanbey & Co.
International plet' BT 572 2,000,079} —= 6,146,493
UBS AGH BHDG8R {T16A28) = 165, 260
Teal % 21587518 % (B, 192808) % — % 15,304, T4

S Met amount nepresents the pet amount payalbbe due to the cousterparty in the event of default.
= Over the Couter.

13 Fumnd Investment Rizsks
Lower-Rated Secunties Risk

The Fund may invest in lower-rated securities, which are commonly referred 1o as “junk bonds™ or
“high yield™ bonds. Lower-rated securities reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the isseer or in general economic conditions, or an unanticipated nse in interest
rates, may impair the abiity of the sier to make payments of imterest and prncipal. Additonally,
lower-rated securities are generally less liguid than higher-rated secunties, The inability or perceived
inability ofissuers to make timely payments of interest and principal and limitatgons i liguidity would
likely make the values of securities held by the Fund more volatile and could limit the Fund's ability
to el its securities at prices approxumating the values placed on such secunties.

Dvestment in Emerging Market Issuers

The Fund may invest in emerging market instruments which are subject to certain credit and market
risks. The securities and curréncy markets of emerging market countries are generally smaller, less
developed, less liquid and more volatile than the securities and currency markets of the United States
and other developed markets. Disclosure and regulatory standards in many respects are less siringent
than in other developed markets. There also may be a lower level of monitoring and regulation of
secunties markets in emerging market counties and the acuvities of investors in such markets and
enforcement of existing regulations may be extremely limited. Political and economic structures in
many of these countries may be in their mfancy and developing rapadly, and such countries may lack
the social, political and economic stability characteristics of more developed countries
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13 Fund Investment Rizsks { Continued)
Investment in Non-118 . Securities

The Fund imvests in secunties of non-US. issners which present certain special nsks, including those
resulitng from future political, legal, and economic developments, which could include changes in
currency exchange mtes or exchange control regulations, expropriation of assets, confiscatory taxation,
nationalization of azsets, impos Gon of withholding or other taxes, adverse changes in investment capital
or exchange control régulations, political changes, diplomatic developments, ditficulty in obtaining
and enforcing judgments against non-LL.3. entities, the possible imposition of the applicable country’s
gevernmenal laws or resirictions, and the reduced availability of public information concerning issuers.
Additonally, izsuers of non-US. securifies are not generally subject to uniform aceounting, awditing
and financial reporting standards or other regulatory practices and requirements comparable 1o those
applicable 10115, issuers, In the event of naticnalization, expropriation or other confiscation of assets,
the Fund could lose ms entire investment in a secunty.

The costs associated with ivestment in debd gecunties of non-ULS, 1ssuers, including withholding
taxes, brokerage commissions and custodial fees, may be higher than thoge associated with imeestment
indebt secumties of LS, issuers. Inaddition, non-U15. secunties transactions may be subject o difficulties
associated with the settlement of such ransactions. Non-ULS. markets have different clearance and
settlernent procedures which in some markets have at times failed 1o keep pace with the volume of
trangactions, thereby creating substantial delavs and settlement failures. Delays in settlement conld
result in temporary periods when assets of the Fund are uninvested and no return is earned thereon,
Settlement Failures could also adversely affect the Fund's performance, The inability of the Fund to
mike intended secunty purchases due to setdement problems coul d cause 1 10 miss atftractve nvestment
opportunities. Inability to dispose of a portfolio security due to settlement problems could result in
losses to the Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio security

Sovereign Debt Risk

Tl Fumd may irvest insovereign debtinstrarments which can imeolve a high degree of isk. The govemmental
entity that controls the repayment of severaign debt may not be able or willing 1o repay the principal
andior interest when due inaccordance with the terme ofthe debt. A governmental entity s willingness
or ability o repay pancipal and interest when due may be affected by, among other factors, its cash
flow situation, the extent of its neserves, the mvailability of sufficient foreign exchange on the date a
paymentis due, the relative size of the debt zervice burden to the economny as a whole, the governmental
entity"s policy toward the International Monetary Fund, the political constraints (o which a governmental
entity may be subject, and changes in governments and political systems

of business and financial risk and may result in substantial losses. These securities may be less liquid
than publicly traded securities, and the Fund may take longer to liquidate these positions than would
be the cazge for publicly traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately negotiated
transactions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those onginally paid by the Fund.
Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the disclosure and
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13 Fund Investment Rizsks { Continued)
Non-Publicly Traded and Rule 144A Securities Risk {Continued)

other imvestor protection requirements that would be applicable if their secunities were publicly traded.
Consequenily, these securities may be difficult to valne.

Hedging Transactions Kisk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intended 1o limat or reduce imeestment nisk, but can also be
expectad to limit or reduce the potential for profit, Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
asgets of the Fumd attributable to a particular Class of units are insnfficient to satisfy the liabilities
associated with a hedging transacton with respect to such Class of uniig, such amonnt of the hatalities
that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of unitg of the Fumd,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate rigk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes in
interest rates. As nominal interest mies rise, the value of certain fixed income securitics held by the
Fund iz likely to decreage. A nominal interest mte can be described as the sum of a real interest mte
andan expected inflation rate, Fixed income secun ties with longer diurations tend 1o be mors sengitive
to changes in interest rates, usnally making them more volagle than securities with shorter durations.
Duration is wsed primanly as a measure of the sensitivity of a fixed income’s market price to interest
rate (1.e., yvield) movements

dguidity Ris

The Fund may imvest in assets and derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose of,
inchuding securities whose disposition is restricted by secunities laws. The effect of liquidity nsk is
particularly pronounced when low trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size, or legal
restrictions { including daily price fluctuation limits or “circuit breakers” or anaffiliation with the issuer
of a secunty) limit or prevent the Fund's ability to initiate a transaction, sell assets, or unwind denvative
positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed to liquidity dsk when it has an obligation to
purchase particular securities { for example, as a result of entering into reverse repurchase agreements,
writing a put, or ¢closing out a short position).

Concentration of Risk

To the extent the Fund concentrates its irvestments i one or more countries, the value of the Fund's
assets will be especially affected by economie, political and other factors affecting such country or
countries, and may Aucmate more widely than the value of a fund that invests in 4 greater mumber of
countres

envative Inst iz

The Fund may invest in various dervatives which may present additional risks and costs that are different
from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and costs presented by investing directly in securities
and other more traditional imvestments. Following are additional risk factors concerning the use of
derivatives:
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13.

14.

Fund Investment Rizsks { Continued)
Derivative Instruments Risk { Continued)

& Management Rivk: Dervative products are specialized instniments that require investment technmigues
and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The successfil use of
dervatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only of the undedying
instrument but alzo of the denvative itzelf In particular, the use and complexity of detivatives
require the maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the transactions entered into, and the
ability 1o assess the risk that a dervative adds to the Fund’s porifolio.

® Copnterperty Credit Risk: The use of defvatives subjects the Fund to the rizk that the countér party
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
especially durng unisually adverse market conditions. I the counterparty defanlts, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Fund may be unable 1w enforce its contractual rights.
Counterparty nsk is more pronouneed ifa coumterparty”s obligations exceed the amount of collateral
held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercase ifs interest in collateral upon default by
the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrament varies significantly from the
marked-to-market value of the instrument

® Docnentation Risk: Many denvative instrumaents have documentation nisk. Becanse the confract
for each over-the-counter denvative transaction is individually negotiated with a specific counterparty,
there exists the nisk that the parties may interpret contractieal terms differently. If that oconrs,
the costand unpredictabality of the legal proceedings required For the Fund to enforce its contractual
rights may lead the Fund to decide not 1o pursne its claims aganst the counterparty. The Fund,
therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable 1o obtain payments the Investment Manager
believes are owed to them under denivatives instruments or those payments may be delayed or
mide only after the Fund has incurred the costs of lingation.

Contingenecies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemmifications, The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangements 15 unknown, as this would involve future clanms that may be made against the Fund that
have not yet occurred. Based onexperience, management is of the view that the risk of less inconnection
with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no assurance that
material liabilities related to such obligations will not anise in the future that could adversely impact
the business of the Fund
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15 Hher Matters

Anoutbreak of respiratory dizease canged by a novel coromavirus was first detected inChina in December
2009 and subsequently spread globally. Az of the date of the issuance of these financial statements,
this coropavins has resulted in closing borders, enhanced health sereenings, healthcare service prepamtion
and delwvery, quarantines, cancellatons, and disroptions o supply chang, workflow operations and
consumer activity, as well as general concern and uncertainty, The impact of this coronavirus may be
short term or may last for an extended period of time and result ina substantial economic downturm,
The impact of this outbreak, and other epidemics and pandemics that may anse in the fatwre, could
negatively affect the worldwide economy, as well as the economies of individual countnes, mdividual
companmies {incinding Fund senvice providers) and the market in general in sigm ficant and unforeseen
ways, Amy such impact conld adversely affect the Fund’s performance,

16. Subsequent Events

Asof May 29, 2020, the date the financial staterments were available to be issued, no subsequent events
or transactions had occwrred that would have matemally impacted the financial statements as
presented.
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2021
( )
153,333,250.18 16,788,458
7,224,807.63 791,044
146,108,442 .55 15,997,413
17,806,005
5,184,549
4,343,486
88,484
182,880
4,072,203
7,834,029
192,467
1,802,761
329,346
2.19 240
4.54 497
7.02 769
6.87 1,049
6,633
3.29 360
2.05 224
3.41 373
5.18 567
6.99 565
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109.49

2020 2021 30
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2020 2019
12 539,966 59,121 686,138 75,125
539,966 59,121 686,138 75,125
13 21,209,148 2,322,190 25,378,626 2,778,706
13 488,959 53,536 459,793 50,343
14 34,129,277 3,736,815 35,061,841 3,838,921
12,856,283 1,407,634 11,597,685 1,269,831
68,683,667 7,520,175 72,497,945 7,937,800
16 (18,219,000) (1,994,798)  (15,666,888) (1,715,368)
50,464,667 5,525,376 56,831,057 6,222,432
51,004,633 5,584,497 57,517,195 6,297,558
16 (23,651) (2,590) (48,205) (5.278)
17 (626,622) (68,609) (1,623,200) (177,724)
50,354,360 5,513,299 55,845,790 6,114,556
18 11,050,010 1,209,866 11,050,010 1,209,866
39,304,350 4,303,433 44,795,780 4,904,690
50,354,360 5,513,299 55,845,790 6,114,556
2020 18
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2020 2019
76,184,956 8,341,491 73,349,360 8,031,021

(64,867,187) (7,102,308)  (67,935,216) (7.438,227)

927,544 101,557 945,363 103,508

(7,245) (793) (9,978) (1,092)

12,238,068 1,339,946 6,349,529 695,210

10 (2,729,498) (298,853) (1,271,910) (139,261)
9,508,570 1,041,093 5,077,619 555,949

44,795,780 4,904,690 49,718,161 5,443,641

9,508,570 1,041,093 5,077,619 555,949

1 (15,000,000) (1,642,350)  (10,000,000) (1,094,900)
39,304,350 4,303,433 44,795,780 4,904,690
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102 11 12
11 12 102
11
12
2020 31
17
(M)
(i)
2020 2019

8,839,481 10,771,964
19,062,498 16,928,853
12,201,574 12,431,090
36,081,403 33,217,453

76,184,956 73,349,360
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2020 2019
196,730 189,847
6,199 4,070
1,696,788 1,767,752
24,598 (58,459)
7,245 9,978
441,911 457,518
24,666 24,666
(313,990) (281,796)
(108,450) (90,057)
266,706 106,744
(613,554) (680, 254)
2020 2019
17,473,977 16,883,324
2,443,109 2,418,062
160,362 533,030
876,477 920,985
20,953,925 20,755,401
2020 2019
23 26
14 15
24 25
61 66
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2020 2019

1,611,692 1,553,778

44,906 41,466

502,143 558,774
2,158,740 2,154,018

2019
2019
2019
2016 2017 2018 2019
173,535 2019 172,595

25

2019
14

2020 31
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1,910,985 2020 31
2019 2019 1,723,446
1,861,870 2019 1,601,888
182,490 2019 150,623
1,356,598 2019 1,224,549
194,071 2019 154,852
876,477 2019 920,985
2020 31 2019
10
2020 2019
2,482,332 1,329,789
309,818 20,986
(33,486) 6,116
2,758,664 1,356,891
(29,166) (84,981)
2,729,498 1,271,910
2020 31 2020 31

19 2019 19 2019
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2020 2019
12,238,068 6,349,529
19 2,325,233 1,206,410
29,211 29,801
309,818 20,986
(33,486) 6,116
135,028 9,998
(7,140) (1,401)
(29,166) -
2,729,498 1,271,910
177,188 282,605 459,793
(44,377) 73,543 29,166
132,811 356,148 488,959
i
2017 19
19

15,000,000 2019 10,000,000

149.99 2019 99.99
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12

13

2019 564,114 4,492 100,861 136,457 ,739,079 4,545,003
183,514 - - - 136,891 320,405
(277,649) - - - - (277,649)
2020 31 469,979 4,492 100,861 136,457 ,875,970 4,587,759
2019 388,400 1,107 29,814 - ,439,544 3,858,865
163,784 899 25,398 - 276,496 466,577
(277,649) - - - - (277,649)
2020 31 274,535 2,006 55,212 - ,716,040 4,047,793
2020 31 195,444 2,486 45,649 136,457 159,930 539,966
2019 31 175,714 3,385 71,047 136,457 299,535 686,138
45,220
2019 69,886
2020 2019
13,069,845 12,498,786
6,818,647 11,434,432
286,763 360,653
1,033,893 1,084,755
21,209,148 25,378,626
6,100,000 2019 10,800,000
2021 28 12 0.125
10
42,579 2019 80,005
488,959 2019 459,793

10
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2019
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102

@ (0) ©
34,129,277 - - 34,129,277
34,129,277 - - 34,129,277

@ (0) ©
35,061,841 - - 35,061,841
35,061,841 - - 35,061,841

(b) ©)
24,598
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(i)

¢

(c

«

16

2020 2019
3,503,823 3,322,718
34,949 19,569
3,827,531 2,649,966
10,852,697 9,674,635
18,219,000 15,666,888
23,651 48,205
23,651 48,205

2020 2019
34,949 19,569
23,651 48,205
58,600 67,774

2019
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17

2011 10
2020
10 2020
2020
2020 31 10 10
599,055 2019 1,462,200 2020 31
10 11 2020 31
2020 2019

1,623,200 309,861
_ 218,569
(48,101) 1,094,770
(948,477) _

31 626,622 1,623,200
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18
2020 2019
100,010
2019 100,010 100,010 100,010
10,950,000
2019 10,950,000 10,950,000 10,950,000
11,050,010 11,050,010
2006
19
2020 2019
- 1,908,217
- 38,579
- 1,946,796
2005 15
2020 10
2022 31
2025
20

21

21
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DecuSign Envelope ID: 120081 16-8499-48F D-B250-06CFEEEAB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 19
Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020

Registered No. 2479672

Mole 2020 2019
5 b3

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assels 2 539,964 GR35
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 339 906 G861 38
CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: amounts Talling due within one vear 13 21,209,148 25378626
DEBTORS: amounts falling due after more than one vear 13 AN 459793
Investmenis 14 34129277 35,061 841
Cash at bank and n hand 12,856,283 11,597,685

6 83 H6T 72497 245
CREDITORS: amowumis Taling due within one vear I (182190000 {15,000, 8HE)
MET CURRENT ASSETS 346 667 56,831,057
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3100633 571517195
CREDITORS: amounts falling due afler more than one vear I (236510 {45.205)
Provisions Tor liabihnes 17 {620,622) (1,623,200
NET ASSETS 50,354 360 55,845,790
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capial 18 11,050,010 11,050,010
Retaned eammgs 39304 350 <, 795, 780
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 30,354 3640 55,845,790

The notes on pages 20 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages |8 to 38 were approved for issue by the board and signed on its behalf
by:

g
[ ) i June 18, 2020
sromeimscane. M. Zelouf Date:
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DocuSign Envelope 1D 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3EF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 18

Statement of income and retained earnings

for the vear ended 31 March 2020
Registered No. 2479672

Nole 2020 2004
5 b
Turmnover 4 Tia, 154,956 73349 3600
Administrative expenses 5.6,7.89  (AEGTIET) (67.935.216)
Interest receivable and similar income 5 927544 045363
Imterest pavable and similar expenses 3 (7.245) (9978}
Profit before taxation 12,238,068 6,349,520
Tax on profit 1k [2,729.49%) (1.271.910)
Profit for the financial vear 9,508,570 5077619
Retamed eamings al the begmnmg of the vear 44,795 TR HUTHE 1G]
Profit for the financial vear 0408 570 5077619
Dividends 1 {15,000,000) { 10,000,000}
Retamed eamings at the end of the year 39,304,350 44,793 TH0

All amounts arc in respect of continuing activities.

The notes on pages 20 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 20

1. General information

Western Asset Management Company Limited (“the Company ™), 15 an investment manager, principally
providing investment management services to both extemal clients and to clients of its affiliates. The
Company 15 authorised by the FCA and makes its PFillar 3 disclosures on its website
LRV ".'L!,:“i!k'l'ﬂ,'lﬁE;! ONTY,

The Company is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled under the laws of England
and Wales, The address of its prmcipal place of business 15 |0 Exchange Squarc, Pnmrose Strect,
London EC2ZA 2EN, The ultimate parent company 15 Lege Mason Inc. ("Parent™).

2. Statement of compliance

These individual financial statements of the Company have been prepared i compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™ (“FRS 1027, and the Companies Act 2004,

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied i the preparation of these financial statements are et out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
These separate financial statements are preparcd on a going concem basis, under the histerical cost
convention, as modified by the recogmition of certaun financial assets and habihines measured ar
fair value,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certam
eritical accounting estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical expenence and other factors, including expectations of future cvents that are belicved to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting cstimates will, by definition
seldom equal the related actual results. Included within provisions for liabilities is an amount
related to dilapidation costs. which the Company expeets to incur under the terms of its tenancy
agreement. The amount provided for 15 reasonable in determining the scale of restoration works
that will be enforced by the landlord at the end of the Company’s lease. The amount provided for
is based on management's best estimate and based on an internal assessment. Further details are
provided in Note |7

(b

—

Exemptions for qualifving entities under FRS 102
FRS 102 allows a qualifving cntitv certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions,
which have been complicd with,

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

(i) from disclosing a reconeiliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end
of the penod;

{11} from prepanng a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it 15 a gualifving entity and the
statement of cash flows included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent
includes the Company 's cash flows:
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 21

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(i) from disclosing details of financial instruments, on the basis that it 15 a qualifving entity and
diselosure of financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade pavables are included
in the consolidated financial statcments of the Parcnt;

(v} from disclosing detals of certain share-based pavment armangements required under FRS 102
seetion 26 in respeet of shares based pavments of the Parent issued to emplovees of the
Company by the Parent which are presented in those financial statements;

(v} from disclosing the Company s kev management personne] compensation in total, as required
by FRS 102 paragraph 33.7

(c) Functional currency
The functional and reporting currency of the Company 15 US Dollar, as the Dircctors consider this
1o be the most appropriate currency for the Company’s business.

{d) Forcigm currency translation
Foreign currency monetary assets and labilities are translated into US Dollars at the balance sheet
date. Transactions duning the penod expressed in forcign currencies ane translated into US Dollars
at the rate of exchange ruling in the month in which they occur. Any foreign exchange differences
are taken to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings in the vear in which they arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary assets are carried in the balance sheet translated mio US Dollars at
historic rates of exchange. This is determined using the month end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired.

The £/ US Dollar rate used at the balance sheet date 15 1. 239830 (2019: 1.299733)
The average rate for the balance sheet for the year was 1. 270730 (2019: 1.30%8142)

(¢} Revenue recognition
Turnover or revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents the amount receivable for investment management services rendered. net of any rebates
allowed and value added taxes. Revenue i respect of performance fees is recognised in the
fimancial staterents at the end of the related contractual performance period when all performance
ertena have been met and the outcome of the transaction can be measured rehably.

(fy Emplovee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to emplovees. including annual bonus armangements,

paid hohday arrmangements and defined contnbution pension plans.,

(1) Short Term Benefits
Short term benefits, mcludmg hobiday pay and other siuilar non-monctary benefits, ane
recogmsed as an expense in the penod i which the serviee 15 receved,

(i) Jmcentive Plans
The Company operates an Emploves Benefit Trust ("EBT™) as part of the overall
remuncration strategy for emplovees. Annvally, a bonus award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EBT. Where the EBT is considered to remain under the control
of the Company, the assets and liabihoes of the EBT are included i the Company”s financial
statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant emplovees. See Notes 7
and 8 for further detail.
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DecuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-0499-48FD-B250-08CFEEGIB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial ststements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 22

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

() Emploves benefits feomtimeedl

(i) Frceniive Plans (contineed)
The Company has s¢t up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contnibution
scheme and is administered by a third party. Contributions to the pension scheme are charged
to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings. Sce Nate 9 for further details.

(i) Annwual Bowvis Plan
The Company operates an annual bonus plan for emplovecs. An expense is recogmised in the
Statement of Income and Retained Eamings when the Company has a legal or constructive
oblizgation to make pavments under the plan as a result of past cvents and a reliable cstimate of
the ohligation can be made

{iv) Share Based Pavments
Under the EBT, the Parent awards cligihle emplovees restricted shares of the Parent, The
Company has accounted for such share-based pavments in line with FRS 102 as equity settled
transactions. The recharge from the Parent is recorded as an intercompany pavable position.

with a corresponding charge in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as services are
rendered,

Under the Parent’s share option plan, the far value of stock options 1ssued are measured at
arant date, then, penodically as shares vest and emplovees become unconditionally entitled to
the shares, an emplovees expense is recognised, with ne adjustments recorded for changes in
market value of the Parent for the shares granted.

() Taxation
Taxation ¢xpense for the penod comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
penod. Tax s recogmsed in the Statement of Income and Retamed Eamings.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(1) Current Tox
Current tax is the amount of corporation tax pavable in respeet of the taxable profit for the vear
or prior vears. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end

Management penodicallv evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect o situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authontics.

fii) Deferred Toax
Deeferred tax anses from timing differences. These timing differences anse from the inclusion
of income and expenses in tax assessments in penods different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements,

Deferred tax 1s reeogmsed on all iming differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses

and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilitics or other future taxable profits.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 23

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

fii) Deferred Tox foontinmed)
Deferred tax 15 measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expeeted to apply to the reversal of the tming difference.

(h) Tangible fixed asscts
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is caleulated o write off the cost of the tangible fixed asscts on a straight
line basis over their expected coonomic lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose ane:

IT & Communications equipment 33%
Office equipment 20-33%

Depreciation is charged on a monthly basis and a full month’s charge is made in the month
following acquisition.

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
for artwork 15 not provided as no diminution of its value 15 expected.

(1) Dividends
Dividends and other distnbutions to the Company™s sharcholder are recogmised as a hability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by
the board of dircctors, These amounts are recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings.

() Imvestments
The Company’s investment in the EBT and Western Asset Liguidity Funds ple {"WALF"y arc
current asset mvestments and are stated at fair value. Changes i fair value are recogmised as fair
value adjustments through the Statement of Income and Retained Earmings,

k) ; h equival
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash i hand, deposits held at call wath banks, other shor-term
highly liquid investments with original matuntics of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(I} Leased assets
At meeption the Company assesses agreements that transfor the right to use assets. The assessment
considers whether the arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the
arrangement, See Note 19 for further detals,

(1) Finance feased assels
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership arg
classified as finance leases. Finanee leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
assets at the fair value of the leased asset. Incremental dircet costs, incurred in negotiating and
armanging the lease. are included in the cost of the asset,

Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the

assct. Assets are asscsscd for impairment at cach reporting date, The capital element of lease
obligations is recorded as a lability on inception of the arrangement
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEEEAB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 24

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(I} Leased assets feontinned)

(i) Clperating leased assers
Leasces that do not transfier all the nsks and rewards of ownershap are classified as operating
leases. Pavments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings on a straight-ling basis over the period of the lease.

(i} Lease incentives
Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are eredited to the Statement of lncome
and Retained Earmnings. to reduce the lease expensce, on a straight-ling basis over the penod of
the lease,

{m) Financial instruments
The Company has chosen 1o adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
nstruments.

Scction | 1 { Basic Finarcial fnstriments) and Section 12 (Chker Finoncial fastrumenss) werg issucd
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derceognising, assessing impairment, and
measuring and disclosing financial instruments. Seetion |1 applics to basic financial instraments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other pavables, bank loans,
intereompany pavables and common and preference shares. Section 12 applies 1o other more
complex financial instruments and transactions such as derivatives. including curreney futures and
forward forcign exchange contracts,

Basic financial instruments are generally recogmised at cost or amortised cost.

Denvatives are complex financial nstruments and are imitially recognised at fair value on the date
a denvative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes
m the farr value of denvatives are recogmsed i Statement of Income and Retained Eamings as
appropriate. The Company has no derivatives at 31 March 2020,

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recopmsed when the Company has a present legal or constructive abligation as a
result of past events: it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
moncy and the nsks speaific to the obligation. See Note 17 for further detanls,

Contingent liabilitics arise as a result of past cvents when (1) it is not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources of that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i) the
exigtence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-gecurrence of uncertam fulure events not
wholly within the Company's control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an outflow 15 remote or the outflow is immatenal
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4.

Turnover

Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents the amounts reecivable for the management
of investment portfolios for clients and an allocation of tumover from the Company’s affiliates where
the Company 15 responsible for servacing the chent

The geographical location of the clients is analysed as follows:

2020 2019
b &
United Kingdom 8,839 451 10,771,964
United States of Amernica 19,062 498 16,928 853
Euwrope (excluding United Kngdom) 12201574 12431000
Rest of the World 36,081 403 33217453
Tia, ] B 050 73,349 3060
Operating profit
2020 g
b3 £

The operating profit is stated after chargmg / (crediting)

Auditors' remuneration - awdil services 94,730 189,847
Auditors' rermumeration - other services pursuant to kegislation 6,194 40070
Lease of office premises 1686, THE 1.767.752
Loss / (gam) on foreion exchange 24.59% (58450
[mterest pavable and similar charges 1245 Q9.4978
Depreciation - on tangble owned fived assets 441911 457518
Deprecation - on tangble fived assets held under fmance kases 2666 246540
[ntercst receivable (313.9400) (281,79
[mcome from current assct invesiments

- Realised gains - EBT [ 108 450) (90057
- Unrealised loss 266,706 106,744
- Ciains on investments - WALF [613.554) (680.254)
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6.

Information regarding directors and employees

Emplovment costs incurred by the Company and incleded in admimistrative expenses comprise:

2020 2w
b1 5
Wages and salaries 17473977 16,883,324
Social secunly costs 2443100 2415062
Restnicted stock and stock options m parent Company Jedh 362 533,030
Other pension costs BT6477 20,985
20953 925 20,755 401

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) emploved by the Company
during the vear was:

2020 2019
Mo, Mo,
By activity
Porifolio management 23 26
Marketing & client services 14 15
Admmnstration 24 25
Gl &b

Agaregate directors’ emoluments related to the highest pad director are as fallows:

2020 2019
b3 s
Emzluments 1,611,692 1,553,778
Pension contributions 44 906 41 466
Employee deferred benefits 502,143 558,774
Contribution to Empleyee Deferred Incentive Plan - -
2158740 2154018

Retirement benefits are accruing o 1 (2009 1) director under a defined contnbution scheme. Share
options were exercised by nil (2019: ml) directors during the vear.

The emoluments of the other 2 directors (2019: 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make no recharges to the Company. These two direetors are emplovees and [/ or directors of the Parent
and / or a number of fellow subsidiarics and it is not possible to make an accurate apportionment of their
emoluments in respect of the Company, Accordimgly, the above detals include no emoluments in respect
of these two directors,

Addionally, dunng the vear 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2019 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash
amount of $173 335 (2019: $172,595) was paid by the Company to the hghest paid director.
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7. Share-based payments

The following sharg-based award programme, which is settled in equity of the Parent 1s in operation by
the Company for eligible executive dircctors and keyv emplovees,

Lege Mason Ire, restriclied stock wnif plan

The Parent 1ssues restricted stock units to certain emplovees subject to continued employment with the
Company. Vestng occurs over a four vear penod with 25% of the granted restricted stock units
becoming vested and distributed in shares, which are avalable 1o be sold within a few days of the vesting
date each year. Ownership of the restricted stock units are transferred to the emplovee once vested.

&. Incentive plans

The Company has one active EBT for the emplovee deferred incentive plan.

The trustees appointed to “The Western Asset Management Company International Employvee
Deferred Incentive Plan”™ ("EDIP™) are “Intertrust Group™.

There 15 no cash balance in the current vear (2019: 80) held in the EBT, Investments held by the
EBT are disclosed in Note 14

Ag at 31 Mareh 2020, awards made under the EDIP vest between one and four vears, and any
unvested awards are forfeited if an emplovee leaves the Company for any reason other than
retirement. All forfeieres revert to the Company. The expense related to the awards and any gains
or losses associated with them are recorded in the vear in which the awards vest, The method of
settlement of the awards either in cash or the Parent’s issued restricted stock is at the discretion of
the Western Asset compensation committce.,

EDIP awards totalling £1.910,983 were made to senior emplovees attributable to the financial vear
ended 31 March 2020 (in May 2019, EDIP awards made for the 2019 financial vear: $1.723_.446).

An acerual for awards totalling $1.861.870 (2019 51601 888) is included in these financial
statcments, and this total amount will be contributed to the EDIP. In addition 5182 4490 (2014
S150,623) has been provided in respect of emplover’s national insurance pavable on these awards,

The expense recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings for the EDIP s 51,356, 598

(2009 51.224.549) and the emplover's national insurance on this amounts to S194.071 (2019;
S154.852),

9. Pension

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is a Group Personal
Pension Plan which is run and administered by Scottish Widows. an unrelated third party.

The pension cost charge represents contributions pavable by the Company to the fund and

amounted to $RT6.4TT (2019 S920.985). At 31 March 2020 there were no pension contributions
in arrears (2019 540,
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10, Tax on profit

a. Tax on profit

Current vear lax charge

Adpstments in respect of prior periods

Adpstments m respect of FX difference of prior periods
Current vear tax charge

Delerred taxation - current vear tming differences
Total tax on profits

b. Beconciliation of tax charse

28
2020 2019
5 5
2482332 1.329.789
J9EIR 20986
{33 A486) G, 146
275806064 1,356,891
(29, 166:) (£4.981)
2729498 1.271.910

Tax assessed for the vear ended 31 March 2020 is higher than (2019: higher than) the standard rate of
corporation tax m the UK for the vear ended 31, March 2020 19% (2019: 19%)

Prafit before taxation

Expected tax at standard rate of 19% (2019 19%)
Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Adjustments m respect of prior periods

Adjustments mrespeet of FX difference of prior periods

Adpustments for reduction m corporation ax rale on iming

differences

Unprosded adjustment in respect of current vear tax charge

Deferred tax ems
Total vear tax charge

2020 2019
3 5
12,235,068 6,349,529
2325033 1,206,410
29211 20801
309818 20,986
(33.486) 6,116
135,028 9,998
(7.140) (1.401)
(29.166) =
2.720.498 1271910

The current vear tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group compames as no

group relief has been granted.
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10, Tax on profit (conrinued)

¢. Deferred tax
Fried Assets Emplovee Total
remuneration
5 b b3
Assetas at | Apnl 2019 177,188 282 605 450,743
Current year charge/{ credit) (44,3771 73,543 29,166
Asset as at 31 March, 2020 1323811 356,148 488 959

The uming differences related to: (1) aceelerated capital allowanecs on fixed assets: and (i) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to emplovees on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and 15 distnbuted to participants,

The Directors consider that it is morce likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the
future such as to realise the defeorred tax asset and therefore the asset has been recozmised i these
financial statcments,

d. Tax mate changes

The tax rate for the current vear is the same as the prior vear as there was no change in the UK
Corporation tax rate, which remained at 19% since | April 2007, On the basis that the UK Corporation
tax wall remain at 19% from | April 2020, the Company s deferred tax balances have been effected at
the same rate.

11. Dividends

A dividend of 515 million was declared and paid duning the vear to the Company’s sole sharcholder
Western Asset Management (Cavman) Heldings Limited (2019 $10 million), equating to $149.99 per
ordinary share (2019: £99.99) and there are no amounts ocutstanding in relation to dividends included
in these financial statements.
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12. Tangible assets

&
2 jgilions Fumiture ilice. Lepschokl
Eguipmeni & Fpaures “guiprne An OV eEnLE Toaanl
3 5 g £ i £

Cevsi
Az at | Apal 2019 56,114 4492 100851 156,457 3730009 4,545,003
Additons 183514 - - - 136,891 3M0405
sposals (277 6 - - - - (277 6459
As at 31 March 2020 469979 4492 100261 136,457 3ET59T0 4,587,759
Accunndlared depreciation
Asat 1 Apnl 2019 s A0 1,107 29K14 - 343554 IESEEAS
Charge for the financl 163,784 bt 25398 . 16,49 466,577
veqr
Dhzposals (2TT 649 - - - - (277,649
M oat 31 Margh 2020 274,535 200G 35212 . 3,716,040 4,047,793
.‘I.'n:-ﬂ' ﬁur.l.ﬂ.' w:.l'nr
31 March 2020 195,444 2486 45649 136,457 1 569300 539 0045
31 March 219 175,714 3345 1,047 136,457 29535 GHG, 138

The net book value of tangible assets includes an amount of 545220 (2019: $69.886) in respect of office
cauipment held under finance leases.
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13. Debtors
2020 2019

Amounts faling due within one vear

Trade debtors 13,065 545 12 498 786
Amounts owed by group undertakings AT 11434432
Other debtors 286,763 IR0633
Prepayvments and accrued meome 1,033,393 1LOB4,735

21200, 148 25 378626

Amounts owed by group undertakimgs includes a $6. 1 million (2019: $10.8 million) loan to an affiliate,
The loan bears interest at 12-month LIBOR plus (125% with a maturity date of May 28, 2021, The
remaining balanec is unsecured, interest free, has no fixed date of repayment and is repavable on
demand,

The Company makes available to all emplovees interest-free season ticket loans which are repayable
b ten monthly instalments. The balance of 542,579 (2019 S80.005) is included in other debtors,

Amounts falling due after more than one vear from Deferred Tax is S488 950 (2019 $459.793). See
Mote 10 for further details.

14. Investments

The Company has an investment of £3 267 180 (2019 $2.847.191) in EDIP. This plan is invested ina
range of investment funds managed by Westem Assct.

During the vear, the EBT generated realised gains of $ 108 430 (2019: £90,057), and unrealised loss of
S266.706 (2019 loss of $106.743),

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series. The WALF fund 15 a highly
rated money-market fund and has same dav liquidity. The principal investment objective of the fund is
the preservation of capital. This investment is cammied at fair value and at the balance sheet date was
S30,862 088 (2019; $32,214,650), The share class in which the Company is invested, is a no-fee share
class. thereby maximising the Company’s retumn. The Company provides imvestment management
services to the fund.

The Company classifics its financial assets within the EBT, which are shares and other variable-vield
secuntics ab fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings.

The Company classifics its financial assets within WALF at fair value through Statement of Income
and Retained Eamings.
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4. Investments fcontimued)

Financial asscts designated at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings at
inception are thosc that arc managed and whose performance is evaluvated on a fair value basis.
Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company’s
kev management personnel, The Company’s strategy is to mvest in funds, designated at fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair valugs of financial instruments taded in active markets are based on gquoted bid prices on the
balance sheet date. A market 15 regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group, pricing service, o regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occumng market transactions on an am's length basis, As the funds
invested in by the Company are priced daily based on net asset value (NAV) with subseriptions and
redemplions cecurring at NAV, the funds are considered to be measured at a quoted price in an active
markct,

Met gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair-valucd financial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings, together wath related interest and dividend income
within “Interest recervable and similar income™ in the period in which they arise,

The fair value of financial instraments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date and these secuntics ane included in (a)

The Company closclv monitors the valeation of assets in markets that mayv become less liquid.
Determiming whether a market is active requires the exercise of judgment and 15 determined based on
facts and circumstances of the market for the mvestment being measurcd, The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hicrarchy 1o estimate fair value:

{a) The best evidence of fair value 15 a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market.

(b} When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset
provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in ceonomic
circumstances or a significant lapse of time sinee the transaction took place.

(c) If the market for the asset is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own
arc not a good estimate of fair value, an entity estimates the fair value by using a valuation
technique.
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14, Investments fcontimued)

The tables below present investments which inelude the EBT asscts carried at fair value.

2020 (a) (b} {c) Total

Fair value throush profit and loss b 5 S b

Listed mvestments

- Imsh Stock Exchange 34129277 - - 340129277
Total assels 34,129 277 - - 34, 129 277

2019 (a) (b} (e} Total

Fair value through profit and loss b 5 5 b

Listed mvestments

- Imsh Stock Exchange 35061841 - - 35,061 841
Total asscts 35061541 - - 35,061 841

During the vears ended 31 Mareh 2020 and 2019, the Company did not hold investments eategorised as (b)
ar {c) and correspondingly there were no transfers involving (b or (c).

15. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activitics ¢xpose it to a vanety of financial nsk; market nsk (including curreney nisk.,
fair value mnterest rate risk, cash flow interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk and hguidity nsk. The
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and secks to minimise potential adverse cffects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by an internal nsk management department adhenng to principles and
policies approved by the board of directors. The Company has written principles for overall nsk
management, as well as written policies covering specific arcas, such as forcign exchange nisk, interest
rate risk, credit risk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess higuidity.
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15, Financial risk management (continmed)
(a) Market nsk

(i) Forcign exchange nisk

The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating imtemationally, is ¢xposed to foreign
exchange nsk arising from various curreney exposures, primarily to Sterling. Euro and Yen.
Forcign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised asscts and
liabilitics which are denominated in a cumrency that is not the entity”s functional curreney. The
estimated fair value of derivative instruments reflects the estimated amount the Company would
receive of pav in an amm’s length transaction. The amount is determined using quoted prices
from independent third partics. Durning the vear the Company nutigated its forcizn exchange nsk
by the use of dervative mstruments administered by an affiliate, specifically curreney forward
conteacts. During the vear, the Company made a forcign exchange loss of $24,398 (2019 gain
of $38.459),

{11} Price risk
The Company’s investments held by the EBT are diversified in accordance with the guidelines
of the EBT, As all investments are held by the EBT, the nsk and reward of investment retums
are borne entirely by the EBT s participants, the Company is not exposed to price nisk relating
to its EBT. The Company is not exposed to commaodity price risk. The Company is indirectly
cxposed price nsk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets under management, inferest rates
and the retums of the fixed income markets.

(b) Credit nsk

Credit nsk is managed on a Company-wide basis. Credit nsk anses from cash deposits with banks
and financial institutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credit exposures to
clients from outstanding fee receivables and loans made to group Companics. All the Company’s
banking relationships are with highly rated banks for shont term deposits and are limited to those
with a Moody's rating of at least Baal. or with a Standard and Poor’s rating of at least BBB+. The
Company asscsses the credit quality of clients. taking mto account their financial statements,
regulatory position, past expencnce and other factors. Intercompany loans, including cxisting
loans, may be considered only after assessing the impact projected cash flows under stress testing
scenartos and ensuring the Company s mimimum hguidity tolerance levels are mamtaimed.

(c) Liguidity risk
Liquidity misk is the risk that eash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash hqudity momtonng azamst set linits (o0 ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements

{(d)y Cash flow and far value interest rate nsk

Ag the Company’s only significant imterest-bearing asset 15 cash, the Company’s income and
aperating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates,
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16. Creditors

Amounts falling due within one vear:
Amounts owed to group undentakings
Obligations under finance keases

Taxation and social security
Accruaks and deferred income

Amounts falling due after more than one year,

Obligations under finance keases

The net finance lease obligations 1o which the Company is committed are:

[n one year or less
Between one and two years

33
200 2019
% s
3503823 3322718
3049 19569
3827531 2049 966
10852697 9aT4 635
18,2149 (KK) 15,666, 888
RET ] | 48,205
23651 48 205
2020 2019
b 5
34949 19,569
23,651 48205
38,600 67774

The total value of finance leases repavable by instalments, any part of which falls duc afler more than

five vears 1s ml (2001%: mil).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsceured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayvment and

are repavable on demand.
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17. Provisions for liabilities

Where leaschold office space becomes vacant or is sublet at market rates below the Company’s master
lease rates, the Company provides for all costs, net of anticipated or contracted income, to the end of the
lease or the anticipated date of the disposal or sublease. This provision relates to office space in 10
Exchange which was sublet in 2011 and 15 surplus to the Company’s requirements, The provision is
expected to be utilised over the life of related leases to 2020,

The Company is currently a tenant of 10 Exchange Square and was duc to vacate in carly fiscal vear
20200 prior to signing of now tenancy agreements m May 2020, There 15 a clause in the tenancy
agreement relating to dilapidation work which must be undertaken before the property is vacated. The
amounts provided are based on the current ¢stimate of future costs determined on the basis of the present
condition of the property. In amiving at this provision, the expected cash flows have been adjusted by
assigning an appropriate probability weighting based on the level of dilapidation work likely o be
cammied out

For the vear ended 31 March 2020, a provision of $399033 (2019 §1,462,2000 has been made for
estimated costs of the dilapidation repairs pertaining to level 10 at 10 Exchange Square. At 31 March
2020, the dilapidations provision of levels % and 11 at 10 Exchange Square was written down as the
obligation to retum the property to it orginal condition was released by the landlord. The decrease in
provision is fully recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings during the vear ended
31 March 2020,

2020 X9
£ s
Carrving amouni at 1 April 1,623,200 309,861
Amounts reclassified from accruals and deferred meome - 218560
Amounts (milisedy'charged during the vear (48,101} L0770
Amownts released during the vear (48.47T) -
Balance at 31 March 626,622 1.623.200
18. Called up share capital
2020 2019
.1 &
Iszued, called up and fulk paid
TOOOTE (200149 100.010) ordinary shares of $1 each EEEH Y 10K, 004
10,950,000 (2019: 10.950,000) redeenable preference shares of 51 10,950,000 10950, 000
each
11050000 110500140

The preference shares camy no rights to participate in the profits of the Company, and no voting rights.
The Company may redeem the preference shares at par, at any time subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, On redemption, and at the diserction of the Directors, the preference shares may
be converted to ordinary shares of similar par value.
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19. Financial commitments

The Company had the following future mimimum lease pavments under non-cancellable operating leases
for cach of the following periods:

2020 2019
b s
Land and buildings payments due
Mot later than one vear - 1908217
Later than one year and not later than five years - 38579
- 1.946,79

The Company signed a 15 vear lease for office premises which was effective May 2005, and under the
terms of which the Company had an initial rent free period of three vears

The Company signed a 10 vear lease for office premises which was effective May 2020, and under the
terms of which the Company has an imitial rent free peried to 31 January 2022, The rent pavable under
the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

Provision for rental pavable was made in the financial statements during the rent free period. and this is

bemng released to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings so as to spread this benefit evenly over
the period of the lease.

20. Related party disclosures

The Company 15 exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companics that are wholly
owned within, and reported on the consolidated financial statements of, the group,

Consolidated financial statements of the group, in which the Company is included are publicly available,
as disclosed in Note 21

2

. Controlling parties

The immediate parent undentaking is Westem Asset Management (Cavman) Holdings Limited.

The ultimate controlling panty s Legg Mason Ine.. a Company incorporated and registered in the United
States of Amernica and listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

The enlv growp e which the Company’s results are consolidated 15 the group that 15 headed by Legs
Mason, Inc. Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Legg Mason, Ine. are available from 104
Intemational Drve, Baltimore, MD 21202, USA.

Further information can be found on the Legg Mason, Inc. website "www leggmason.com”™ under
“Investor Relations”,
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22. Post balance sheet events

In February, 2020 Franklin Templeton announced the purchase of Lege Mason, and its affiliates,
including Western Assct. Western Asset will retain full investment independence and organisational
autonomy. Franklin  Templeton recognises the importance of maintaining Western  Asset's
independence. Change of ownership will take place once the deal closes, expected to be i the second
or third guarters of fiscal vear ending 31 March 2021, The Company has mformed all clients of the
ownership change and has forwarded formal notices andlor requests for consents to clients where
requircd by regulabon or contracts.

The Company signed a 10 vear lease for office premises which was effective May 2020, and under the
terms of which the Company has an mitial rent free penod o 31 January 2022, The rent pavable under
the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

While business plan goals and objectives are primarily long term, the current extraordinary
circumstances relating o COVID-19 mean that the Company wall continually assess the business plan
and budget for the coming financial vear in light of the current market conditions and their expected
impact on the Company's business.
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Independent Auditors® Report

The Trustee
WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund, a sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore
Funds

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WA High Income Corporate Bond
(Multi- Currency) Fund, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities and schedule
of investments as of March 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations and changes in
net assets for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors®
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of WAHigh Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund as of
March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG
Cayman Islands
May 29, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of WA High Income
Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WA High Income Corporate Bond
(Multi- Currency) Fund (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as
of March 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for
the year then ended.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on ourjudgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the Fund"s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund®s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of WAHigh Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund as of
March 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 27, 2021
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Independent auditors® report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

< have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ilreland”, and
applicable law); and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the “ Annual Report” ), which comprise: the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2020; the statement of income and retained earnings for the year ended 31 March
2020; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ( 1SAs
(UK)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK are further described in the
Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which 1SAs (UK)
require us to report to you when:
e the Directors™ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
< the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company®s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not
a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors® Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors” report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic Report and Directors® Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
Report and Directors" Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other requiered reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e certain disclosures of directors™ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Colleen Local (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

18 June 2020
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